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Letter from the Chairman

I

am pleased to write to you in the context of a terrific 2014
for Platform. The company demonstrated its ability to execute
against its ambitious strategy of acquiring high-quality, high
cash flow businesses while delivering excellent operational
results. It was an extremely busy year for the company. Platform
acquired nearly $5 billion in new businesses and built out the
infrastructure for a larger company, while its core business
continued to generate earnings growth and stable cash flows.
In Agriphar, Arysta and Chemtura AgroSolutions, we acquired
great businesses with differentiated capabilities and excellent
managers. Putting them together is a tremendous opportunity
for us. In the meantime, MacDermid continued to deliver strong
earnings and cash flow growth despite a senior management
team equally focused on our aggressive acquisition activity.
As importantly, we were able to add people of high caliber to
the Platform team to support future growth.
We have much to be thankful for as we drive the business
forward in 2015. The team has come together well. The value
creation from driving synergies and growth is now a specific
action list. Acquisition opportunities are abundant, and capital
costs remain attractive.
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I am very grateful for the superb leadership Dan Leever has
provided. It is everything I had hoped the alliance would be
when we acquired MacDermid. Wayne Hewett’s partnership
with Dan is already proving to provide a powerful combination
of complementary talents and one that should drive further
value for all shareholders as we look into the future.
My role as ‘the architect’ is definitely facilitated with the
growing bench of great ‘builders’ and ‘engineers’ who are
turning Platform into a truly unique enterprise. We feel we are
well positioned to be allies of large corporations refocusing
their asset portfolio, buyout shops seeking to return capital to
their investors and private owners in search of a great home
for their company.
This is all I could have hoped for when Platform was created,
and I would like to thank our stellar employees that make
up the Platform family without whom we would never have
achieved the milestones reached in 2014.
Respectfully yours,
Martin E. Franklin

Daniel H. Leever

Martin E. Franklin

Wayne M. Hewett

Chief Executive Officer
and Vice Chairman

Chairman

President

Letter from the CEO

W

hat a year! We entered 2014 as a young U.S. company.
In January, we listed our shares on the New York Stock
Exchange. From then, we announced three acquisitions with
a combined enterprise value of nearly $5 billion. Reported
2014 revenues were $844 million up from $746 million in 2013.
Adjusted EBITDA* was $213 million in 2014 up from $180 million
in 2013. Fully-diluted adjusted earnings per share* were $0.59.
Recurring free cash flow* for 2014 was $148 million. On a pro
forma basis, had we owned the three businesses acquired in
2014 for the full year, revenues for 2014 would have been $3.0
billion and adjusted EBITDA would have been $642 million.
For most of 2014, MacDermid was our only operating business,
and the team at MacDermid led by Scot Benson had another
record year. The original Platform investment continues
to generate momentum. Early in 2015, Scot assumed the
Presidency of MacDermid, a well-deserved promotion. I led
the MacDermid team for 25 years and am delighted to have
Scot as my successor. This change will allow me to focus on
executing our strategy of creating a diversified, best-in-class
specialty chemical company.
At Platform, we intend to build a best-in-class specialty
chemical company emphasizing high cash flow businesses
with defensible moats or competitive advantages. The majority
of the specialty chemical industry is not evidenced by high
cash flow. Our strategy is to focus only on those businesses
which fit our model of high cash flows, driven by technology
and excellent technical personnel. Our customer-focused
technicians in R&D and technical support roles are the basis
for our moat. We are often asked how this works. If the capital
barrier to entry is so low, how exactly are we able to sustain
high cash flow margins for so long? We point out that my father,
Harold, managed MacDermid to similar margins 50 years ago.
Margins sustained for 50 years? If that’s not sustainability we
don’t know what is. How could that be?
It is because we operate in niches where customers depend
on our service and technology for their very existence. Farmers
in over 100 countries gain their livelihood by avoiding pests
and blights that can ruin their crop and their income. We focus
on specialty crops in specialty markets where we can provide
exceptional functionality where others are less focused. In
MacDermid’s business, our customers buy from us what for
them is a tiny percentage of their purchases but can make all
the difference in producing their final product. For example, in
automotive fashion finishes, very minor blemishes can make an
expensive part worthless. It is similar in electronics and offshore
energy. This plays out every day with thousands of customers in
many hundreds of products, each unique from the next. It is true
that our “best assets go home every night.” As our philosophy
says, “It is the initiative, the will and the motivation that people
bring to their work on which we rely for our survival

and growth.” This was true when the philosophy was written
53 years ago, and it remains our core today at Platform.
Culture matters to us. We believe we have, and can further
build upon, a foundation of entrepreneurship where we win as
a team. At our first management meeting we all donned the kilt
that is a symbol of this spirit. It is remarkable how connected we
felt to each other after such a short time.
Where do we go from here? One of our favorite quotes on
the subject is from Alice’s Adventures in Wonderland by
Lewis Carroll:
“Would you tell me, please, which way I ought to go
from here?”
“That depends a good deal on where you want to get
to,” said the Cat.
“I don’t much care where—” said Alice.
“Then it doesn’t matter which way you go,” said the Cat.
“—so long as I get SOMEWHERE,” Alice added as an 		
explanation.
“Oh, you’re sure to do that,” said the Cat, “if you only 		
walk long enough.”
We think deeply about our strategic direction. Capital allocation
matters. It matters in a major way when you are thinking – as
we are – in terms of long-term per share intrinsic value. Of
course, managing the business day-to-day at the operating
level is crucial. So is investing in the right opportunities at the
right price. We believe that with the right market opportunities
and a disciplined approach we have a good chance at meeting
our goal of a greater than 20% annual increase in intrinsic value
per share. It has been done before. Take a look at Martin’s
track record at Jarden. We have read with interest the book
The Outsiders by William N. Thorndike, Jr. that describes the
story behind eight unconventional company leaders and the
approach to capital allocation each took to achieve uncommon
value creation. The average of these leaders’ companies
outperformed the S&P index by 20 times and their peers in
similar businesses by over seven times over many years. Their
formula was straightforward, although it was implemented
with intense focus and discipline. Mr. Thorndike listed seven
Outsiders principles:
• Capital allocation is the CEO’s most important job.
• What counts in the long run is the increase in per 		
		 share value, not overall growth or size.
• Cash flow, not reported earnings, is what determines
		 long term value.
• Decentralized organizations release entrepreneurial 		
		 energy and keep both costs and “rancor” down.
• Independent thinking is essential to long-term success.
• Sometimes the best investment opportunity is your
		 own stock.

*For a reconciliation of non-GAAP to GAAP measures, please refer to page 91 of this Annual Report.
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We run models regularly analyzing differing capital allocation
scenarios in different market circumstances. In some, we
assume a deep market downturn where buying our stock is the
best option. In other models, we use our organic cash flow to
acquire businesses complementary to ours. In yet others, we
assume the use of the currency afforded by a valuable stock
price to supplement our cash generation for acquisitions. We
even ran a “do nothing” model as a base line. That is one case
that is highly unlikely.
We evaluate acquisitions through several filters. The first and
most important is the business model fit. If a business does
not meet our high cash flow, sustainable moat criteria, it does
not matter how attractive it might otherwise be, we pass. The
second most important consideration is intrinsic value accretion
measured per share. We run discounted cash flow calculations
to evaluate the long term value-add of an acquisition against
its funding requirement, which we are currently assuming at
4.5x EBITDA in debt with the rest of the purchase price in
equity. Then, we fully burden the cash flows with interest, tax,
working capital, and capital expenditures to solve for “cash
flow after everything.” Our internal target is that “cash flow
after everything” must be 10% of our initial equity in year 1
and accretive to per share intrinsic value over the long-term.
Whereas at any point in time we may have cash on the balance
sheet to fund the acquisition, and therefore not require issuing
equity, we still use the above model to review internally. The
discount factor will vary over time. The key to this analysis
is the growth rate we choose for the long-term. We spend a
lot of time thinking about long-term growth trends in varying
end-markets. We try to remain realistic in our assumptions.
Acquisitions carry risk. Therefore we require a margin of safety
in case things don’t work out exactly as planned.
While we are building a portfolio of diverse specialty chemicals
companies, we are not merely collectors of assets. Any investor
can do that by buying various companies’ shares. We must
make businesses we acquire better! We do this several ways.
First and foremost is to increase the acquired business’ cash
flow through synergies. We do this in two ways. We can acquire
a business and bolt it onto an existing vertical with significant
overlap. Alternatively, we can share back office functions which
can lead to the elimination of substantial redundancies.
As we build new verticals, we will use the first acquired
business as a beachhead. In 2014/2015, we acquired a
business and then made subsequent acquisitions to bolt onto
the new vertical. We first acquired the CAS business (former
Chemtura unit). Then we added the Agriphar business in
Europe thereby significantly strengthening both businesses.
Then we added Arysta and created a global powerhouse
in specialty crops. We believe that the cost synergies alone
should create a cash flow machine that may generate greater
than 20% EBITDA-capex margins. Top line synergies derived

4

by combining these businesses should enhance the organic
growth rate each business would have individually. We fully
expect these businesses to be better as part of Platform than
on a standalone basis.
Concurrently with the closing of the Arysta acquisition on
February 13, 2015, Wayne Hewett joined Platform as President.
We have formed the Office of the Chairman which consists of
Martin, Wayne and myself. We believe this triumvirate will work
together to create uncommon synergy and shareholder value.
Martin brings unparalleled experience in building a successful
enterprise. I know the high cash flow asset set like few others,
and Wayne brings extensive knowledge of operations from
world-class organizations. We have a deep bench of managers
at corporate and around the world to supplement the stable of
highly capable managers from MacDermid and the three Ag
companies we have acquired as of this writing.
In the short term, we are focused on achieving the anticipated
synergies from the three Ag acquisitions. We believe our
original estimate of $65 million is conservative and, based on
our more recent work, have revised that target to an estimated
$80 million over three years.
We are facing uncertainty in 2015. While we are carrying
substantial momentum at an operating level in all businesses,
the strength of the dollar is a headwind compared to 2014.
However, we are optimistic that our specialty crop and
geographic focus and synergies will lead to a record year in
Ag on a constant dollar basis. We believe MacDermid is also
poised for another record year. We intend to manage the FX
headwind, just like any other challenge to the business, and
remain highly confident in the future performance of
our businesses.
The universe of potential strategic acquisitions is vast. We
remain confident in our ability to find and execute against our
build-up strategy. However, we are disciplined acquirers. We
will exercise discipline and restraint and wait for the opportunity
that checks all the right boxes with an appropriate margin
for safety. We cannot know in advance the timing of our next
acquisition. However, we will be working hard to deliver the
next value-creating move. We look forward to updating you
on our progress.
Yours Sincerely,
Daniel H. Leever

2014 Corporate Activity
Acquisitions
January

Capital Markets
NYSE Listing

February

March

April

Chemtura AgroSolutions
Acquisition Announced

May

$300 Million Private
Placement

June

July

August

Agriphar Acquisition
Announced

September
Arysta Acquisition Announced

October

Agriphar Acquisition Closed

$300 Million Bank Loan
$650 Million Private Placement
$402 Million Equity Offering

November
Chemtura AgroSolutions
Acquisition Closed

$405 Million Bank Loan

December
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Strong Specialty Chemical Legacies
Converge Inside Platform
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Platform Segment Overview

Performance Materials
The Performance Materials segment manufactures
and markets dynamic chemistry solutions for use in
the Electronics, Industrial and Offshore Oil industries
A global leader in the electronics industry our
Electronics Solutions technologies are used to
produce high-end consumer electronics, cloud
based storage systems, and automotive systems,
among others. Our Industrial Solutions business
supplies the global automotive, aerospace,
architectural and industrial metal finishing markets
with high-reliability, decorative and anti corrosion
technologies. Our Offshore Solutions product lines
supply global, market leading sub-sea control fluids
used on deep water oil and drilling platforms.

Graphic Solutions
The Graphics Solutions segment is an industry
leader in the flexographic printing plate and
technology industry. Our products are used
for commercial flexible packaging, corrugated
and publications printing applications, enabling
world class print quality and consistency. These
technologies are critical to the consumer products
packaging industry and enable design innovation
in many categories.
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AgroSolutions
The AgroSolutions segment is a leading
global provider of crop solutions with
expertise in agrochemicals, biological
solutions and seed treatment products.
Our solutions-oriented products,
which consist of proprietary offerings
complemented by a broad portfolio of
regionally-managed off-patent products,
improve agricultural productivity by
protecting crops from weeds (herbicides),
insects (insecticides) and diseases
(fungicides) as well as stimulating plant
growth and quality.
The segment was formed through the
strategic combination of Percival S.A.
(Agriphar), the Chemtura AgroSolutions
business of Chemtura Corporation and
Arysta LifeScience Limited, which were
each acquired by Platform between
October 2014 and February 2015. Our
combined customer-centric sales model,
highly-targeted market strategy and
robust portfolio of crop solutions are
supported by our capabilities in product
development, registration and our low
capital expenditure supply chain. This
approach is aligned with Platform’s overall
“Asset-Lite, High-Touch” philosophy,
which optimizes flexibility and minimizes
production cost and capital expenditures.
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Platform Global Footprint
Selected Platform Operational Facilities
Ferndale, MI

Aberdeen,
U.K.

Mississauga, Ontario,
Canada

Birmingham,
U.K.
Evesham,
Worcestershire, U.K.

Guelph, Ontario,
Canada

Waterbury, CT
Wigan, U.K.
Wantage, U.K.

Pekin, IL

Saint-Malo,
France
Beaulieu-sur-Layon,
France

Morristown, TN

Cary, NC

Chaillac,
France

Middletown, DE

Houston, TX

Global Headquarters
West Palm Beach, Florida

Ramos Arizpe,
Mexico

Pau,
France
Barcelona,
Spain

Atlanta, GA
Valdosta, GA
Mexico
City,
Mexico

Madrid,
Colombia

Dakar,
Senegal

Ibiporã, Brazil
Bobo-Dioulasso,
Burkina Faso
Cambé,
Brazil

Arysta LifeScience includes the legacy Arysta,
Chemtura AgroSolutions and Agriphar.

10

São Paulo,
Brazil

Salto de Pirapora,
Brazil

Seraing, Belgium
Suzhou, China
Novara,
Italy

Gajraula, India

Norrköping,
Sweeden
Forst,
Germany
Chungjung City, South Korea
Kalol, Gujarat,
India
Cernay, France
Lyon, France
Noguères, France

Seoul,
South Korea

Bangkok,
Thailand

Tokyo,
Japan

Karachi,
Pakistan

Abidjan,
Ivory Coast

Hsin-Chui,
Taiwan

Mumbai,
India
Panyu,
China
Mauritius

Tongaat,
South Africa

Hong Kong,
China

Ho Chi Minh City,
Vietnam
Singapore

Melbourne,
Australia

Canelands,
South Africa
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Major Consolidated Financial Charts
Revenue
843.2
850

745.9

731.2
171.7

88.0

171.5

165.9

574.4

589.3

425

559.5

U.S. Dollars
In Millions

0

2012

2013

Performance Materials

Graphic Solutions

2014

AgroSolutions

Adjusted EBITDA

(1)

212.2

250

162.2
125

43.6
118.6

180.1

16.0
47.5

43.5
136.6

148.7
U.S. Dollars
In Millions

0

2012

2013

2014

(1) For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to GAAP net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders, please refer to page 91 of this Annual Report.
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Selected Consolidated Financial Information

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014
Please refer to the Glossary of Defined Terms located at the end of this Annual Report for the definitions of certain defined terms used herein.
The following table presents our selected consolidated historical financial data for us and our Predecessor as of the dates and for each of the
periods indicated. The selected consolidated historical data as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, for the Successor 2013 Period, the
Predecessor 2013 Period, the Predecessor 2012 Period, and as of December 31, 2013 has been derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report. The selected consolidated historical data as of December 31, 2012 has been derived from the
audited consolidated financial statements of our Predecessor. The selected consolidated historical financial data presented below contain all
normal recurring adjustments that, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly our financial position and results of operations
as of and for the periods presented. The selected historical consolidated financial data included below and elsewhere in this Annual Report are
not necessarily indicative of future results and should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation,” as well as the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

(Amounts in millions, except
per share data)

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

Period From
Inception (April 23,
2013) to
December 31, 2013

Period from
January 1, 2013 to
October 31, 2013

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net Sales

$

Gross profit

843.2

$

118.2

396.6

Operating profit (loss)
(Loss) income before income taxes,
non-controlling interests and
dividends on preferred shares

115.1

(1)

(201.4) (2)

26.5 (3)

71.0

(1.94)

Diluted earnings per share

731.2
355.1

91.7 (3)

(24.2)

Basic earnings per share

$

(195.6) (2)

6.7

Net (loss) income

627.7
322.8

9.5(1)

(30.9)

Income tax benefit (expense)

$

35.7

(1.94)

(13.0)

5.8
(1)

(24.7)

(195.6)

(2)

13.5

(2.10)

(2)

n/a

n/a

(2.10)

(2)

n/a

n/a

(1)
(1)

(3)

46.3

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash & cash equivalents
(4)

$

397.3

$

123.0

$

143.4

Working capital

1,335.8

263.8

246.4

Total assets

4,557.6

2,260.2

1,233.9

1,415.9

752.3

720.6

2,552.6

1,115.1

272.4

Total debt
Total equity

( 1 ) Includes the following significant items related to the Acquisitions affecting comparability for the year ended December 31, 2014:
• Purchase accounting adjustment of $35.5 million charged to cost of sales for the manufacturer’s profit in inventory adjustment;
• Transaction related costs, primarily comprised of professional fees, of $47.8 million; and
• Non-cash mark-to-market charge related to the contingent consideration in connection with the MacDermid acquisition of $29.1 million.

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014
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Selected Consolidated Financial Information

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014
( 2 ) Includes the following significant items related to the MacDermid Acquisition affecting comparability in the Successor 2013 Period:
• Non-cash charge related to the preferred share dividend rights of the Founders entities of $172.0 million;
• Purchase accounting adjustment of $23.9 million charged to cost of sales for the manufacturer’s profit in inventory adjustment; and
• Transaction related costs, primarily comprised of professional fees, of $15.2 million.
( 3 ) Includes the following significant items related to the MacDermid Acquisition affecting comparability in the Predecessor 2013 Period:
• Transaction related costs primarily for professional fees and fees paid to Predecessor shareholders resulting from management fees
payable in conjunction with consummation of the MacDermid Acquisition of $16.9 million; and
• Deemed compensation expense related to pre-acquisition share awards of approximately $9.3 million.
( 4 ) Working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Please refer to the Glossary of Defined Terms located at the end of this Annual Report for the definitions of certain defined terms used herein.
The following is a discussion of our financial condition and results of operations during the period ended December 31, 2014, the Successor
2013 Period and each of the Predecessor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2012 Period. We did not own MacDermid for any of the Predecessor
periods or for the entirety of the Successor 2013 Period. Consequently, these results may not be indicative of the results that we would expect
to recognize for future periods. This discussion should be read in conjunction with “Selected Consolidated Financial Information,” as well as the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

Overview
We are a global, diversified producer of high technology specialty chemical products and provider of technical services. Our business involves the
formulation of a broad range of specialty chemicals, created by blending raw materials through multi-step technological processes or formulating
AIs into final agricultural products, which can be easily and safely used by growers in the field. These specialty chemicals are sold into multiple
industries, including agricultural, electronics, graphic arts, metal and plastic plating, and offshore oil production and drilling.
As our name “Platform Specialty Products Corporation” implies, we continually seek opportunities to act as an acquirer and consolidator of specialty
chemical businesses on a global basis, particularly those meeting Platform’s “Asset Lite, High-Touch” philosophy, which involves prioritizing
extensive resources to research and development and highly technical customer service, while managing conservatively our investments in fixed
assets and capital expenditures. To date, Platform has completed four acquisitions: the MacDermid Acquisition, on October 31, 2013, the Agriphar
Acquisition on October 1, 2014, the CAS Acquisition on November 3, 2014 and the Arysta Acquisition on February 13, 2015.
We were initially incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the British Virgin Islands on April 23, 2013 under the name “Platform Acquisition
Holdings Limited.” We were created for the purpose of acquiring a target company or business with an anticipated enterprise value of between
$750 million and $2.50 billion. We completed our Initial Public Offering in the United Kingdom on May 22, 2013, raising net proceeds of
approximately $881 million and were listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Acquisitions
MacDermid Acquisition
On October 31, 2013, we completed the MacDermid Acquisition, pursuant to which we indirectly acquired substantially all of the equity of
MacDermid Holdings which, at the time, owned 97% of MacDermid. As a result, we became a holding company for the MacDermid business. We
acquired the remaining 3% of MacDermid on March 4, 2014, pursuant to the terms of an Exchange Agreement, dated October 25, 2013, between
us and the fiduciaries of the 401K Plan. Concurrently with the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, we changed our name to “Platform Specialty
Products Corporation.” On January 22, 2014, we completed the Domestication, changing our jurisdiction of incorporation from the British Virgin
Islands to Delaware, and on January 23, 2014, our common stock began trading on the NYSE under the ticker symbol “PAH.”
The total consideration for the MacDermid Acquisition and the Exchange Agreement was approximately $1.80 billion (including the assumption of
$754 million of indebtedness, consisting primarily of MacDermid’s then first lien credit facility), plus (i) up to $100 million of contingent consideration
tied to achieving certain EBITDA and stock trading price performance metrics over a seven-year period following the closing of the MacDermid
Acquisition and (ii) an interest in certain MacDermid pending litigation which consideration was paid through a combination of both equity interests
and cash.

Agriphar Acquisition
On October 1, 2014, we completed the Agriphar Acquisition. Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition agreement, MacDermid Agricultural Solutions
Holdings B.V. acquired 100% of the equity interests of Percival for a purchase price of approximately €300 million ($370 million) consisting of $350
million in cash, after certain post-closing working capital and other adjustments, and 711,551 restricted shares of our common stock.
We financed the Agriphar Acquisition with proceeds from the Incremental Amendment and available cash on hand.

CAS Acquisition
On November 3, 2014, we completed the CAS Acquisition for $1.04 billion, consisting of $983 million in cash, after certain post-closing working
capital and other adjustments, 2,000,000 shares of our common stock and the assumption of certain liabilities by Platform.
We financed the CAS Acquisition with a combination of available cash on hand and borrowings under an increase in term loans of approximately
$389 million ($256 million of which is denominated in Euro), $60 million under our U.S. Dollar revolving credit facility and €55 million ($68.7 million)
under our multicurrency revolving credit facility pursuant to our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
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Arysta Acquisition
On February 13, 2015, we completed the Arysta Acquisition for approximately $3.57 billion, consisting of $2.93 billion in cash, subject to working
capital and other adjustments, and $600 million of Platform’s Series B Preferred Stock issued to the Seller.
We financed the Arysta Acquisition with the proceeds from (1) available cash on hand, (2) the offering of $1.10 billion aggregate principal amount
of 6.50% senior notes due 2022 denominated in U.S. dollars and €350 million aggregate principal amount of 6.00% senior notes due 2023
denominated in Euro, which offering was completed on February 2, 2015, and (3) additional borrowings of $500 million (less original issue discount
of 1%) through an incremental term loan denominated in U.S. dollars, €83 million (less original discount of 2%) through an increase to our existing
term loan facility denominated in Euro, and $160 million our increased U.S. dollar revolving credit facility.

Our Business
Our business involves the formulation of a broad range of specialty chemicals, which we create by blending raw materials through multi-step
technological processes or formulating AIs into final agricultural products, which can be easily and safely used by growers in the fields. These
specialty chemicals encompass the products we sell to our customers in the agrochemical, electronics, metal and plastic plating, graphic arts, and
offshore oil production and drilling industries. We refer to our products as “dynamic chemistries” due to their intricate chemical compositions. Our
dynamic chemistries are used in a wide variety of attractive niche markets and we believe that the majority of our operations hold strong positions
in the product markets they serve.
We generate revenue through the formulation and sale of our dynamic chemistries and by providing highly technical service to our customers
through our extensive global network of specially trained service personnel. Our personnel work closely with our customers to ensure that
the chemical composition and function of our dynamic chemistries are maintained as intended. As an example, a customer will engage us to
manufacture and sell a product consisting of a process composed of eight successive chemical baths, each of which is made up of our specialty
chemicals, in order to enhance the overall performance of that customer’s circuit boards. In addition to providing such product, a member of our
professional service team would visit the customer’s manufacturing facilities on a regular basis to ensure that the process sold maintains the correct
chemical balance and can be used effectively in the manner and for the purpose desired.
While our dynamic chemistries typically represent only a small portion of our customers’ costs, we believe that they are critical to our customers’
manufacturing processes and overall product performance. Further, operational risks and switching costs make it difficult for our customers to
change suppliers and allow us to retain customers and maintain our market positions.
We manage our business in three operating segments: Performance Materials, Graphic Solutions and AgroSolutions. The AgroSolutions segment
was created during the fourth quarter of 2014 to manage our newly acquired agrochemical vertical, which now includes Agriphar’s, CAS’ and
Arysta’s complementary businesses and which is expected to uniformly operate under the Arysta LifeScience brand.

Performance Materials – Our Performance Materials segment manufactures and markets dynamic chemistry solutions that are used in the
electronics, automotive and oil and gas production and drilling industries. We operate in the Americas, Asia and Europe. Our products include
surface and coating materials and water-based hydraulic control fluids. In conjunction with the sale of these products, we provide technical service
and support when necessary to ensure superior performance of their application. The regional sales mix in this segment has shifted over the past
several years from more industrialized nations towards emerging markets, such as Asia and South America. To better serve customers in these
markets, we have developed state-of- the-art facilities in São Paulo, Brazil and Suzhou, China. We have approximately 600 personnel and four
manufacturing facilities in Asia and remain focused on further increasing our presence in the region.

Graphic Solutions – Our Graphic Solutions segment primarily produces and markets photopolymers through an extensive line of flexographic
plates that are used in the commercial packaging and printing industries. We manufacture photopolymers used to produce printing plates for
transferring images onto commercial packaging, including packaging for consumer food products, pet food bags, corrugated boxes, labels and
beverage containers. In addition, we also produce photopolymer printing plates for the flexographic and letterpress newspaper and publications
markets. Our products are used to improve print quality and printing productivity. Flexography is a printing process that utilizes flexible printing
plates made of rubber or other flexible plastics. Photopolymers are molecules that change properties upon exposure to light. Our business mix
in this segment is focused on high innovation, higher cash flow businesses by offering new products. We believe growth in this segment will be
driven by consumer demand and advertising.

AgroSolutions – Our AgroSolutions segment is based on a solutions-oriented business model that focuses on product innovation to address
an ever-increasing need for higher crop yield and quality. We offer a wide variety of proven plant health and pest control products to growers,
which are comprised of specific target applications in the following major product lines: adjuvants, fungicides, herbicides, home applications (home
and garden and ectoparasiticides), insecticides, miticides, plant growth regulators and seed treatments. We refer to globally managed patented
and proprietary off-patent fungicides, herbicides, and insecticides as our value-added portfolio, or GVAP. Our product portfolio also includes
biosolutions (biostimulants, innovative nutrition and biocontrol), and regional off patent AIs that complement our principal product lines.
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We sell our products into three main geographic regions: the Americas, Asia and Europe. Because our segments utilize shared facilities and
administrative resources and offer products that are distinct from one another, we make decisions about how to manage our operations by
reference to each segment and not with respect to the underlying products or geographic regions that comprise each segment.

Global Economic and Industry Conditions
Our products are sold in industries that we believe are sensitive to changes in general economic conditions. Accordingly, net sales, gross profit
and financial condition depend significantly on general economic conditions and the impact of these conditions on demand for our dynamic
chemistries and services in the markets in which we compete. Our business is particularly impacted by demand for chemistry products utilized in
the automotive, printed circuit board, offshore oil production and commercial packaging industries.
Our business is also significantly influenced by trends and characteristics in the specialty chemical industry and the printing industry. We believe
that these industries are cyclical and subject to constant and rapid technological change, product obsolescence, price erosion, evolving standards,
short product life-cycles, raw material price fluctuations and changes in product supply and demand.
The specialty chemical industry is currently being affected by globalization and a shift in customers’ businesses out of traditional geographic
markets and into high-growth, emerging markets.
The printing industry is currently shrinking, which is reflected in the newspaper closures and consolidations that have occurred during the past three
years. The newspapers are also reducing capital spending due to outsourcing their production. As a result, sales of newspaper plates have been
adversely impacted by these trends.
Net sales in future periods will depend, among other factors, upon a continued general improvement in global economic conditions, our ability to
meet unscheduled or temporary changes in demand, and our ability to penetrate new markets with strategic product initiatives in specific targeted
markets.
The AgroSolutions segment is supported by strong global fundamentals such as the need to feed a growing population, with limited land and
competition from biofuels, in addition to a change in dietary standards in emerging markets, that create a critical need to increase yields, which is
accomplished through the use of agrochemicals, including seed treatment, to protect the crop, and biosolutions offerings (especially biostimulants
and innovative nutrition), among other technologies, for crop enhancement.
Despite strong macro trends for the industry, net sales in future periods can depend, among other factors, on commodity prices, climate conditions
and the development of new technologies, such as GM seeds, that can partially substitute the need for agrochemicals.

Foreign Currency Exposure
For the year ended December 31, 2014, 70% of net sales were denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar - predominantly the Euro,
British Pound Sterling, Chinese Yuan, Brazilian Real and Hong Kong Dollar. For the Successor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2013 Period,
approximately 68% and 67%, respectively, of net sales, were denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. For the Predecessor 2012
Period, approximately 67% of net sales were denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Except for hedging exchange risk related to
acquisitions, generally we have not utilized currency hedges to mitigate exchange rate risk between the U.S. Dollar and the foreign currencies of
our operations other than with respect to the British Pound Sterling. Therefore, our financial performance may be positively or negatively impacted
by changes in foreign exchange rates in any given reporting period. However, as we continue to expand our international presence through
acquisitions, we continue to review a full range of options focused on mitigating foreign currency exchange rate risk. For most currencies, we are a
net receiver of the foreign currency and therefore we benefit from a weaker U.S. Dollar and are adversely affected by a stronger U.S. Dollar relative
to the foreign currency.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, net sales were unfavorably impacted by approximately $3.4 million as the U.S. Dollar strengthened against
most foreign currencies, and especially the Brazil Real, British Pound Sterling and Euro when compared to 2013.
For the Successor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2013 Periods, net sales were negatively impacted as the U.S. Dollar strengthened against the
Brazil Real, British Pound Sterling and Euro when compared to 2012. However, the absolute impact on the Successor and Predecessor 2013 Period
net sales was not material.
For the Predecessor 2012 Period, net sales were negatively impacted as the U.S. Dollar strengthened against the Brazil Real, British Pound Sterling
and Euro when compared to 2011. However, the absolute impact on 2012 net sales was not material.
The majority of Agriphar’s, CAS’ and Arysta’s net sales are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Therefore, changes in foreign
exchange rates in any given reporting period may positively or negatively impact their respective financial performance.
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Results of Operations
The following table summarizes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the Successor 2013 Period, as well as the
Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods:

(In millions)
Net sales

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

Period from Inception
(April 23, 2013)
through December
31, 2013

January 1,
2013 through
October 31, 2013

Year Ended
December 31, 2012

Successor

Successor

Predecessor

Predecessor

$

843.2

$

118.2

$

627.7

$

731.2

Cost of sales

446.6

82.5

304.9

376.1

Gross profit

396.6

35.7

322.8

355.1

Operating expenses:
Selling, technical, general and
administrative
Non-cash charge related to preferred
stock dividend rights

357.9

54.5

207.6

214.6

Research and development
Restructuring
Total operating expenses
Operating profit (loss)

-

172.0

-

-

26.2

4.0

19.9

25.1

3.0

0.8

3.6

0.3

387.1

231.3

231.1

240.0

9.5

(195.6)

91.7

115.1

(37.9)

(5.4)

(45.9)

(49.1)

-

-

(18.8)

-

(2.5)

(0.4)

(0.5)

5.0

(40.4)

(5.8)

(65.2)

(44.1)

(30.9)

(201.4)

26.5

71.0

6.7

5.8

(13.0)

(24.7)

(24.2)

(195.6)

13.5

46.3

(5.7)

1.4

(0.3)

(0.3)

(29.9)

(194.2)

13.2

46.0

(232.7)

-

-

-

-

-

(22.4)

(44.6)

Other (expense) income:
Interest, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other (expense) income, net
Total other expense
(Loss) income before income taxes,
non-controlling interest and dividends
on preferred shares
Income tax benefit (provision)
Net (loss) income
Net loss (income) attributable to the noncontrolling interest
Net (loss) income attributable to
shareholders
Accrued stock dividend on cumulative
Founder’s preferred shares
Accrued payment-in-kind dividend on
cumulative preferred shares
Net (loss) income attributable to common
shares

$

(262.6)
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Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Successor 2013 Period (Inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013) and Predecessor 2013 Period (January 1, 2013 through October
31, 2013)
Net Sales
Net sales totaled $843 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to net sales of $118 million for the Successor 2013 Period and $628
million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes a full 12 months of MacDermid results, compared
to two months in the Successor 2013 Period and ten months in the Predecessor 2013 Period, as well as $26.1 million and $61.9 million of sales
generated through the Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions, which were completed on October 1, 2014 and November 3, 2014, respectively. Sales were
unfavorably impacted by $3.4 million due to the increase in value of the U.S. Dollar during the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the
Successor and Predecessor 2013 Periods. Net sales of products that we have identified as new products, which represent opportunities to enter
markets adjacent to those we currently serve, were $90.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $11.2 million for the Successor
2013 Period and $65.6 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period.
Net sales in the Performance Materials segment totaled $589 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to net sales of $92.6 million
for the Successor 2013 Period and $482 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes a full 12
months of MacDermid results, compared to two months in the Successor 2013 Period and ten months in the Predecessor 2013 Period. Electronic
product sales increased in Asia, core industrial and film product sales increased in the Americas and Europe, as well as offshore fluids primarily in
Europe.
Net sales in the Graphic Solutions segment sales totaled $166 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to net sales of $25.6 million
for the Successor 2013 Period and $146 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. As with the Performance Materials segment, net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2014 includes a full 12 months of MacDermid results, compared to two months in the Successor 2013 Period and ten months in
the Predecessor 2013 Period. The decrease in net sales is primarily attributable to lower demand for newspaper plating products partially offset by
higher sales volume in packaging products primarily in Europe.
During the fourth quarter of 2014, we created a new operating segment, AgroSolutions, which includes Agriphar’s and CAS’s complementary
businesses, as well as certain subsequently acquired businesses of Arysta. The AgroSolutions segment reported sales of $88.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014, representing partial year sales from the Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions completed on October 1, 2014 and November 3,
2014, respectively.
By region, for the Performance Materials and Graphic Solutions segments, net sales from the Americas, Asia and Europe were $272 million, $214
million and $269 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $42.7 million, $34.6 million and $41.0 million in the Successor 2013
Period and $237 million, $177 million and $214 million in the Predecessor 2013 Periods, respectively. Net sales were lower in the Americas in 2014
primarily from an unfavorable foreign currency impact of approximately $5.4 million in addition to lower newspaper plating product sales volume.
In the Asia region, net sales increased $2.8 million in 2014 which was due to continued strong demand for our electronics products but was
partially offset by lower sales volume in core film products and an unfavorable foreign currency impact of approximately $2.8 million. European
sales increased by $13.9 million in 2014 which was largely driven by favorable currency impacts of approximately $6.1 million in addition to higher
sales volume of core industrial and film products and offshore fluids in the Performance Materials segment in addition to packaging products in the
Graphic Solutions segment.
Changes in the average selling prices of the Company’s products did not have a material impact on net sales for the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the Successor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2013 Period.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales totaled $447 million (53.0% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $82.5 million (69.8% of net sales) for
the Successor 2013 Period and $305 million (48.6% of net sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Cost of sales for the year ended December 31,
2014 includes a full 12 months of MacDermid results, versus two months in the Successor 2013 Period and ten months in the Predecessor 2013
Period as well as $28.5 million and $48.3 million of incremental cost of sales from the Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions, which were completed on
October 1, 2014 and November 3, 2014, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2014 and the Successor 2013 Period, cost of sales includes
$35.5 million and $23.9 million of charges, respectively, related to the elimination of manufacturer’s profit in inventory charged to cost of sales
resulting from purchase accounting fair value adjustments to inventory associated with our acquisitions. Excluding these charges, cost of sales as a
percentage of net sales for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the Successor 2013 period was 48.8% and 49.6%, respectively.

Gross Profit
For the year ended December 31, 2014, gross profit totaled $397 million (47.0% gross margin), compared to $35.7 million (30.2% gross margin) for
the Successor 2013 period and $323 million (51.4% gross margin) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. The Agriphar and CAS acquisitions accounted
for $11.2 million of the year over year increase. For the year ended December 31, 2014 and the Successor 2013 Period, gross profit includes $35.5
million and $23.9 million of charges, respectively, related to the elimination of manufacturer’s profit resulting from the step-up of inventory related
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to the Acquisitions. Excluding the inventory charges, gross margin was 51.3% and 50.4% for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the Successor
2013 Period. Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2014 was unfavorably impacted by $1.8 million due to the increase in value of the
U.S. Dollar. The primary driver of the higher gross profit for the year ended 2014 was more sales in higher margin electronic products in Asia and
industrial products and offshore fluids in Europe from our Performance Materials segment. Changes in the average selling price of products did not
have a material impact on gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the Successor and Predecessor Periods.

Non-Cash Charges related to Preferred Stock Dividend Rights
The Series A Preferred Stock issued by Platform has dividend rights that were triggered upon the successful close of the MacDermid Acquisition.
On December 31, 2014, we approved a stock dividend of 10,050,290 shares of our common stock with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock,
which represented 20% of the appreciation of the market price of our common stock over the Initial Public Offering price of $10.00 multiplied by
the total Initial Public Offering shares. The dividend price was $22.85 (calculated based upon the average of the last ten trading days of the year’s
volume weighted average share prices) and the shares were issued on January 2, 2015 based upon the volume weighted average price of $23.16
on December 31, 2014. In subsequent years, the dividend amount will be calculated based on the appreciated stock price compared to the highest
dividend price previously used in calculating the Series A Preferred Stock dividends. Shares of the Series A Preferred Stock will be automatically
converted into shares of our common stock on a one for one basis (i) in the event of a change of control of Platform following an acquisition or (ii)
upon the last day of the seventh full financial year following the completion of the MacDermid Acquisition, being December 31, 2020 (extendable
by our Board for three additional years). Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is convertible into one share of our common stock at the option
of the holder until December 31, 2020 and has certain voting rights. We recognized a non-cash charge during the Successor 2013 Period related
to the fair value of the preferred dividend rights of $172 million upon the completion of the MacDermid Acquisition. The fair value of the preferred
dividend rights was measured based on significant inputs not observable in the market (Level 3 inputs). Key assumptions included the fair value of
our common stock and an assumption of volatility. The fair value was calculated using a Monte-Carlo simulation.

Selling, Technical, General and Administrative Expense
Selling, technical, general and administrative expense totaled $357.9 million (42.4% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared
to $54.5 million (46.1% of net sales) for the Successor 2013 Period and $207.6 million (33.1% of sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. The Agriphar
Acquisition and CAS Acquisition, collectively, accounted for $30.0 million of the year over year increase. The 2014 selling, technical, general and
administrative total includes $47.8 million of acquisition-related costs primarily comprised of professional costs, compared to $15.2 million for the
Successor 2013 Period and $16.9 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Selling, technical, general and administrative expense for the year
ended December 31, 2014 also includes $29.1 million related to the fair value adjustment of the long-term contingent consideration liability related to
the MacDermid Acquisition, compared to income of $0.7 million realized during the Successor 2013 Period. The Predecessor 2013 Period includes
$9.3 million of compensation expense related to the recognition of legacy MacDermid Class C Junior share costs. Selling, technical, general and
administrative costs, net of acquisition-related charges (including Class C Junior share compensation expense and the contingent consideration
adjustment but excluding incremental amortization expense in connection with the Acquisitions), represent 33.3%, 33.8% and 28.9% of net sales for
the year ended December 31, 2014, the Successor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2013 Period, respectively.

Research and Development Expense
Research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $26.2 million (3.1% of net sales), compared to $4.0 million
(3.4% of net sales) for the Successor 2013 Period and $19.9 million (3.2% of net sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. The Agriphar and CAS
Acquisitions accounted for $2.1 million of the year over year increase.

Operating Profit
For the year ended December 31, 2014, operating profit was $9.5 million (1.1% of net sales), compared to operating loss of $196 million (165.5% of
net sales) for the Successor 2013 period and operating profit of $91.7 million (14.6% of net sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. The Agriphar and
CAS Acquisitions reported operating losses of $22.4 million. For the year ended December 31, 2014, operating profit was unfavorably impacted by
the manufacturers profit in inventory adjustment of $35.5 million, transaction related costs of $47.8 million and a non-cash adjustment to the long
term contingent consideration of $29.1 million. Excluding these acquisition-related expenses, operating profit as a percentage of sales was 14.4%
in 2014.
Operating profit for the Performance Materials segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $46.3 million, compared to operating loss
of $109 million for the Successor 2013 Period and operating profit of $73.5 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Operating loss for the Graphic
Solutions segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $14.4 million, compared to operating loss of $86.6 million for the Successor
2013 Period and $18.2 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Excluding acquisition-related costs and a 50% allocation of corporate expenses,
operating profit in the Performance Materials segment increased primarily due to higher sales volume on electronics industry products sold in Asia
and core industrial and film products sold in Europe. Operating profit decreased in the Graphic Solutions segment, excluding acquisition-related
costs and a 50% allocation of corporate expenses, primarily due to the lower sales volume of newspaper plating products.
Operating loss for the AgroSolutions segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $22.4 million, and included acquisition-related costs
of $23.5 million related to the elimination of manufacturer’s profit in inventory charged to cost of sales resulting from purchase accounting fair value
adjustments, as well $38.1 million of transaction related costs primarily comprised of professional fees.
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Restructuring Expense
Restructuring expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $3.0 million (0.4% of net sales) compared to $0.8 million (0.6% of net sales)
for the Successor 2013 Period and $3.6 million (0.6% of net sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Restructuring actions initiated during the year
ended December 31, 2014 and the Successor 2013 Period represent several small initiatives aimed at cost reduction opportunities. The actions
initiated during the Predecessor 2013 Period primarily included expenses related to the elimination of certain positions within the Graphic Solutions
segment in the Americas.

Interest Expense, net
Net interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $37.9 million (4.5% of net sales), compared to $5.4 million (4.6% of net sales)
for the Successor 2013 Period and $45.9 million (7.3% of net sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. Net interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2014 consists primarily of interest on the first lien secured credit facility of $30.4 million, representing 12 months of activity versus
two months in the Successor 2013 Period and ten months in the Predecessor 2013 Period, and interest on term loans in support of our acquisition
activity of $5.5 million. The net interest expense recorded during the Successor 2013 Period represents interest, inclusive of amortization of
deferred financing fees, on the first lien credit facility assumed in the MacDermid Acquisition.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt
In the Predecessor 2013 Period, we recorded a loss of $18.8 million related to the refinancing of tranche B and tranche C term loans and senior
subordinated notes. This amount consisted of $12.5 million of call premiums on the senior subordinated notes and $6.3 million of write-offs of
deferred financing fees related to the extinguished debt. No similar losses were recorded during the year ended December 31, 2014 or Successor
2013 Period.

Other (Expense) Income, net
Net other expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $2.5 million (0.3% of net sales), compared to net other expense of $0.4 million
(0.4% of net sales) for the Successor 2013 Period and net other expense of $0.5 million (0.1% of net sales) for the Predecessor 2013 Period. For the
year ended December 31, 2014, other expense consisted primarily of net foreign exchange losses of $3.0 million. For the Successor 2013 Period,
other expense consisted primarily of net foreign exchange losses of $0.6 million. For the Predecessor 2013 Period, other expense consisted
primarily of net losses on derivative contracts of $0.4 million.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense
Income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $6.7 million, compared to an income tax benefit of $5.8 million for the Successor
2013 Period, and an income tax expense of $13.0 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. We are a U.S. based company with a statutory income
tax rate of 35%. We operate in various foreign countries, which have tax rates that are different from the U.S. statutory tax rate. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, our effective tax rate was a 21.7% income tax benefit on a pre-tax loss of $30.9 million. The effective tax rate was positively
impacted by a $3.7 million adjustment to permanently reinvested earnings and $7.7 million of foreign taxes at rates different from the U.S. statutory
rate. The effective tax rate was negatively impacted by non-deductible purchase price contingency costs of $6.6 million, non-deductible transaction
related costs of $6.5 million and $1.5 million for a change in uncertain tax positions. For the Successor 2013 Period, our effective tax rate was a
2.89% income tax benefit on pre-tax losses of $201.4 million. The effective tax rate was negatively impacted by the non-deductible charge related
to preferred stock dividend rights of $60.2 million and non-deductible transaction related costs of $4.2 million. For the Predecessor 2013 Period,
MacDermid’s effective tax rate was a 49.0% income tax expense on pre-tax income of $26.5 million. The effective tax rate was negatively impacted
by non-deductible transaction related costs of $1.9 million and an increase in the valuation allowance for federal, state and foreign net operating
losses and tax credits of $3.6 million.

Successor 2013 Period (Inception (April 23, 2013) through December 31, 2013)
Net Sales
Net sales for the Successor 2013 Period were $118 million which were comprised of global sales from our Performance Materials and Graphic
Solutions segments of $92.6 million and $25.6 million, respectively. Net sales of products that we have identified as new products, which represent
opportunities to enter markets adjacent to those we currently serve, were $11.2 million for the Successor 2013 Period.
For the Successor 2013 Period, net sales in the Americas were $42.7 million. In Europe and Asia, net sales were $41.0 million and $34.6 million,
respectively, for the Successor 2013 Period.
Changes in our product mix and the average selling prices of products did not have a material impact on net sales for the Successor 2013 Period.

Gross Profit
For the Successor 2013 Period, gross profit was $35.7 million and gross margin was 30.2%. The largest driver of the decrease in the gross margin
as compared to the Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods was a $23.9 million charge to cost of sales for the recognition of two-thirds of the inventory
step up in connection with the MacDermid Acquisition. Excluding this charge, our gross margin was 50.4%. Changes in the product mix and the
average selling prices of products did not have a material impact on gross profit for the Successor 2013 Period.

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014

21

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014
Non-Cash Charges related to Preferred Stock Dividend Rights
The Series A Preferred Stock issued by Platform had dividend rights that were triggered upon the successful close of the MacDermid Acquisition.
We recognized a non-cash charge related to the fair value of preferred dividend rights of $172 million. The fair value of the preferred dividend
rights was measured based on significant inputs not observable in the market (Level 3 inputs). Key assumptions included the fair value of our
common stock and an assumption of volatility. The fair value was calculated using a Monte-Carlo simulation.

Selling, Technical, General and Administrative Expense
Selling, technical, general and administrative expense was $54.5 million for the Successor 2013 Period. As a percentage of net sales, selling,
technical, general and administrative expense was 46.1% for the Successor 2013 Period. Such expenses were higher than the Predecessor 2013
and 2012 Periods due primarily to acquisition-related charges of $15.2 million for professional fees in addition to incremental amortization expense
on newly valued intangible assets.

Research and Development Expense
Research and development expense for the Successor 2013 Period was $4.0 million and was the result of additional investments made to support
certain strategic projects. As a percentage of net sales, research and development expense was 3.4% for the Successor 2013 Period.

Operating Loss
Operating losses for the Performance Materials segment and the Graphic Solutions segment for the Successor 2013 Period were approximately
$109 million and $86.6 million, respectively. The operating losses were due to the segment allocation of adjustments recorded in connection with
the MacDermid Acquisition.

Restructuring Expense
Restructuring expense for the Successor 2013 Period was $0.8 million and was comprised of several small restructuring initiatives in an effort to
achieve cost savings.

Interest Expense, net
Net interest expense for the Successor 2013 Period was $5.4 million and primarily represents interest, inclusive of amortization of deferred financing
fees, on the first lien credit facility assumed in the MacDermid Acquisition of $5.5 million net of interest income.

Other (Expense) Income, net
Other expense for the Successor 2013 Period was $0.4 million due primarily to foreign exchange losses.

Income Tax Benefit
For the Successor 2013 Period, we recorded an income tax benefit of $5.8 million. Our effective tax rate was 2.89% income tax benefit on pre-tax
losses of $201.4 million. The effective tax rate was negatively impacted by the non-deductible charge related to preferred stock dividend rights of
$60.2 million and non-deductible transaction related costs of $4.2 million.

Predecessor 2013 Period (January 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013)
The following discussion and analysis compares the operating results of the Predecessor for the period January 1, 2013 to October 31, 2013, which
we refer to as the Predecessor 2013 Period, to the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net Sales
MacDermid’s net sales decreased in the Predecessor 2013 Period by $103.5 million, or 14.2%, as compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period.
The decrease in net sales was primarily attributable to comparing operating results for a 10-month period to a period consisting of a full twelve
months. Net sales of products that MacDermid has identified as new products, which represent opportunities to enter markets adjacent to those it
currently serves, was $65.6 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period, compared to $66.7 million for the Predecessor 2012 Period.
Net sales in the Performance Materials segment decreased by $77.7 million, or 13.9%, as compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period. The decrease
in net sales was primarily attributable to comparing operating results for a ten month period to one consisting of a full twelve months. Net sales in
the Graphic Solutions segment decreased by $25.8 million, or 15.0%, as compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period. The decrease in net sales was
primarily attributable to comparing operating results for a 10-month period to a period consisting of a full 12 months.
For the Predecessor 2013 Period, net sales in the Americas were $237 million. In Europe and Asia, net sales were $214 million and $177 million,
respectively, for the Predecessor 2013 Period.
Changes in the average selling prices of MacDermid’s products did not have a material impact on net sales for the Predecessor 2013 Period
compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period.
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Gross Profit
Gross profit decreased in the Predecessor 2013 Period by $32.2 million, or 9.1%, as compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period. The decrease in
gross profit was primarily attributable to comparing operating results for a ten month period to a period consisting of a full twelve months. Despite
lower gross profit, the gross margin of 51.4% in the Predecessor 2013 Period represented an increase of 280 basis points as compared to the
Predecessor 2012 Period gross margin of 48.6% primarily due to favorable changes in product mix.

Selling, Technical, General and Administrative Expense
Selling, technical, general and administrative expense decreased in the Predecessor 2013 Period by $7.1 million, or 3.3%, as compared to the
Predecessor 2012 Period. The decrease in selling, technical, general and administrative was primarily attributable to comparing operating results
for a 10-month period to a period consisting of a full twelve months. As a percentage of net sales, selling, technical, general and administrative
expense was 33.1% and 29.4% for the Predecessor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2012 Period, respectively. The Predecessor 2013 Period
includes $16.9 million of acquisition-related costs primarily comprised of professional fees in addition to compensation expense of $9.3 million
associated with recognition of legacy MacDermid Class C Junior shares representing 100% of expense for the vested shares due to the MacDermid
Acquisition being sufficiently probable. Excluding these charges, selling, technical, general and administrative expense as a percentage of sales
was 29.0%.

Research and Development Expense
Research and development expense decreased in the Predecessor 2013 Period by $5.2 million, or 20.6%, as compared to the year Predecessor
2012 Period. The decrease in research and development expense was primarily attributable to comparing operating results for a 10-month period
to a period consisting of a full twelve months. As a percentage of net sales, research and development expense was 3.2% and 3.4% for the
Predecessor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2012 Period, respectively. The slight decrease was due to higher investments made to support
certain strategic projects for the Predecessor 2012 Period that were non-recurring in the Predecessor 2013 Period.

Operating Profit
Operating profit for the Performance Materials segment in the Predecessor 2013 Period decreased by $8.5 million, or 10.4%, as compared to the
Predecessor 2012 Period. The decrease in operating profit was primarily attributable to the allocation of approximately $13.0 million of acquisitionrelated costs as previously discussed in addition to comparing operating results for a ten month period to one consisting of a full twelve months.
Partially offsetting these decreases were increases from higher sales of offshore industry products and higher margins on industrial products sold in
the United States and electronics industry products sold in Asia.
Operating profit for the Graphic Solutions segment in the Predecessor 2013 Period decreased by $14.8 million, or 45.0%, as compared to the
Predecessor 2012 Period. The decrease in operating profit was primarily attributable to the allocation of approximately $13.0 million of acquisitionrelated costs as previously discussed in addition to comparing operating results for a ten month period to a period consisting of a full twelve
months. Partially offsetting these decreases were increases in operating profit from higher net sales in the Americas and Europe, as discussed
above, and the continued market share gains related to new and higher margin products.

Restructuring Expense
Restructuring expense increased in the Predecessor 2013 Period by $3.3 million as compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period. The primary driver
of the increase was $2.2 million of restructuring charges related to the elimination of certain positions in the Graphic Solutions segment in the
Americas and $0.7 million related to the elimination of certain positions in the Performance Materials segment in Europe. MacDermid anticipates
that these headcount reductions will have annual cash cost savings of approximately $3.4 million going forward. Actual cash cost savings to be
realized depend on the timing of payments and many other factors, some of which are beyond MacDermid’s control, and could differ materially
from its estimates. MacDermid anticipates recognizing the estimated cash cost savings once all payments have been finalized related to these
restructuring initiatives.

Interest Expense, net
Net interest expense decreased in the Predecessor 2013 Period by $3.2 million, or 6.5%, as compared to the Predecessor 2012 Period. The
decrease in interest expense was primarily attributable to comparing operating results for a 10-month period to a period consisting of a full twelve
months. Partially offsetting the favorable impact due to the lower number of months of operations included in each period were higher debt
balances outstanding in the Predecessor 2013 Period.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt
In the Predecessor 2013 Period, we recorded a loss of $18.8 million related to the refinancing of tranche B and tranche C term loans and senior
subordinated notes. This amount consisted of $12.5 million of call premiums on the senior subordinated notes and $6.3 million of write-offs of
deferred financing fees related to the extinguished debt.
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Other (Expense) Income, net
The Predecessor 2013 Period included net other expense of $0.6 million compared to net other income of $5.0 million for the Predecessor 2012
Period. The primary components of net other expense in the Predecessor 2013 Period were foreign currency exchange losses of $1.4 million,
partially offset by a remeasurement gain of $1.1 million on Euro denominated debt, due to the fluctuation of the Euro compared to the U.S. Dollar.
The primary components of net other income for the Predecessor 2012 Period were a remeasurement gain of $8.4 million on foreign currency
denominated intercompany loans, partially offset by a remeasurement loss of $2.7 million on Euro denominated debt and foreign exchange losses
of $1.1 million.

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense was $13.0 million in the Predecessor 2013 Period compared to $24.7 million for the Predecessor 2012 Period. For the
Predecessor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2012 Period, MacDermid’s effective tax rate was 49.0% and 34.8%, respectively. The effective tax
rate for the Predecessor 2013 Period was increased by non-deductible transaction related costs of $1.9 million and an increase in the valuation
allowance for federal, state and foreign net operating losses and tax credits of $3.6 million. MacDermid is a U.S. based company with a statutory
income tax rate of 35%. MacDermid operates in various foreign countries, which have tax rates that are different from the U.S. statutory tax rate.
The effective tax rate for the Predecessor 2012 Period was impacted by the imposition of foreign taxes at different tax rates of $11.6 million, an
increase in uncertain tax positions of $5.7 million and an increase in the valuation allowance for federal, state and foreign net operating losses and
tax credits of $6.9 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our primary sources of liquidity during the year ended December 31, 2014 were cash raised from the May Private Placement, the October/
November Private Placement, the Warrant Exchange Offer, the Public Offering, proceeds from additional borrowings and available cash generated
from operations. Our primary uses of cash and cash equivalents are raw material purchases, salary expenses, acquisitions, capital expenditures
and debt service obligations. We believe that our cash and cash equivalent balance and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet
our working capital needs, capital expenditures and other business requirements for at least the next twelve months. Future acquisitions, however,
may require utilization of our revolving credit facility as well as future debt and equity offerings. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had $397
million and $123 million in cash and cash equivalents, respectively, in addition to availability under our line of credit of $173 million at December 31,
2014.
Of our $397 million and $123 million of cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, $130 million and $41.5 million
was held by our foreign subsidiaries. The majority of the cash held by foreign subsidiaries is generally available for the ongoing needs of our
operations. The laws of certain countries may limit our ability to utilize cash resources held in those countries for operations in other countries.
However, these laws are not likely to impact our liquidity in any material way. The operations of each foreign subsidiary generally fund such
subsidiary’s capital requirements. In the event that other foreign operations or operations within the United States require additional cash, we may
transfer cash between and among subsidiaries as needed so long as such transfers are in accordance with law. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
we had the ability to repatriate $5.9 million and $10.3 million, respectively, at our discretion from the foreign subsidiaries and branches while the
remaining balance of $125 million and $31.2 million, respectively, was held at subsidiaries in which earnings are considered permanently reinvested.
Repatriation of some of these funds could be subject to delay and could have potential tax consequences, principally with respect to withholding
taxes paid in foreign jurisdictions. If cash is repatriated from jurisdictions in which earnings are considered permanently reinvested we will be
required to accrue and pay U.S. income taxes on such repatriations.
On February 13, 2015, we completed the Arysta Acquisition for approximately $3.57 billion, consisting of $2.93 billion in cash, subject to working
capital and other adjustments, and $600 million of Platform’s Series B Preferred Stock issued to the Seller. The Series B Preferred Stock may be
converted into a maximum of 22,107,590 shares of our common stock. To the extent that the aggregate value of such 22,107,590 shares of common
stock is less than $600 million (based on a 10-day volume weighted average price), then, such shortfall would be payable in cash by Platform as
additional purchase price.
In connection with the Arysta Acquisition, we borrowed $500 million and €83.0 million under the New Tranche B-2 Term Loans and $160 million
under our Revolving Credit facility. In addition, on February 2, 2015, we completed the private offering of $1.10 billion aggregate principal amount of
6.50% USD Notes due 2022, and €350 million aggregate principal amount of 6.00% EUR Notes due 2023. Interest will be payable in cash, semiannually in arrears, on February 1 and August 1 of each year, beginning on August 1, 2015.
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The following is a summary of our cash flows provided by (used in) operating, investing and financing activities during the periods indicated:

(amounts in millions)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
the period

Year Ended
December 31,
2014

Period from Inception
(April 23, 2013) through
December 31,
2013

January 1, 2013
through
October 31,
2013

Year Ended
December 31,
2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

Cash provided by operating activities
Cash used in investing activities
Cash provided by (used in) financing
activities
Exchange rate impact on cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the
period

$

123.0

$

-

$

143.4

$

113.5

98.2

7.5

56.0

75.2

(1,982.7)

(920.3)

(7.8)

(18.3)

2,168.9

1,035.7

(104.3)

(27.2)

(10.1)

0.1

(0.2)

0.2

397.3

$

123.0

$

87.1

$

143.4

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Successor 2013 Period (Inception
(April 23, 2013) through December 31, 2013) and Predecessor 2013 Period
(January 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013)
Operating Activities
For the year ended December 31, 2014, we generated cash flows from operating activities of $98.2 million, compared to $7.5 million in cash for the
Successor 2013 Period and $56.0 million in cash for the Predecessor 2013 Period. The increase in cash flows provided by operations, for the year
ended December 31, 2014 is primarily due to an improvement in certain working capital balances (inclusive of accounts receivable, inventory and
accounts payable) of $19.1 million and $40.7 million when compared to the Successor and Predecessor 2013 periods, respectively. These changes
were mainly due to a reduction in inventory in Latin America from strong sales in the fourth quarter, in addition to increased cash collections mostly
in Europe. Additionally, depreciation and amortization were significantly higher than the Successor and Predecessor 2013 Periods, partially offset
by a higher deferred income tax benefit. In 2014, a non-cash adjustment to the long-term contingent liability of $29.1 million was also recorded due
to the achievement of the share price targets during the year.
The Company’s management uses days-sales-outstanding, or DSO, to measure how efficiently it manages the billing and collection of accounts
receivable. We calculate DSO by dividing the product of 360 and our accounts receivable balance by our annualized net sales. DSO was 75 days
at December 31, 2014 and 73 days at December 31, 2013. The increase in DSO was caused, in part, by the Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions, which
increased our accounts receivable balance by $208 million on the acquisition date.
The Company’s management also uses days-in-inventory, or DII, to calculate the efficiency at realizing inventories. We calculate DII by dividing
the product of 360 and our inventory balance, net of reserves, by our annualized cost of sales, excluding intercompany sales. At December 31,
2014 and 2013, DII was 81 days and 88 days, respectively. The Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions increased our inventory balance by $171 million on
the acquisition date. At December 31, 2014, net inventory included a fair value adjustment of $22.0 million, as $35.5 million was recognized in
our Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2013, net inventory included a fair value
adjustment of $12.0 million, as $23.9 million was recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations in connection with the MacDermid
Acquisition. Our products generally have shelf lives that exceed one year.

Investing Activities
Net cash flows used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $1.98 billion, compared to $920 million for the Successor
2013 Period and $7.8 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. During 2014, we used net cash of $1.36 billion to fund acquisitions, compared to net
cash of $922 million used during the Successor 2013 Period to fund the MacDermid Acquisition. Additionally, we deposited $600 million of cash
into an escrow account restricted to fund the Arysta Acquisition. Capital expenditures totaled $18.5 million (exclusive of $2.4 million of accrued
capital expenditures), compared to $2.3 million for the Successor 2013 Period and $8.9 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. During 2014, we
incurred approximately $8.3 million in software consulting and hardware costs for system integration project in connection with the CAS acquisition.
Approximately $2.4 million of these costs were not yet paid and included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2014.
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Financing Activities
Net cash flows from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $2.17 billion, compared to cash generated of $1.04 billion for the
Successor 2013 Period and cash used of $104 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period. During 2014, the cash was generated from net proceeds
received from the issuance of share of common stock totaling $1.51 billion and net proceeds from term loans related to our acquisitions totaling
$679 million. During the Successor 2013 Period, the cash was generated from proceeds received from the issuance of common stock, preferred
shares and warrants. During the Predecessor 2013 Period, borrowings totaled $1.10 billion (net of debt discounts of $5.5 million) which were used
primarily to (1) pay off tranche B and tranche C terms loans of approximately $380 million, (2) pay off senior subordinated notes of approximately
$355 million (inclusive of a call premium payment), (3) repurchase approximately $270 million of outstanding Series A Preferred Stock, (4) pay
accumulated dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock of approximately $230 million and (5) pay $13.6 million of financing costs. Additionally,
an advance of $33.3 million was sent by Platform Acquisition Holdings Limited and received by MacDermid prior to the MacDermid Acquisition.

Successor 2013 Period (April 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013)
Operating Activities
During the Successor 2013 Period, we generated $7.5 million in cash from operating activities primarily due to the favorable changes in working
capital of approximately $8.1 million.

Investing Activities
During the Successor 2013 Period, we used cash from investing activities of approximately $920 million primarily for the MacDermid Acquisition.

Financing Activities
During the Successor 2013 Period, we generated cash from financing activities of $1.04 billion from proceeds received from the issuance of
common and preferred shares and warrants.

Predecessor 2013 Period (January 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013)
Operating Activities
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, we generated cash from operating activities of $56.0 million which was primarily comprised of net income of
$13.5 million, adjusted for depreciation and amortization of $32.8 million, and $18.8 million related to the loss on extinguishment of debt partially
offset by unfavorable changes in working capital of $13.6 million.

Investing Activities
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, we used cash from investing activities of $7.8 million primarily for the purchase of capital expenditures of
$8.9 million.

Financing Activities
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, we used cash from financing activities of approximately $104 million as borrowings of $1.10 billion (net of debt
discounts of $5.5 million) were used primarily to (1) pay off tranche B and tranche C terms loans of approximately $380 million, (2) pay off senior
subordinated notes of approximately $355 million (inclusive of a call premium payment), (3) repurchase approximately $270 million of outstanding
Series A preferred Stock, (4) pay accumulated dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock of approximately $230 million and (5) pay $13.6 million of
financing costs. Additionally, an advance of $33.3 million was sent by Platform Acquisition Holdings Limited and received by MacDermid prior to the
MacDermid Acquisition.

Financial Borrowings
Credit Facilities
As of October 30, 2013, we became party to an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement consisting of (i) a $755 million First Lien Credit Facility
and (ii) a $50.0 million Revolving Credit Facility. A portion of our revolving credit facility not in excess of $15.0 million is available for the issuance of
letters of credit. As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately $744 million of indebtedness outstanding under our First Lien Credit Facility and
there were no borrowings under our revolving credit facility, other than stand-by letters of credit issued in the amount of $1.0 million which reduce
the borrowings available under our revolving credit facility.
On October 1, 2014, we and MacDermid, as borrowers, MacDermid Holdings, certain subsidiaries of MacDermid Holdings and Platform party
thereto, Barclays Bank PLC, as collateral agent and administrative agent, and the incremental lender entered into the Incremental Amendment
to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for an increase in the Term Loan Facility of the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement in an aggregate principal amount of $300 million. Except as set forth in the Incremental Amendment, such USD Incremental Loans
have identical terms as the existing Tranche B Term Loans and are otherwise subject to the provisions of the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement. The proceeds from the Incremental Amendment were used to finance the Agriphar Acquisition.
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Upon closing of the CAS Acquisition on November 3, 2014, the Further Amendments became effective pursuant to Amendment No. 2, and the
Borrowers (i) borrowed the New Tranche B Term Loans in an aggregate principal amount of $130 million through an increase in Platform’s existing
tranche B term loan facility, (ii) Platform’s existing U.S. Dollar revolving credit facility was increased by $62.5 million to $87.5 million and (iii) Platform’s
existing multicurrency revolving credit facility was increased by $62.5 million to $87.5 million. On the date of the CAS Acquisition, the Borrowers
borrowed $60 million and €55 million pursuant to the U.S. Dollar revolving credit facility and the multi-currency revolving credit facility, respectively,
which were settled by December 31, 2014. In addition, new Euro Tranche Term Loans denominated in Euro in an aggregate amount of €205 million
were borrowed by MAS Holdings and NAIP, serving as a United States co-borrower. Pursuant to the Further Amendments, MAS Holdings and
NAIP were added as borrowers under the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, certain foreign subsidiaries of the Borrowers, MAS
Holdings and NAIP became guarantors under the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, and in connection therewith, pledged certain
additional collateral to secure the obligations incurred under the Euro Tranche Term Loans and/or other loans incurred under the facility.
Our credit facilities contain various covenants, including limitations on additional indebtedness, dividends and other distributions, entry into new
lines of business, use of loan proceeds, capital expenditures, restricted payments, restrictions on liens, transactions with affiliates, amendments to
organizational documents, accounting changes, sale and leaseback transactions and dispositions. In addition, the revolving credit facility requires
us to comply with certain financial covenants, including consolidated leverage and interest coverage ratios and limitations on capital expenditures if
funding under the revolving credit facility exceeds 25% of the commitments at the end of any fiscal quarter ($43.8 million as of December 31, 2014.)
As of December 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with the debt covenants contained in our credit facilities.
On October 20, 2014, Platform entered into a the Debt Commitment Letter with Barclays Bank PLC, Credit Suisse AG, Credit Suisse Securities (USA)
LLC, Nomura Corporate Funding Americas, LLC, Nomura Securities International, LLC, UBS AG, Stamford Branch and UBS Securities LLC for (i) a
$1.6 billion Term Facility to be incurred under the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and (ii) senior unsecured bridge loans in an
aggregate principal amount of $750 million for the purposes of financing the Arysta Acquisition and the fees and expenses in connection therewith,
on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Debt Commitment Letter. The lenders’ obligation to provide the Facilities was subject
to a number of customary conditions precedents. Furthermore, Platform was under no obligation to borrow under the Facilities and, in connection
with the proposed Arysta Acquisition, anticipated seeking a number of alternative financings for the proposed Arysta Acquisition in lieu of such
financings, including, but not limited to, equity offerings (including the Proposed Public Offering), debt offerings and other borrowings under the
Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
In June 2013, MacDermid had entered into a $360 million second lien facility that was repaid in connection with the MacDermid Acquisition.

Senior Subordinated Notes
On April 12, 2007, MacDermid issued $350.0 million of senior subordinated notes with a fixed interest rate of 9.50% at par. The senior subordinated
notes were called and retired in the Predecessor 2013 Period.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
We own most of our major manufacturing facilities, but we do lease certain office, manufacturing factories and warehouse space and land, as well
as other equipment primarily under non-cancelable operating leases.
Summarized in the table below are our obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2014:
Payment Due by Period
2015

(amounts in millions)

14.7

$

14.6

$

Total

14.5

$ 1,342.0

3.5

3.4

15.5

42.4

Interest payments(3)

63.6

63.3

62.5

62.3

61.3

29.5

342.5

$

$

2020 and
Thereafter

4.4

Total cash contractual obligations

15.0

2019

6.3

Other long term obligations(5)

$

2018

9.3

Long term contingent consideration(4)

15.1

2017

Operating leases(2)

Long-term debt

(1)

$

2016

$

1,415.9

-

-

-

-

-

100.0

100.0

21.5

21.5

21.5

38.7

-

-

103.2

1,487.0

$ 2,004.0

109.5

$

106.1

$

103.1

$

119.1

$

79.2

$
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(1)

(1)

(2)

(2)

(3)

(3)

(4)

(4)

(5)

(5)

Reflects the principal payments on the Credit Facilities.
Amounts are net of sublease income on operating leases.
Amounts are based on currently applicable interest rates in the case of variable interest rate debt.
Reflects the expected payout of 100% of the contingent purchase price relating to the MacDermid Acquisition in December 2021.
Other long term obligations include asset retirement obligations and amounts committed under legally enforceable supply agreements.

To the extent we can reliably determine when payments will occur pertaining to unrecognized tax benefit liabilities, the related amount will be
included in the table above. However, due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential future cash flows associated with
the $27.7 million of such liabilities at December 31, 2014, we are unable to make a reliable estimate of when (if at all) amounts may be paid to the
respective taxing authorities.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
We use customary off-balance sheet arrangements, such as operating leases and letters of credit, to finance our business. None of these
arrangements has or is reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or
expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources that is material to investors.

Significant Accounting Policies and Critical Estimates
Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 to the audited consolidated financial statements. As disclosed in Note 1,
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that impact the
reported amounts and accompanying disclosures. Such decisions include the selection of the appropriate accounting principles to be applied
and assumptions upon which accounting estimates are based. We apply judgment based on our understanding and analysis of the relevant
circumstances to reach these decisions. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Accordingly, actual
results could differ significantly from the estimates applied.
Those areas requiring the greatest degree of management judgment or deemed most critical to our financial reporting involve:

Stock-based Compensation
We expense employee stock-based compensation over the requisite service period based on the estimated grant-date fair value of the awards
and forfeiture rates, if any. Compensation cost is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the awards
at the grant date. A corresponding increase to stockholders’ equity is recorded equal to the amount of the compensation expense charge. The
assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based awards represent our best estimates and involve inherent uncertainties and the
application of judgment. The amount of the compensation expense is based on the estimated fair value of the awards of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably measurable.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue, including freight charged to customers, net of applicable rebates, estimates for sales returns and allowances
and discounts, when the earnings process is complete. This occurs when products are shipped to or received by the customer in accordance with
the terms of the agreement, title and risk of loss have been transferred, collectability is probable and pricing is fixed or determinable. Shipping
terms are customarily “FOB shipping point” and do not include right of inspection or acceptance provisions. Equipment sales arrangements may
include right of inspection or acceptance provisions, in which case revenue is deferred until these provisions are satisfied.

Earnings (Loss) per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share of common stock excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per ordinary share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities
or other contracts to issue ordinary shares were exercised or converted into ordinary shares or resulted in the issuance of ordinary shares that then
shared in the earnings of the entity. Since we have only incurred losses, basic and diluted losses per share are the same.

Fair Value Measurement
We record cash equivalents at fair value. ASC Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,” establishes a fair value hierarchy for those
instruments measured at fair value that distinguishes between assumptions based on market data (observable inputs) and our own assumptions
(unobservable inputs).
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The hierarchy consists of three levels:
Level 1 —Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and
liabilities in non-active markets; and model derived valuations whose inputs or significant valuation drivers are
observable.
Level 3 —significant inputs of the valuation model are unobservable and/or reflect our own market assumptions.
We used Level 1 fair value hierarchy assumptions to measure the fair value of all of our cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2014.

Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level annually, or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be
impaired, in accordance with ASC 350-20 “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other”. Our reporting units are determined based upon our organizational
structure in place at that date of the goodwill impairment test. For goodwill, a two-step impairment test is performed at the reporting unit level. In
the first step of impairment testing, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared to its carrying value. The fair value of each reporting unit is
determined based on the present value of discounted future cash flows. Excluding certain nonrecurring charges, the discounted cash flows are
prepared based upon cash flows at the reporting unit level for the twelve months ended preceding the date of impairment testing. The cash flow
model utilized in the goodwill impairment test involves significant judgments related to future growth rates, discount rates and tax rates, among
other considerations. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that reporting unit, goodwill is
not impaired and no further testing is required. If the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the
reporting unit, the second step of the impairment test is performed to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment charge is recorded equal to the difference. Platform performed
its annual goodwill assessment on October 1, and no goodwill impairment charges were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014.
However, in performing the first step of the goodwill impairment test for the year ended December 31, 2014, the excess of the fair value of the
Offshore and ASF Americas reporting units over their carrying values were 7.6% and 11.1% respectively. Goodwill assigned to the Offshore and ASF
Americas reporting units totaled $364 million and $78.3 million, respectively.
We determine the fair value of these reporting units as follows:
• Valuation Techniques - we use discounted cash flow analyses, which require assumptions about short and long-term net cash flows,
growth rates, as well as discount rates. Additionally, we consider guideline company and guideline transaction information, where
available, to aid in the valuation of the reporting units.
• Growth Assumptions - Multi-year financial forecasts are developed for each reporting unit by considering several key business drivers
such as new business initiatives, client service and retention standards, market share changes, historical performance, and industry and
economic trends, among other considerations. The annual revenue growth rates used in the initial seven year period range from (0.7%)
to 9% for Offshore and 2.3% to 5.9% for ASF Americas. The long-term growth rates used in determining the terminal value of the Offshore
and ASF Americas reporting units were estimated at 3.5% and 3.0%, respectively based on management’s assessment of the minimum
expected terminal growth rate of each reporting unit, as well as broader economic considerations such as gross domestic product and
inflation.
• Discount Rate Assumptions - Discount rates are estimated based on a Weighted Average Cost of Capital, or WACC. The WACC combines
the required return on equity, based on a Modified Capital Asset Pricing Model, which considers the risk-free interest rate, market risk
premium, beta, small stock risk premium and a company specific risk premium, with the cost of debt, based on BBB rated corporate
bonds, adjusted using an income tax factor. The calculation resulted in a WACC rate of 10.5% for both offshore and ASF Americas.
• Estimated Fair Value and Sensitivities - The estimated fair value of each reporting unit is derived from the valuation techniques described
above. The estimated fair value of each reporting unit is analyzed in relation to numerous market and historical factors, including current
economic and market conditions, company-specific growth opportunities, and guideline company information.
The estimated fair value of the reporting unit is highly sensitive to changes in these estimates and assumptions; therefore, in some instances,
changes in these assumptions could impact whether the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than its carrying value. We perform sensitivity
analyses around these assumptions in order to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and the resulting estimated fair values. Based on
the sensitivity analysis performed for the Offshore reporting unit, a 1% decrease it the terminal growth rate or a 1% increase in the WACC rate would
have resulted in the carrying value of the net assets to exceed their fair value, making it necessary to proceed to the second step of the impairment
test. For ASF Americas, a 1% decrease it the terminal growth rate does not result in the carrying value exceeding their fair value, however, a 1%
increase in the WACC rate would have resulted in the carrying value of the net assets to exceed their fair value, making it necessary to proceed
to the second step of the impairment test. Ultimately, if any of these assumptions do not materialize in a manner consistent with the Company’s
expectations, including discounts rates, annual revenue growth rates and terminal growth rates, there is risk of impairment to recorded goodwill.
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For the Predecessor, annual impairment testing related to goodwill was performed on April 1, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and no reporting units
had lower estimated fair values than carrying values in the first step of goodwill impairment evaluation; therefore, no further testing was performed
and no goodwill impairment charges were recorded.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
Indefinite-lived intangible assets (including our tradenames) are reviewed for potential impairment on an annual basis when events or circumstances
indicate that these indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired by comparing the estimated fair value of the indefinite-lived purchased
intangible assets to the carrying value. An impairment charge is recognized when the estimated fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is
less than the carrying value. We use the “relief from royalty” method to test trade name intangible assets for impairment. The primary assumptions
in these calculations are our net sales projections, growth rates and the WACC, that we apply to determine the present value of these cash flows.
The WACC combines the required return on equity, based on a Modified Capital Asset Pricing Model, which considers the risk-free interest rate,
market risk premium, beta, small stock risk premium and a company specific risk premium, with the cost of debt, based on BBB rates corporate
bonds, adjusted using an income tax factor. We then apply a royalty rate to the projected net sales. The royalty rate is based on market royalty
rates and royalties we pay to outside parties. The resulting royalty savings are reduced by income taxes resulting from the annual royalty savings at
a market participant corporate income tax rate to arrive at the after-tax royalty savings associated with owning the trade names. Finally, the present
value of the estimated annual after-tax royalty savings for each year is used to estimate the fair value of the trade names. Assumptions concerning
net sales are impacted by global and local economic conditions in the various markets we serve as well as uncertainties related to sales growth,
economic growth, future product development and cost estimates.

Long-Lived Assets Including Finite-Lived Intangible Assets
Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which currently range from eight to 30 years for
customer lists, seven to 14 years for developed technology, one to five years for non-compete agreements and five to 20 years for tradenames. If
circumstances require a long-lived asset group to be tested for possible impairment, we first determine whether the estimated undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset plus net proceeds expected from disposition of the asset, if any, are less than the carrying
value of the asset. When an impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its estimated fair value based on a discounted
cash flow approach or, when available and appropriate, based on comparable market values.

Income Taxes
We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement bases and the tax bases of assets,
liabilities, net operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards. A valuation allowance is required to be recognized to reduce the recorded deferred
tax asset to the amount that will more likely than not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income by jurisdiction during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible or when carry-forwards can be
utilized. We consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable and tax planning strategies in this assessment. If
these estimates and related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record additional valuation allowances against our deferred
tax assets resulting in additional income tax expense. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences and loss carryforwards are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date of such
change.
As a result of the Arysta Acquisition, the foreign tax credit carryover of $27.2 million currently recognized will no longer be realized. It is more likely
than not that a valuation allowance of $27.2 million will be raised in the first quarter of 2015.
We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in evaluating its uncertain tax
positions and determining its provision for income taxes. The first step in evaluating the tax position for recognition is to determine the amount of
evidence that supports a favorable conclusion for the tax position upon audit. In order to recognize the tax position, we must determine whether it
is more likely than not that the position is sustainable. The final requirement is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that has a more than
50% chance of being realized upon final settlement.
The Company accrues for non-income tax contingencies when it is probable that a liability to a taxing authority has been incurred and the amount
of the contingency can be reasonably estimated.

Employee Benefits and Pension Obligations
Amounts recognized in our audited consolidated financial statements related to pension and other postretirement benefits are determined from
actuarial valuations. Inherent in such valuations are assumptions including expected return on plan assets, discount rates at which the liabilities
could be settled, rates of increase in future compensation levels, mortality rates. These assumptions are updated annually and are disclosed
in Note 7 to our audited consolidated financial statements. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, actual results that differ from the assumptions are
accumulated in other comprehensive income and amortized over future periods and, therefore, affect expense recognized.
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We consider a number of factors in determining and selecting assumptions for the overall expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. We
consider the historical long-term return experience of our assets, the current and expected allocation of our plan assets, and expected longterm rates of return. We derive these expected long-term rates of return with the assistance of our investment advisors. We base our expected
allocation of plan assets on a diversified portfolio consisting of domestic and international equity securities, fixed income, real estate and alternative
asset classes. The measurement date used to determine pension and other postretirement benefits is December 31, at which time the minimum
contribution level for the following year is determined.
With respect to U.S. plans, our investment policies incorporate an asset allocation strategy that emphasizes the long-term growth of capital and
acceptable asset volatility as long as it is consistent with the volatility of the relevant market indexes. The investment policies attempt to achieve a
mix of approximately 75% of plan investments for long-term growth and 25% for near-term benefit payments. We believe this strategy is consistent
with the long-term nature of plan liabilities and ultimate cash needs of the plans. Plan assets consist primarily of corporate bond mutual funds,
limited partnership interests, listed stocks and cash. The corporate bond mutual funds held by the pension plan include primarily corporate bonds
from companies from diversified industries located in the U.S. The listed stocks are investments in large-cap and mid-cap companies located in the
U.S. The assets from the limited partnership investments primarily include listed stocks located in the U.S. The weighted average asset allocation
of the Pension Plan was 25% equity securities and managed equity funds, 58% limited partnership interests, 9% bond mutual fund holdings and 8%
cash at December 31, 2014. ROA assumptions are determined annually based on a review of the asset mix as well as individual ROA performances,
benchmarked against indexes such as the S&P 500 Index and the Russell 2000 Index. In determining an assumed rate of return on plan assets, we
consider past performance and economic forecasts for the types of investments held by the Pension Plan. The asset allocation strategy and ROA
assumptions for the non-U.S. plans are determined based on similar set of criteria adapted for local investments, inflation rates and in certain cases
specific government requirements.

JOBS Act
As a publicly traded company, we are required to document and test our internal control procedures in order to satisfy the requirements of Section
404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, which requires, beginning with this Annual Report, annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting. As we no longer qualify as an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act, Section 404 will additionally
require, commencing with our annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2015, a report by our independent registered public accounting firm that
addresses the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Income Statement – Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20) - In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-01, “Simplifying
Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Items.” This update eliminates the requirement for entities to identify
extraordinary events and transactions, those being both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence, and separately classify, present and
disclose such items. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, but entities
may apply the guidance retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. The Company does not expect this ASU to have a
material impact on its financial statements.
Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) - In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-16, “Determining Whether the Host Contract in a
Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akin to Debt or to Equity (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force).”
Under current practice, there were predominantly two methods used to evaluate whether the nature of the host contract in a hybrid financial
instrument is more akin to debt or equity: one considered all the features including the embedded and the other excluded the embedded derivative
in the consideration. This update eliminates the difference in practice by clarify that the evaluation should be based on all the instrument’s features,
including the embedded derivative, and that no single term or feature would necessarily determine the economic characteristics and risks of
the host contract. The guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and is applied in a modified
retrospective basis to existing hybrid financial instruments issued in the form of a share as of the beginning of our fiscal year 2016. The Company is
in the process of evaluating the impact of this new ASU.

Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) - In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, “Accounting for Share-Based Payments
When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period (a consensus of the
FASB Emerging Issues Task Force),” The amendments require that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after
the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company does not expect this ASU to have a material impact on its financial statements.
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606),” which (1) removes inconsistencies and weaknesses in revenue requirements, (2) provides a more robust framework for
addressing revenue issues, (3) improves comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets,
(4) provides more useful information to users of financial statements through improved disclosure requirements, and (5) simplifies the preparation
of financial statements by reducing the number of requirements to which an entity must refer. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact of this new ASU.
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Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of Platform.
Platform may from time to time make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking,” including statements contained in this Annual Report,
other filings with the SEC and in reports to its stockholders. Such forward-looking statements include Platform’s adjusted earnings per share,
expected or estimated revenue, the outlook for Platform’s markets and the demand for its products, estimated sales, segment earnings, net
interest expense, income tax provision, restructuring and other charges, cash flows from operations, consistent profitable growth, free cash flow,
future revenues and gross operating and adjusted EBITDA margin improvement requirement and expansion, organic net sales growth, bank debt
covenants, the success of new product introductions, growth in costs and expenses, the impact of commodities and currencies and Platform’s
ability to manage its risk in these areas, and the impact of acquisitions, divestitures, restructuring and other unusual items, including Platform’s ability
to successfully complete as well as integrate and obtain the anticipated results and synergies from its consummated and future acquisitions. These
statements are made on the basis of management’s views and assumptions as of the time the statements are made and Platform undertakes no
obligation to update these statements. There can be no assurance, however, that its expectations will necessarily come to pass.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Foreign Currency Risk
We conduct a significant portion of our business in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, our financial reporting currency. In 2014, approximately
70% of net sales were denominated in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Generally, each of our operations utilizes the local currency of the
operation as its functional currency, the currency in which it incurs operating expenses and collects accounts receivable. Our business is exposed
to foreign currency risk primarily from changes in the exchange rate between the U.S. Dollar and the following currencies: Euro, British Pound
Sterling, Chinese Yuan, Brazilian Real and Hong Kong Dollar. As a result, our operating results could be affected by foreign currency exchange rate
volatility relative to the U.S. Dollar.
Except for hedging exchange rate risk related to acquisitions, generally we have not utilized foreign currency hedges to mitigate exchange rate
risk between the U.S. Dollar and the foreign currencies of our operations other than with respect to the British Pound Sterling. Approximately
35% of the sales of our Autotype foreign subsidiary, which is based in the United Kingdom and utilizes the British Pound Sterling as its functional
currency, are denominated in U.S. Dollars. For that reason, we utilize foreign currency hedges between the British Pound Sterling and the U.S.
Dollar to help mitigate the risk of a stronger British Pound Sterling for our Autotype foreign subsidiary. Accordingly, in each of the last three years,
we contracted with a financial institution to deliver U.S. Dollars and to receive British Pound Sterling at a fixed exchange rate. As of December 31,
2014, the aggregate U.S. Dollar notional amount of foreign currency forward contracts was $14.0 million. These contracts were all denominated
in British Pound Sterling. The fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts at December 31, 2014, was a $0.1 million current liability. Foreign
currently exchange losses totaled $3.0 million, $0.6 million and $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, the Successor 2013 Period and
the Predecessor 2013 Period, respectively. As we continue to expand our international presence through acquisitions, we continue to review a full
range of options focused on mitigating foreign currency exchange rate risk.
Our policies prohibit us from speculating in financial instruments for profit on exchange rate price fluctuations, from trading in currencies for which
there are no underlying exposures, and from entering into trades for any currency to intentionally increase the underlying exposure.

Interest Rate Risk
We are also exposed to interest rate risk associated with our cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, long-term debt, and other financing
commitments. At December 31, 2014, we had cash and cash equivalents of $397 million and total debt of $1.42 billion, including approximately $1.41
billion of variable interest rate debt based on the 1-month LIBOR. Our remaining variable interest rate debt is subject to interest rate risk, because
its interest payments will fluctuate as the underlying interest rates change from market changes. A 100 basis point increase in LIBOR rates would
result in a higher interest expense of approximately $2.5 million annually.

Counterparty Risk
Outstanding financial derivative instruments expose us to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to the agreements. The
credit exposure related to these financial instruments is represented by the fair value of contracts with an obligation fair value as of December 31,
2014. On a periodic basis, we review the credit ratings of our counterparties and adjust our exposure as deemed appropriate. As of December 31,
2014, we believe that our exposure to counterparty risk is immaterial.
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Commodity Price Risk
Some raw materials and supplies are subject to price and supply fluctuations caused by market dynamics. Our strategic sourcing initiatives are
focused on mitigating the impact of commodity price risk. Although some of our commercial agreements allow us to pass on certain unusual
increases in component and raw material costs to our customers in limited situations, we may not be fully compensated for such increased costs.
To a lesser extent, we also are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of certain utilities and services, such as electricity, natural gas, and freight.
Periodically, we may employ forward metals contracts or other financial instruments to hedge commodity price or other price risks. Such contracts
are generally designated as normal purchases and accounted for similar to other inventory purchases as defined in ASC 815. We continue to
review a full range of business options focused on strategic risk management for all raw material commodities. Any failure by our suppliers to
provide acceptable raw materials or supplies could adversely affect our production schedules and contract profitability. We assess qualification of
suppliers and continually monitor them to control risk associated with such supply base reliance.
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Market and Market Price
Our ordinary shares (which were converted into shares of common stock upon the Domestication) were previously listed for trading on the London
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “PAH” in U.S. Dollars. Our shares began trading on the London Stock Exchange on May 17, 2013 and were
traded until October 10, 2013 when trading was halted due to the announcement of the then-pending MacDermid Acquisition. The following table
sets forth the quarterly range of high and low reported sale prices of our ordinary shares as reported on the London Stock Exchange for the periods
indicated:
Period

High

Low

Second Quarter 2013 (May 17, 2013 to June 30, 2013)

$

11.00

$

Third Quarter 2013

$

10.80

$

10.05
10.13

Fourth Quarter 2013 (through October 10, 2013)

$

10.60

$

10.46

Our common stock commenced trading under the ticker symbol “PAH” on the NYSE on January 23, 2014. The following table sets forth the closing
high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE for the periods indicated:

Period

High

Low

First Quarter 2014 (from January 23, 2014 to March 31, 2014)

$

21.82

$

13.83

Second Quarter 2014

$

28.70

$

19.38

Third Quarter 2014

$

27.85

$

24.71

Fourth Quarter 2014

$

27.74

$

20.97

Holders
As of March 23, 2015, we had 418 registered holders of record of our common stock, par value $0.01 per share.

Dividends
We have not declared or paid any dividends on the shares of our common stock (or the ordinary shares from which the shares of our common stock
were converted) since our inception and have no current plans to pay dividends on such shares of common stock in the foreseeable future. In
addition, we are a holding company and as a result, our ability to pay dividends is highly dependent on receipts of funds from our subsidiaries.
The holders of our Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock in the form of shares of our common
stock. On December 31, 2014, we approved a stock dividend of 10,050,290 shares of our common stock with respect to the Series A Preferred
Stock, which represented 20% of the appreciation of the market price of our common stock over the Initial Public Offering price of $10.00 multiplied
by the total Initial Public Offering shares. The dividend price was $22.85 (calculated based upon the average of the last ten trading days of the
year’s volume weighted average share prices) and the shares were issued on January 2, 2015 based upon the volume weighted average price of
$23.16 on December 31, 2014. In subsequent years, the dividend amount will be calculated based on the appreciated stock price compared to the
highest dividend price previously used in calculating the Series A Preferred Stock dividends. We are subject to certain restrictions in our Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement and the indenture governing our senior notes which may prohibit or limit our ability to pay dividends. Additionally,
for so long as any shares of Series B Preferred Stock are outstanding, no dividend or distribution may be declared or paid or set aside for payment
on all or substantially all the outstanding shares of any other series of preferred stock, other than the Series A Preferred Stock, or common stock
without the prior vote or written consent of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of Series B Preferred Stock then outstanding, voting
separately as a single class. Finally, we may become subject to additional restrictions in any additional indebtedness we may incur, which may
prohibit or limit our ability to pay dividends.

34 Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014
Performance Graph
The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such
information be incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act or Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company
specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.
This graph compares total stockholder return on the Company’s common stock from January 23, 2014 (first day of trading on the NYSE) through
December 31, 2014 with the cumulative total return of (a) the Standard and Poor’s (“S&P”) 500 Index, and (b) the S&P 500 Specialty Chemicals
Index, assuming a $100 investment made on January 23, 2014. The stock performance shown on this graph is based on historical data and is not
indicative of, or intended to forecast, possible future performance of the Company’s common stock.

Platform Indexed Stock Performance
Comparison of 11 Month Cumulative Total Return*
Among Platform Specialty Products Corporation, the S&P 500 Index,
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
• pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
Platform’s assets;
• provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Platform’s financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of Platform are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
our management and directors; and
• provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of Platform’s
assets that could have a material effect on its financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
As required by Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, management assessed the effectiveness of Platform’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2014. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth in the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
Based on our assessment and the above criteria, management concluded that Platform maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2014.
Platform’s evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 did not include the internal control over financial reporting
related to Agriphar and CAS because they were acquired by Platform in purchase business combinations consummated during the 4th quarter
of 2014. Total assets, excluding goodwill and intangible assets recognized in purchase accounting, and sales for these acquisitions represent
approximately 27.0% and 10.4%, respectively, of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31,
2014 (see Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements).
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Platform Specialty Products Corporation:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive (loss) income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the
period from inception (April 23, 2013) through December 31, 2013 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Platform Specialty
Products Corporation and its subsidiaries (Successor) at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the period from inception (April 23, 2013) through December 31, 2013 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and for the period from inception (April 23, 2013) through December 31, 2013 listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in
all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Stamford, Connecticut
March 30, 2015

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MacDermid, Incorporated:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows of MacDermid, Incorporated and subsidiaries (the “Company”) for the ten-month period ended October 31, 2013 and the year ended
December 31, 2012. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule
as of and for the ten-month period ended October 31, 2013 and as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012. These consolidated financial
statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash
flows of MacDermid, Incorporated and subsidiaries for the ten-month period ended October 31, 2013 and the year ended December 31, 2012, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material aspects, the information set forth therein.

Hartford, Connecticut
February 11, 2014
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(In millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Year Ended
December 31,

Period from
Inception
(April 23, 2013)
through December 31,

January 1, 2013
through
October 31,

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

2013

2013

2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

Gross profit

843.2
446.6

$

118.2
82.5

$

627.7
304.9

$

731.2
376.1

396.6

35.7

322.8

355.1

357.9

54.5

207.6

214.6

26.2
3.0

172.0
4.0
0.8

19.9
3.6

25.1
0.3

387.1

231.3

231.1

240.0

9.5

(195.6)

91.7

115.1

(37.9)
(2.5)

(5.4)
(0.4)

(45.9)
(18.8)
(0.5)

(49.1)
5.0

(40.4)

(5.8)

(65.2)

(44.1)

(30.9)
6.7

(201.4)
5.8

26.5
(13.0)

71.0
(24.7)

(24.2)

(195.6)

13.5

46.3

(5.7)

1.4

(0.3)

(0.3)

(29.9)

(194.2)

13.2

46.0

(232.7)

-

-

-

-

-

(22.4)

(44.6)

Net (loss) income attributable to common
shares

$ (262.6)

$ (194.2)

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic
Diluted

$
$

(1.94)
(1.94)

$
$

(2.10)
(2.10)

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

Weighted average shares outstanding (In
millions)
Basic
Diluted

$
$

135.3
135.3

$
$

92.6
92.6

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

Operating expenses:
Selling, technical, general and
administrative
Non-cash charge related to preferred
stock dividend rights
Research and development
Restructuring
Total operating expenses
Operating profit (loss)
Other (expense) income:
Interest, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other (expense) income, net
Other expense
(Loss) income before income taxes, noncontrolling interests and dividends on
preferred shares
Income tax benefit (provision)
Net (loss) income
Net loss (income) attributable to the noncontrolling interests
Net (loss) income attributable to
shareholders
Accrued stock dividend on Founder’s
preferred shares
Accrued payment-in-kind dividend on
cumulative preferred shares

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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$

(9.2)

$

1.4

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014

(In millions)

Net (loss) income

Year Ended
December 31,

Period from Inception
(April 23, 2013)
through December 31,

January 1, 2013
through
October 31,

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

2013

2013

2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net
of tax
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Foreign currency translation
adjustments arising during the
period
Pension and post-retirement plans
Net actuarial (loss) gain arising
during the period

(24.2)

$ (195.6)

(121.4)

(0.6)

(6.1)

(5.5)

(25.3)

3.8

28.4

(17.4)

-

-

-

(0.4)

Prior service cost recognized during
the year
Net (gain) loss recognized during
the year
Translation adjustment
Tax benefit (expense)

$

13.5

$

46.3

-

(0.2)

2.0

1.2

0.6

-

0.3

(0.7)

(24.7)
8.0

3.6
(1.8)

30.7
(10.1)

(17.3)
5.4

(16.7)

1.8

20.6

(11.9)

-

-

0.2

0.3

-

-

0.2

0.3

-

-

(0.1)

(0.1)

-

-

0.1

0.2

(0.2)

0.2

(0.3)

3.0

(0.2)
0.1

0.2
(0.1)

(0.3)
0.1

3.0
(1.1)

(0.1)

0.1

(0.2)

1.9

(138.2)

1.3

14.4

(15.3)

(162.4)

(194.3)

27.9

31.0

0.7

1.4

(0.3)

(0.3)

Unrealized gain on available for sale
securities
Unrealized holding gain on
available for sale securities
Tax benefit (expense)

Derivative financial instrument
revaluation
Unrealized hedging (loss) gain
arising during the period
Tax benefit (expense)

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net
of tax
Comprehensive (loss) income
Comprehensive (loss) income
attributable to the non-controlling
interests
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to shareholders
Accrued stock dividend on Founder’s
preferred shares

(163.1)

(195.7)

28.2

31.3

(232.7)

-

-

-

Accrued payment-in-kind dividend on
cumulative preferred shares

-

-

(22.4)

(44.6)

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable
to Common Shareholders

$

(395.8)

$

(195.7)

$

5.8

$

(13.3)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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(In millions, except share amounts)

Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $9.6 and $10.1 at December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses & other current assets

December 31,

December 31,

2014

2013

$

397.3
600.0

$

123.0
-

327.3
205.8
48.0

140.5
89.6
30.4

1,578.4

383.5

175.0
1,405.3
1,341.5
57.4

136.2
989.8
720.3
30.4

4,557.6

2,260.2

106.7
31.3
15.1
16.7
14.3
58.5

56.2
22.7
8.0
6.7
26.1

242.6

119.7

1,400.8
38.8
202.3
63.9
56.6

744.3
25.1
169.8
34.8
30.4

2,005.0

1,124.1

-

21.0

-

-

Common shares, 400,000,000 and 200,000,000 shares authorized, 182,066,980 and
103,571,941 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
10,050,290 shares declared for stock dividend at December 31, 2014
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

1.9
2,812.4
(224.1)
(130.6)

1,212.0
(194.2)
1.3

Total stockholders equity
Non-controlling interests

2,459.6
93.0

1,019.1
96.0

2,552.6

1,115.1

$ 4,557.6

$ 2,260.2

Total current assets
Property, plant & equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages and employee benefits
Current installments of long-term debt
Accrued income taxes payable
Accrued acquisition payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Long-term retirement benefits, less current portion
Long-term deferred income taxes
Long-term contingent consideration
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 16)
Redeemable 401(k) plan interest
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred shares (2,000,000 designated as Series A), 5,000,000 shares authorized, 2,000,000
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013

Total equity
Total liabilities, redeemable 401(k) plan interest and stockholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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(In millions)

Year Ended
December 31,

Period from Inception
(April 23, 2013)
through December 31,

January 1, 2013
through
October 31,

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

2013

2013

2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)
income from operations to net cash
flows provided by operating activities:
Non-cash charge related to preferred
stock dividend rights
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Manufacturer’s profit in inventory
adjustment
Non-cash fair value adjustment to
contingent consideration
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Restructuring charges
Provision for bad debt
Equity compensation expense
Other, net

$

Changes in assets & liabilities, net of
acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other assets and liabilities
Net cash flows provided by operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of non-financial
assets
Acquisition of business, net of cash
acquired
Cash restricted to fund acquisition
Purchases of marketable securities
Redemption of marketable securities
Other, net
Net cash flows used in investing
activities

$

(24.2)

$

(195.6)

$

13.5

$

46.3

88.0
(43.2)

172.0
12.8
(7.5)

32.8
(4.8)

42.2
(8.4)

35.5

23.9

-

-

29.1
1.5
1.2
1.3
3.2

(0.7)
0.8
0.3
0.5
(0.9)

18.8
3.6
2.1
9.3
1.4

0.3
1.7
0.2
(1.7)

4.9
11.4
10.9
(15.7)
(5.7)

6.2
2.1
(0.2)
(8.7)
2.5

(11.3)
(4.6)
2.4
3.9
(11.1)

(4.9)
0.8
3.3
(3.6)
(1.0)

98.2

7.5

56.0

75.2

(18.5)

(2.3)

(8.9)

(13.4)

0.6

4.4

2.1

0.1

(1,361.8)
(600.0)
(3.0)

(922.4)
(359.9)
359.9
-

(1.0)

(5.1)
0.1

(1,982.7)

$ (920.3)

$

(7.8)

$

(18.3)
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(In millions)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of debt, net of
discount and fees
Repayments of borrowings
Repurchase of Series A preferred stock
Advance from Platform Acquisition
Holdings Limited
Proceeds from issuance of preferred
stock, net
Proceeds from issuance of common
stock, net
Payment of accumulated dividends on
Series A preferred stock
Payment of financing fees
Other, net

Year Ended
December 31,

Period from Inception
(April 23, 2013)
through December 31,

January 1, 2013
through
October 31,

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

2013

2013

2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

678.8
(9.1)
-

$

0.2
(2.2)
-

$

1,109.5
(732.9)
(270.2)

$

(26.1)
-

-

-

33.3

-

-

20.0

-

-

1,512.6

1,019.5

-

-

(13.2)
(0.2)

(1.8)
-

(229.8)
(13.6)
(0.6)

(0.3)
(0.8)

2,168.9

1,035.7

(104.3)

(27.2)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents

(10.1)

0.1

(0.2)

0.2

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

274.3

123.0

(56.3)

29.9

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period

123.0

-

143.4

113.5

Net cash flows provided by (used in)
financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

397.3

$

123.0

$

87.1

$

143.4

Supplemental disclosure information:
Cash paid for interest

$

36.3

$

5.1

$

50.0

$

45.2

$

27.5

$

2.9

$

21.8

$

27.1

Non-cash investing activities:
Unpaid capital expenditures included in
accounts payable and accrued
expenses

$

2.4

$

-

$

-

$

-

Non-cash financing activities:
Cash paid by Platform Acquisition
Holdings, Ltd for interest

$

-

$

-

$

5.0

$

-

Cash paid for income taxes

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
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(In millions, except share
and per share amounts)

Predecessor
Series A Series B
Preferred Preferred Common
Shares
Shares
Shares

Balance at December 31,
2011

$ 480.5 $

- $

Accumulated
other
Additional
Paid-In
Accumulated comprehensive
Capital
deficit
income (loss)

Treasury
Shares

Total
NonStockholder controlling
Equity
interest

Total
equity
(deficit)

50.0 $

2.2 $

(274.5) $

(15.0) $

(1.0) $

$242.2 $

(0.4) $

241.8

-

46.0

-

-

46.0

0.3

46.3

Net income
Other comprehensive
income (loss) net of
taxes

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(15.3)

-

(15.3)

-

(15.3)

Equity compensation
Accrual of paid in kind
dividend on cumulative
preferred shares

-

-

-

0.2

-

-

-

0.2

-

0.2

44.5

-

-

-

(44.6)

-

-

(0.1)

-

(0.1)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(0.2)

(0.2)

-

(0.2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(0.6)

(0.6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.4

0.4

525.0

-

50.0

2.4

(273.1)

(30.3)

(1.2)

272.8

(0.3)

272.5

Net income
Other comprehensive
income (loss) net of
taxes

-

-

-

-

13.2

-

-

13.2

0.3

13.5

-

-

-

-

-

14.4

-

14.4

-

14.4

Equity compensation
Accrual of paid in kind
dividend on cumulative
preferred shares

-

-

-

0.2

-

-

-

0.2

-

0.2

20.8

1.6

-

-

(22.4)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(500.0)

-

(500.0)

Shares repurchased
Dividend paid to noncontrolling interest
partner
Assignment of value for
non controlling interest
in business acquisition
Balance at December 31,
2012

Shares repurchased

(500.0)

Shares exchanged
Shares canceled
Dividend paid to noncontrolling interest
partner
Balance at October 31,
2013

$

(45.0)

45.0

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(0.8)

-

(0.4)

-

-

-

1.2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(0.6)

(0.6)

(0.0) $

46.6 $

49.6 $

2.6 $

(282.3) $

(15.9) $

- $

(199.4) $

(0.6) $ (200.0)
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(In millions, except share and
per share amounts)

Successor

Preferred Stock
Shares
Total stockholders’ equity as
of April 23, 2013
(inception)
Net loss
Other comprehensive
income net of taxes
Issuance of preferred shares
@ $10.00 per share on
April 25, 2013
Issuance of preferred
shares @ $10.00 per share
with matching warrants on
May 22, 2013 along with 2
matching warrants
matching with previously
issued preferred shares
Issuance of common shares
@ $10.00 per share with
matching warrants on May
22, 2013

Accumulated other
compreTotal
Additional Accumu- hensive StockholdNonPaid-in
lated
income
ers’
controlling
Capital
Deficit
(loss)
Equity
interest

Common Stock

Amount

Shares

Amount

- $

- $

- $

- $

Total
equity

- $

-

- $

- $

- $

-

-

-

-

-

-

(194.2)

-

(194.2)

(1.4)

(195.6)

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.3

1.3

-

1.3

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,999,998

-

-

-

20.0

-

-

20.0

-

20.0

-

-

88,529,500

-

885.0

-

-

885.0

-

885.0

Equity offering cost

-

-

-

-

(24.1)

-

-

(24.1)

-

(24.1)

Equity compensation
Exercise of warrants for
common shares @ $10.50
per share on October 30,
2013
Preferred stock dividend
rights
Exercise of warrants for
common shares @ $10.50
on November 13, 2013
Issuance of common shares
@ $10.50 per share on
November 13, 2013
Exchange of warrants for
common shares @ $11.50
per share on November
20, 2013
Issuance of common shares
@ $11.00 per share on
December 23, 2013
Assignment of value for
non controlling interest in
business acquisition

-

-

-

-

0.5

-

-

0.5

-

0.5

-

-

13,071,199

-

137.2

-

-

137.2

-

137.2

-

-

-

-

172.0

-

-

172.0

-

172.0

-

-

391,081

-

4.1

-

-

4.1

-

4.1

-

-

761,904

-

8.0

-

-

8.0

-

8.0

-

-

466,666

-

5.4

-

-

5.4

-

5.4

-

-

351,591

-

3.9

-

-

3.9

-

3.9

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

97.4

97.4

Balance at December 31,
2013

2,000,000 $

-

103,571,941 $
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- $

1,212.0 $

(194.2) $

1.3 $

1,019.1 $

96.0 $

1,115.1

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
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(In millions, except share and
per share amounts)

Successor

Preferred Stock
Shares
Balance at December 31,
2013

Common Stock

Amount

2,000,000 $

Accumulated other
compreAdditional Accumu- hensive Total Stock- Non-conPaid-in
lated
income
holders’
trolling
Capital
Deficit
(loss)
Equity
interest

Shares
-

Amount

103,571,941 $

96.0 $

1,115.1

-

(29.9)

-

(29.9)

5.7

(24.2)

-

-

-

(131.9)

(131.9)

(6.4)

(138.3)

1.0

(1.0)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,242

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,139

-

0.2

-

-

0.2

-

0.2

-

-

16,244,694

0.2

186.7

-

-

186.9

-

186.9

-

-

15,800,000

0.2

300.0

-

-

300.2

-

300.2

-

-

-

-

(13.8)

-

-

(13.8)

-

(13.8)

-

-

1,670,386

-

18.4

-

-

18.4

-

18.4

-

-

16,060,960

0.2

410.8

-

-

411.0

-

411.0

-

-

-

-

(0.3)

-

-

(0.3)

-

(0.3)

-

-

711,551

-

16.6

-

-

16.6

-

16.6

-

-

2,000,000

-

52.0

-

-

52.0

-

52.0

-

-

9,404,064

240.6

-

-

240.6

-

240.6

- $

-

402.7 $

- $

- $

402.9 $

- $

402.9

Net loss
Other comprehensive loss
net of taxes

-

-

-

-

-

-

Impact of Domestication
Issuance of common shares
@ $11.00 per share on
January 5, 2014
Issuance of common shares
to Directors on July 31,
2014
Issuance of common shares
from Employee Stock
Purchase Plan
Exercise of warrants for
common shares @ $11.50
per share
Issuance of common
shares at $19.00 per share
in connection with Private
Placement Offering on
May 20, 2014
Issuance costs in
connection with Private
Placement Offering on
May 20, 2014
Issuance of common
shares at $11.00 per share
in connection with 401(k)
Exchange Agreement
Issuance of common shares
at $25.59 per share in
connection with Private
Placement Offering on
October 8, 2014
Issuance costs in
connection with Private
Placement Offering on
October 8, 2014
Issuance of common shares
in connection with
Agriphar Acquisition
Issuance of common
shares in connection with
Chemtura Acquisition
Issuance of common shares
at $25.59 per share on
November 6, 2014
Issuance of common shares
at $24.50 per share in
connection with Public
Offering on November 17,
2014

-

-

-

-

-

3,959

-

-

-

16,445,000 $

- $
-

0.2 $

1,212.0 $

(194.2) $

1.3 $

1,019.1 $

Total
equity
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(In millions, except share and
per share amounts)

Successor

Preferred Stock
Shares
Issuance costs in
connection with Public
Offering on November 17,
2014
Declaration of stock
dividend on Founders’
preferred shares
Recovery of short swing
profits, net
Equity compensation
expense
Conversion of PDH noncontrolling interest to
common shares
Distribution to noncontrolling interest
Balance at December 31,
2014

Accumulated other
compreAdditional Accumu- hensive Total Stock- Non-conPaid-in
lated
income
holders’
trolling
Capital
Deficit
(loss)
Equity
interest

Common Stock

Amount

Shares

Amount

- $

-

- $

-

-

-

0.1

-

-

-

-

-

2,000,000 $

- $

- $

(0.1)

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.5

-

-

0.5

-

0.5

-

-

0.7

-

-

0.7

-

0.7

-

134,044

-

1.5

-

-

1.5

(1.5)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(0.8)

(0.8)

-

182,066,980 $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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- $

(15.1) $

1.9 $ $2,812.4 $

(224.1) $

(15.1) $

Total
equity

(130.6) $ 2,459.6 $

- $

(15.1)

93.0 $ 2,552.6

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollars in millions, except per share
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Please refer to the Glossary of Defined Terms located at the end of this Annual Report for the definitions of certain defined terms used herein.

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of the Company – Platform Specialty Products Corporation (formerly named “Platform Acquisition Holdings Limited”) is a global,
diversified producer of high-technology specialty chemical products and provider of technical services. Platform was originally incorporated with
limited liability under the laws of the British Virgin Islands under the BVI Companies Act on April 23, 2013. Until the MacDermid Acquisition on
October 31, 2013, Platform had neither engaged in any operations nor generated any income. As such, the Company was considered to be in the
development stage as defined in FASB Accounting Standards Codification 915, or FASB ASC 915, “Development Stage Entities,” and was subject to
the risks associated with activities of development stage companies. The Company selected December 31 as its fiscal year end. All activity through
October 31, 2013 was related to the Company’s formation, Initial Public Offering and identification and investigation of prospective target businesses
with which to consummate an initial business combination.
On October 31, 2013, we completed the MacDermid Acquisition pursuant to which we indirectly acquired substantially all of the equity of MacDermid
Holdings, which, at the time, owned approximately 97% of MacDermid. As a result, we became a holding company for the MacDermid business.
We acquired the remaining 3% of MacDermid on March 4, 2014, pursuant to the terms of an Exchange Agreement, dated October 25, 2013,
between us and the fiduciaries of the 401K Plan. Concurrently with the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, we changed our name to “Platform
Specialty Products Corporation.” On January 22, 2014, we completed our Domestication and on January 23, 2014, our common stock, par value
$0.01 per share, began trading on the NYSE under the ticker symbol “PAH.”

Business Description– Our business involves the formulation of a broad range of specialty chemicals, created by blending raw materials through
multi-step technological processes or formulating AIs into final agricultural products, which can be easily and safely used by growers in the fields.
These specialty chemicals are sold into multiple industries including agrochemical, electronics, graphic arts, metal and plastic plating, and offshore
oil production and drilling industries. We refer to our products as “dynamic chemistries” due to their intricate chemical compositions. We deliver our
products to our customers through our sales and service workforce, regional distributors, as well as manufacturing representatives. The financial
statements and information included herein represent Platform as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for the year ended December 31, 2014 and
the period from April 23, 2013 (inception) through December 31, 2013, and MacDermid for the ten month period ended October 31, 2013 and the
year ended December 31, 2012, which was prior to the consummation of the MacDermid Acquisition.
Principles of Consolidation – The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Successor or the Predecessor,
as applicable, and all of its majority-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions were eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates – In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, company management must undertake
decisions that impact the reported amounts and related disclosures. Such decisions include the selection of the appropriate accounting principles
to be applied and assumptions upon which accounting estimates are based. The Company applies judgment based on its understanding and
analysis of the relevant circumstances to reach these decisions. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty.
Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from the estimates applied. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include:
the useful lives of fixed assets, allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns, deferred tax asset valuation allowances, inventory valuation,
stock-based compensation, liabilities for employee benefit obligations, environmental liabilities, income tax uncertainties, valuation of goodwill,
acquisition-related contingent consideration, as discussed in Note 2 below, and other contingencies.
Cash and Cash Equivalents – The Company considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.
The Company is required to maintain cash deposits with certain banks with respect to contractual obligations related to our acquisition activity.
As of December 31, 2014, $600 million of cash was restricted related to the Arysta Acquisition. As of December 31, 2013, the Company was not
required to maintain any restricted cash deposits.

Credit Risk Management– The Company’s products are sold primarily to customers in the agricultural, automotive, oil, electronic and printing
industries. We are exposed to certain collection risks which are subject to a variety of factors, including economic and technological change within
these industries. As is common industry practice, the Company generally does not require collateral or other security as a condition of sale, rather
relying on credit approval, balance limitation and monitoring procedures to control credit risk on trade accounts receivable. The Company establishes
reserves against estimated uncollectible amounts based on historical experience and specific knowledge regarding customers’ ability to pay.
Derivatives– The Company operates internationally, with manufacturing and sales facilities in various locations around the world, and uses certain
financial instruments to manage its foreign currency exposures. To qualify a derivative as a hedge at inception and throughout the hedge period,
the Company formally documents the nature and relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management
objectives and strategies for undertaking various hedge transactions, and the method of assessing hedge effectiveness. Additionally, for hedges of
forecasted transactions, the significant characteristics and expected terms of a forecasted transaction are specifically identified, and the likelihood
of each forecasted transactions of occurring is deemed probable. If it is determined that the forecasted transaction will not occur, the gain or loss is
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recognized in current earnings. Financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting must maintain a specified level of effectiveness between the
hedging instrument and the item being hedged, both at inception and throughout the hedged period. The Company does not engage in trading or
other speculative use of financial instruments.
The Company has used and may use forward contracts and options to mitigate its exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates on third
party and intercompany forecasted transactions. If hedge accounting is applied, the effective portion of unrealized gains and losses associated
with forward contracts and the intrinsic value of option contracts are deferred as a component of other comprehensive income until the underlying
hedged transactions are reported in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The Company has also used and may use contracts and options to mitigate its exposure in the precious metals markets. Such contracts are
designated as Normal Purchases, the effects of which are not deferred as components of other comprehensive income.

Inventories – Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost being determined principally by the first-in/first-out method. The
Company regularly reviews inventories for obsolescence and excess quantities and calculates a reserve based on historical write-offs, customer
demand, product evolution, usage rates and quantities of stock on hand. Inventory in excess of estimated usage requirements is written down to its
estimated net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment – Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Equipment under capital
lease arrangements is stated at the net present value of minimum lease payments. The Company records depreciation on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life of each asset. Estimated useful lives by asset class are as follows:
Buildings and building improvements (years) -

5 to 20

Machinery, equipment and fixtures (years) -

3 to 15

Computer hardware and software (years) -

3 to 5

Leasehold improvements -

Lesser of useful life or lease life

Maintenance and repair costs are charged directly to expense; renewals and betterments which significantly extend the useful life of the asset are
capitalized. Costs and accumulated depreciation on assets retired or disposed of are removed from the accounts and any resulting gains or losses
are recorded to earnings in the period of disposal.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Purchased Intangible Assets – Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of an acquired business. The Company does not amortize goodwill and other intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives; rather, goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the
reporting unit level annually, or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired in accordance with ASC
350-20 “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other”. MacDermid’s annual test for goodwill impairment was historically performed as of April 1. Our annual
impairment testing date for goodwill is October 1.
A two-step impairment test is performed at the reporting unit level. In the first step of impairment testing, the fair value of each reporting unit is
compared to its carrying value. The fair value of each reporting unit is determined using the income approach based on the present value of
discounted future cash flows of those units using the twelve months ended preceding the date of impairment testing. The cash flows utilized in
goodwill impairment testing differ from actual consolidated cash flows due to exclusion of non-recurring charges. The cash flow model utilized
in the goodwill impairment test involves significant judgments related to future growth rates, working capital needs, discount rates and tax rates,
among other considerations. The Company relies on data developed by business unit management as well as macroeconomic data in making
these calculations. The discounted cash flow model utilizes a risk adjusted weighted average cost of capital to discount estimated future cash
flows. Changes in these estimates can impact the present value of the expected cash flow that is used in determining the fair value of a given
reporting unit. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned to that reporting unit, goodwill is not
impaired and no further testing is required. If the carrying value of the net assets assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the
reporting unit, the second step of the impairment test is performed to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. The implied
fair value of goodwill is determined by measuring the excess of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit over the estimated fair values of the
individual assets, liabilities and identifiable intangibles as if the reporting unit was being acquired in a business combination. If the carrying value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an impairment charge is recorded equal to the difference. Platform performed its annual
goodwill assessment on October 1, and no goodwill impairment charges were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014.
However, in performing the first step of the goodwill impairment test for the year ended December 31, 2014, the excess of the fair value of the
Offshore and ASF Americas reporting units over their carrying values were 7.6% and 11.1% respectively. Goodwill assigned to the Offshore and ASF
Americas reporting units totaled $364 million and $78.3 million, respectively. We determine the fair value of these reporting units as follows:
• Valuation Techniques - we use discounted cash flow analyses, which require assumptions about short and long-term net cash flows,
growth rates, as well as discount rates. Additionally, we consider guideline company and guideline transaction information, where
available, to aid in the valuation of the reporting units.
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• Growth Assumptions - Multi-year financial forecasts are developed for each reporting unit by considering several key business drivers
such as new business initiatives, client service and retention standards, market share changes, historical performance, and industry and
economic trends, among other considerations. The annual revenue growth rates used in the initial seven year period range from (0.7%)
to 9% for Offshore and 2.3% to 5.9% for ASF Americas. The long-term growth rates used in determining the terminal value of the Offshore
and ASF Americas reporting units were estimated at 3.5% and 3.0%, respectively based on management’s assessment of the minimum
expected terminal growth rate of each reporting unit, as well as broader economic considerations such as gross domestic product and
inflation.
• Discount Rate Assumptions - Discount rates are estimated based on a Weighted Average Cost of Capital, or WACC. The WACC combines
the required return on equity, based on a Modified Capital Asset Pricing Model, which considers the risk-free interest rate, market risk
premium, beta, small stock risk premium and a company specific risk premium, with the cost of debt, based on BBB rated corporate
bonds, adjusted using an income tax factor. The calculation resulted in a WACC rate of 10.5% for both offshore and ASF Americas.
• Estimated Fair Value and Sensitivities - The estimated fair value of each reporting unit is derived from the valuation techniques described
above. The estimated fair value of each reporting unit is analyzed in relation to numerous market and historical factors, including current
economic and market conditions, company-specific growth opportunities, and guideline company information.
The estimated fair value of the reporting unit is highly sensitive to changes in these estimates and assumptions; therefore, in some instances,
changes in these assumptions could impact whether the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than its carrying value. We perform sensitivity
analyses around these assumptions in order to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and the resulting estimated fair values. Based on
the sensitivity analysis performed for the Offshore reporting unit, a 1% decrease it the terminal growth rate or a 1% increase in the WACC rate would
have resulted in the carrying value of the net assets to exceed their fair value, making it necessary to proceed to the second step of the impairment
test. For ASF Americas, a 1% decrease it the terminal growth rate does not result in the carrying value exceeding their fair value, however, a 1%
increase in the WACC rate would have resulted in the carrying value of the net assets to exceed their fair value, making it necessary to proceed
to the second step of the impairment test. Ultimately, if any of these assumptions do not materialize in a manner consistent with the Company’s
expectations, including discounts rates, annual revenue growth rates and terminal growth rates, there is risk of impairment to recorded goodwill.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of certain tradenames which are reviewed for potential impairment on an annual basis, or when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that indefinite-lived intangible assets might be impaired. MacDermid’s annual test for indefinite-lived intangible
assets impairment was historically performed as of April 1. Our annual impairment testing date for indefinite-lived intangible assets is October 1.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets to the
carrying value. The estimated fair value of these intangible assets is determined using the “relief from royalty” approach. An impairment loss is
recognized when the estimated fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than the carrying value.

Finite-Lived Intangible Assets – Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which
currently range from eight to 30 years for customer lists, five to 14 years for developed technology, five to 20 years for tradenames and one to
five years for non-compete agreements. The Company evaluates long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
with finite lives, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If
circumstances require a long-lived asset group to be tested for possible impairment, the Company first determines if the estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset plus net proceeds expected from disposition of the asset, if any, are less than the
carrying value of the asset. When an impairment is identified, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its estimated fair value based on a
discounted cash flow approach or, when available and appropriate, to comparable market values.
Asset Retirement Obligations – The Company records the fair value of legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-

lived assets in the period in which they are incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. Upon initial recognition of a liability, the
Company capitalizes the cost of the asset retirement obligation by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the
liability is increased for changes in its present value as accretion through interest expense and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful
life of the related asset.

Employee Benefits – The Company sponsors a variety of employee benefit programs, some of which are non-contributory. The accounting
policies used to account for these plans are as follows:
Retirement – The Company provides non-contributory defined benefit plans to domestic and certain foreign employees. The projected
unit credit actuarial method is used for financial reporting purposes. The Company recognizes the funded status; the difference between
the fair value of the plan assets and the projected benefit obligation (pension plans) or the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
(other postretirement plan) in its Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company’s funding policy for qualified plans is consistent with federal
or other local regulations and customarily equals the amount deductible for federal and local income tax purposes. Foreign subsidiaries
contribute to other plans, which may be administered privately or by government agencies in accordance with local regulations.

Effective January 1, 2014, the Company also provides benefits under the Platform Specialty Products Employee Savings & 401(k) Plan, or
PSP 401(k) Plan, for substantially all domestic employees, which consists of two components: a profit-sharing/ non-elective component
funded by the Company as well as a defined contribution 401(k) component. Under the discretionary profit sharing and/or non-elective
component, the Company made a non-elective contribution to the MacDermid, Incorporated Employee Savings and 401(k) Plan of
$1.4 million during the first quarter of 2015 for the year ended December 31, 2014. Under the 401(k) component, on a yearly basis, the
Company may determine to make contributions that match some or all of the participants’ contributions and contributed $0.7 million to the
plan in 2014.
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The Predecessor also provided a defined contribution 401K Plan (401(a), (k) and 501(a)) for substantially all domestic employees, with the
ability to make discretionary contributions to the 401K Plan. Effective with the MacDermid Acquisition on October 31, 2013, this 401K Plan
was terminated. There were no such discretionary contributions made for the Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods.

Post-retirement – The Company currently accrues for post-retirement health care benefits for U.S. employees hired prior to April 1,
1997. The post-retirement health care plan is unfunded.
Financial Instruments – The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts
receivable, investments, accounts payable, contingent consideration and current and long-term debt. The Company believes that the carrying
value of the cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable are representative of their respective fair
values because of the short maturities of these instruments. Available for sale equity investments are carried at fair value with net unrealized gains
or losses reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income. See Note 11 for the fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments.

Foreign Currency Translation – Primarily all of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries use their local currency as their functional currency. The
assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. Dollars using foreign currency exchange rates prevailing as of
the balance sheet dates. Revenue and expense accounts are translated at weighted-average foreign currency exchange rates for the periods
presented. Cumulative currency translation adjustments are included in other comprehensive income (loss) in the stockholders’ equity section
of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Net gains and losses from transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity are included in Other (expense) income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Revenue Recognition – The Company recognizes revenue, including freight charged to customers, net of applicable rebates, estimates for
sales returns and allowances and discounts, when the earnings process is complete. This occurs when products are shipped to or received by the
customer in accordance with the terms of the agreement, title and risk of loss have been transferred, collectability is probable and pricing is fixed
or determinable. Shipping terms are customarily “FOB shipping point” and do not include right of inspection or acceptance provisions. Equipment
sales arrangements may include right of inspection or acceptance provisions, in which case revenue is deferred until these provisions are satisfied.

Cost of Sales – Cost of sales consists primarily of raw material costs and related purchasing and receiving costs used in the manufacturing
process, direct salary and wages and related fringe benefits, packaging costs, shipping and handling costs, plant overhead and other costs
associated with the manufacture and distribution of the Company’s products. For the year ended December 31, 2014, cost of sales included a
manufacturer’s profit in inventory adjustment of $35.5 million associated with inventory revaluations related to the MacDermid, Agriphar and CAS
Acquisitions, and for the Successor 2013 Period, cost of sales included a manufacturer’s profit in inventory adjustment of $23.9 million related to the
MacDermid Acquisition.
Shipping and Handling Costs – Costs related to shipping and handling are recognized as incurred and included in cost of sales in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Selling, technical, general and administrative expenses – Selling, technical, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of
personnel and travel costs, advertising and marketing expenses, administrative expenses associated with accounting, finance, legal, human
resource, amortization of intangible assets, risk management and overhead associated with these functions.
Research and development – Research and development costs, primarily relating to internal salaries, are expensed as incurred.
Income Taxes – The provision for income taxes includes federal, foreign, state and local income taxes currently payable as well as the net change
in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period. Deferred income taxes are recorded at currently enacted tax rates for temporary differences
between the financial reporting and income tax basis of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is assessed and recorded when it is estimated
that it becomes more likely that not than the full value of a deferred tax asset may not be realized. Deferred federal and state income taxes are
not provided on the undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries where management has determined that such earnings have been
permanently reinvested.
Stock-based Compensation Plans – The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC No. 718, “Compensation

- Stock Compensation”. Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of share-based
awards that are ultimately expected to vest. The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The fair value of restricted stock is determined based on the number of share granted and the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense for all share-based payment awards is recognized using the straight-line amortization
method over the vesting period.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share – Basic earnings (loss) per common share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income

(loss) by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net (loss) income per common share assumes
the issuance of all potentially dilutive share equivalents using the if converted or treasury stock method, if the effect is not anti-dilutive. For stock
options, it is assumed that the proceeds will be used to buy back shares. Such proceeds equal the average unrecognized compensation plus
the assumed exercise of weighted average number of options outstanding and windfall tax benefits. For unvested restricted shares, the assumed
proceeds equal the average unrecognized compensation expense plus windfall tax benefits.
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New Accounting Standards
Income Statement – Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Subtopic 225-20) - In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-01,

“Simplifying Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating the Concept of Extraordinary Items.” This update eliminates the requirement for entities
to identify extraordinary events and transactions, those being both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence, and separately classify, present
and disclose such items. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, but entities
may apply the guidance retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. The Company does not expect this ASU to have a
material impact on its financial statements.

Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) - In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-16, “Determining Whether the Host Contract in a

Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in the Form of a Share Is More Akin to Debt or to Equity (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force).”
Under current practice, there were predominantly two methods used to evaluate whether the nature of the host contract in a hybrid financial
instrument is more akin to debt or equity: one considered all the features including the embedded and the other excluded the embedded derivative
in the consideration. This update eliminates the difference in practice by clarify that the evaluation should be based on all the instrument’s features,
including the embedded derivative, and that no single term or feature would necessarily determine the economic characteristics and risks of
the host contract. The guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and is applied in a modified
retrospective basis to existing hybrid financial instruments issued in the form of a share as of the beginning of our fiscal year 2016. The Company is
in the process of evaluating the impact of this new ASU.

Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) - In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, “Accounting for Share-Based Payments
When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period (a consensus of the
FASB Emerging Issues Task Force).” The amendments require that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after
the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company does not expect this ASU to have a material impact on its financial statements.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Topic 606),” which (1) removes inconsistencies and weaknesses in revenue requirements, (2) provides a more robust framework for addressing
revenue issues, (3) improves comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets, (4) provides
more useful information to users of financial statements through improved disclosure requirements and (5) simplifies the preparation of financial
statements by reducing the number of requirements to which an entity must refer. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact of this new ASU.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

2. ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES
CAS Acquisition
On November 3, 2014, we completed the CAS Acquisition for $1.04 billion, consisting of $983 million in cash, after certain post-closing working
capital and other adjustments, 2,000,000 shares of our common stock and the assumption of certain liabilities by Platform. The CAS Acquisition
was financed with the proceeds from additional borrowings made under our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and available cash on hand.
As of December 31, 2014, the Company recognized, in accrued expenses and other current liabilities, a final working capital adjustment of $15.0
million. Due to regulatory constraints, title to certain CAS businesses located in Russia was not transferred to Platform until the first quarter of 2015.
In connection with the CAS Acquisition, the Company entered into six supply agreements with Chemtura to supply the Company certain products,
on an exclusive basis. These arrangements include capital leases for certain equipment. We have agreed to fund the asset retirement obligations
associated with the related equipment. Accordingly, we have recognized an asset retirement obligation of $13.2 million. The agreements will
continue until either party provides advance termination notice, with a minimum term of four years.
In line with our business strategy of growing into niche markets and applications, we acquired CAS to enter the agrochemical industry. CAS is
a niche provider of seed treatments and crop protection applications in numerous geographies across seven major product lines – adjuvants,
fungicides, herbicides, insecticide, miticides, plant growth regulators and seed treatments.
In connection with the CAS Acquisition, the Company incurred $33.9 million in related expenses that are included in “Selling, technical, general and
administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. CAS contributed revenues of $61.9 million and net losses of $20.5 million to
the Company for the period of November 3, 2014 through December 31, 2014.
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Agriphar Acquisition
On October 1, 2014, we completed the acquisition of Percival, including Percival’s agrochemical business conducted under the Agriphar trade name.
Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition agreement, MAS Holdings, a newly-formed subsidiary of Platform, acquired 100% of the equity interests
of Percival for a purchase price of approximately €300 million ($370 million), consisting of $350 million in cash, after certain post-closing working
capital and other adjustments, and 711,551 restricted shares of our common stock, which will become unrestricted beginning January 2, 2018 unless
agreed otherwise in accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement. The agreement also stipulates that prior to January 2, 2018, the seller
may transfer (i) a maximum of 1/3 of its shares as of January 2, 2016, (ii) 1/3 of its shares as of January 2, 2017 and (iii) 1/3 of its shares as of January
2, 2018, in each case subject to the terms and provisions of a solvency letter described in the Agreement. Additionally, MAS Holdings granted the
seller a put option to sell and transfer all (but not part) of the shares, on (but not prior to) the date that is six months from the closing of the Agriphar
Acquisition. The consideration payable by Platform for the transfer of such shares under the put option is expected to be an amount equal to €15.0
million ($18.2 million based on the December 31, 2014 exchange rate of $1.21 per €1.00). The put option is recorded in the December 31, 2014,
Consolidated Balance Sheet within accrued expense and other current liabilities in the amount of $3.4 million.
We acquired Agriphar in our crop protection vertical as we believe Agriphar’s and CAS’ businesses are very complementary in terms of product
range and distribution capabilities. Agriphar is a European crop protection group supported by a team of researchers and regulatory experts which
provides a wide range of fungicides, herbicides and insecticides with end markets primarily across Europe.
In connection with the Agriphar Acquisition, the Company incurred $4.2 million in related expenses that are included in “Selling, technical, general
and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Agriphar contributed revenues of $26.1 million and net losses of $8.3
million to the Company for the period of October 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.

MacDermid Acquisition
On October 31, 2013, the Company completed the MacDermid Acquisition. The total consideration paid in connection with the MacDermid
Acquisition and the acquisition of the 3% of MacDermid equity interests not already held by MacDermid Holdings was approximately $1.80 billion
(including the assumption of $754 million of indebtedness, consisting primarily of MacDermid’s then existing first lien credit facility), plus (i) up to
$100 million of contingent consideration tied to achieving certain EBITDA and stock trading price performance metrics over a seven-year period
following the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition and (ii) an interest in certain MacDermid pending litigation. As a result of a favorable adjustment
to the preliminary estimated working capital factored into the purchase price, the Company received a payment of $8.5 million in January 2014
which was recorded in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2013 and in “Acquisition of
business, net” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as of December 31, 2014.
The fair value of contingent consideration was measured based on significant inputs not observable in the market, which are considered to be
Level 3 inputs under the FASB ASC Topic 820 fair value hierarchy (see Note 11 – Fair Value Measurements). Key assumptions included in the fair
value calculation of the EBITDA related earnout include a discount rate of approximately 2% and expected future value of payments of $60.0 million
calculated using a probability weighted EBITDA assessment with higher probability associated with the Company achieving the maximum EBITDA
targets. Key assumptions included in the fair value calculation of the stock price related earnout include the fair value of common stock and an
assumption of volatility. The stock price related earnout was calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation. At the inception of the acquisition, the fair
value of the contingent payments was $35.5 million. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of the contingent consideration was $63.9
million and $34.8 million, respectively. The $29.1 million increase in fair value, which is recorded in “Selling, technical, general and administrative
expenses” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations, is comprised of $18.8 million primarily related to achieving each of the
three stock trading price performance metric targets of the contingent consideration arrangement and $10.3 million in compensation expense
associated with the contingent consideration allocated to Tartan.
Immediately prior to the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, the Retaining Holders, including certain current officers of the Company, executed a
RHSA with the Company pursuant to which they agreed to exchange their respective interests in MacDermid Holdings for equity in our subsidiary,
PDH, at an exchange rate of $11.00 per share plus (i) a proportionate share of the $100 million contingent consideration and (ii) an interest in certain
MacDermid pending litigation. This 6.76% ownership has been accounted for as a non-controlling interest in the Company’s financial statements.
Since October 31, 2014, each Retaining Holders is entitled to exchange up to 25% of shares of PDH Common Stock for shares of our common
stock, on a one-for-one basis, with the remaining shares of PDH becoming eligible for exchange on November 2015, 2016 and 2017 in 25%
increments. The total number of shares of common stock originally issuable upon the exchange of PDH Common Stock pursuant to the RHSA was
approximately 8.8 million. As of December 31, 2014, 134,044 shares of our common stock were issued in connection with the exchange of PDH
Common Stock, reducing the non-controlling interest to 6.66%.
Upon the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, the 401K Plan retained a 3% interest in MacDermid. The fair value of the obligation to purchase
these shares of $21.0 million was recorded as a redeemable 401(k) interest in the mezzanine section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2013 since it could be settled in either cash or stock. On March 4, 2014, pursuant to the terms of an Exchange Agreement, dated
October 25, 2013, between the Company and the fiduciaries of the 401K Plan, the Company acquired the remaining 3% for $2.6 million in cash
(which is reflected in “Acquisition of businesses, net” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows) and 1,670,386 shares of the
Company’s common stock.
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Purchase Price Allocation
The following table summarizes the consideration transferred and transaction related costs incurred to acquire MacDermid, Agriphar and CAS and
the amounts of identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:
MacDermid

Agriphar

CAS

Consideration
Cash, net

$

Equity Instruments
Long-term debt
Derivative liability

916.5

$

350.2

$

983.1

115.4

16.6

52.0

754.2

-

-

-

3.5

-

35.5

-

-

1,821.6

370.3

1,035.1

15.2

4.2

33.9

Accounts receivable

147.4

57.6

150.7

Inventories

115.3

41.5

129.3
15.5

Contingent Consideration
Total Consideration
Transaction related costs
Identifiable Assets acquired and Liabilities Assumed

Other current assets

26.2

1.6

Property, plant and equipment

140.9

31.7

11.6

Identifiable intangible assets

729.0

183.0

534.0

28.3

5.4

21.5

Other assets
Current Liabilities

(117.9)

(48.3)

(69.9)

Non-current deferred tax liability

(171.2)

(64.9)

(25.3)

Other long term liabilities

(66.6)

(15.9)

(13.3)

831.4

191.7

754.1

990.2

178.6

281.0

Total identifiable net assets
Goodwill
Total purchase price

$

1,821.6

$

370.3

$

1,035.1

Purchase accounting and purchase price allocation is complete for the MacDermid Acquisition, and substantially complete for the Agriphar and
CAS acquisition, with the exception of accounts receivable and inventory for both, as well as legal and environmental reserves for Agriphar, and
intangible and tangible asset valuation related to the supply agreements with Chemtura for CAS. As a part of the CAS acquisition, the Company
paid for a 15% equity interest in Certis Europe B.V. that has not been transferred because it is subject to Certis’ approval. Certis has the option to
repurchase the shares at fair value or to approve the share transfer. The value of the equity interest is estimated at $15.0 million based on market
multiples and is classified in other assets.
Transaction related costs related to the Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions, as presented above, are recorded in “Selling, technical, general and
administrative expenses,” and total $38.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. Transaction related costs related to the MacDermid
Acquisition totaled $15.2 million for the Successor 2013 Period and $16.9 million for the Predecessor 2013 Period.
The excess of the cost of the individual acquisitions over the net of amounts assigned to the fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed is recorded as goodwill. Of the $1.45 billion of goodwill recorded in connection with the Acquisitions, $194 million is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.
Identifiable intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the Acquisitions have been assigned the following useful lives: eight to 30 years for
customer lists, five to 14 years for developed technology, five to 20 years for tradenames and one to five years for non-compete agreements, which
results in weighted average useful lives of 20 years, 12 years, 20 years and five years, respectively, for an aggregate weighted average useful life of
approximately 16 years at December 31, 2014.
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Pro Forma Revenue and Earnings
The following unaudited pro forma summary presents consolidated information of the Company as if the Agriphar and CAS acquisitions had
occurred on January 1, 2013:

Revenue

Net Income (Loss)
attributable to
Shareholders

Pro Forma Year Ended 12/31/14

$

1,405.9

$

46.4

Pro Forma Year Ended 12/31/13

$

731.8

$

(229.5)

In 2014, the Company incurred $29.8 million of acquisition-related expenses, net of taxes, which have been reflected in the pro forma earnings
above as if they had been incurred in 2013. These pro forma amounts have been prepared to reflect fair value adjustments to intangible assets and
the related amortization expense, net of tax, from January 1, 2013.
As the Company’s inception date was April 23, 2013, no pro-forma financial disclosures were necessary for the MacDermid Acquisition as all of the
results of operations of MacDermid were included in the Successor and Predecessor 2013 Periods.

Other
During the year ended December 31, 2014, we also acquired a business for $30.5 million, after certain post-closing working capital and other
adjustments (including the assumption of approximately $0.4 million of indebtedness), within our Performance Materials segment. Assets and
liabilities of the acquired business were recorded as of the date of acquisition based on their estimated fair value as determined in a purchase price
allocation. The Company’s allocation of purchase price for this acquisition included net current assets and current liabilities of $1.2 million each,
property, plant and equipment of $0.2 million, deferred tax liability of $3.6 million, identifiable intangible assets of $18.0 million and goodwill of $16.3
million. No goodwill from this acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Of the $18.0 million of acquired intangible assets, $14.6
million was assigned to customer lists, $1.9 million to non-compete agreements and $1.5 million to tradenames and developed technology. Pro
forma revenue and earnings related to this business have not been presented as they were deemed not significant.

Arysta Acquisition
On February 13, 2015, we completed the Arysta Acquisition pursuant to a certain share purchase agreement, dated October 20, 2014, as amended,
with the Original Seller, for $3.57 billion, consisting of $2.93 billion in cash, subject to working capital and other adjustments, and the issuance of
$600 million of Platform’s Series B Preferred Stock to the Seller.
We acquired Arysta to expand our presence in the agrochemical business, complementing our recent acquisitions of Agriphar and CAS. Arysta has
a solutions-oriented business model that focuses on product innovation to address grower needs. Arysta’s solutions are delivered on a local basis,
utilizing globally managed patented and proprietary off-patent agrochemical AIs and biosolutions, complemented by a broad portfolio of regionally
managed off-patent agrochemical offerings. Biosolutions includes biological stimulants, or biostimulants, innovative nutrition and biological control,
or biocontrol, products. Arysta employs a targeted market strategy aimed at specific regions and crops where it is believed that its market position,
product portfolio and capabilities enable Arysta to achieve sustainable high growth and a strong leadership position.
In connection with the Arysta Acquisition, the Company incurred $6.4 million in related expenses through December 31, 2014 that are included in
“Selling, technical, general and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
The initial purchase accounting and purchase price allocation for the Arysta Acquisition have not been completed at the date of this filing given the
proximity to the acquisition date. The purchase price will be allocated to the assets acquired based on estimated fair values at the acquisition date,
with the excess of purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired recorded as goodwill.
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3. INVENTORIES
The major components of inventory were as follows:

December 31,
2014
Finished goods

$

Raw materials and supplies
Equipment
Total inventory, net

$

154.9

December 31,
2013
$

58.3

49.5

29.9

1.4

1.4

205.8

$

89.6

In connection with the Agriphar and CAS acquisitions, finished goods were marked up by $9.4 million and $36.1 million, respectively, to reflect fair
value. Of the total mark up, $23.5 million was charged through the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014
based on our estimated inventory turnover. The remaining portion of the mark up of $22.0 million is included in finished goods at December 31,
2014.
For the Successor 2013 Period, in connection with the MacDermid Acquisition, finished goods were marked up by $35.9 million to reflect fair value.
Of this amount, $23.9 million was charged through the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the Successor 2013 Period based on our estimated
inventory turnover, and the remaining $12.0 million was charged through the Consolidated Statement of Operations during 2014.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The major components of property, plant and equipment were as follows:

December 31,
2014
Land and leasehold improvements

$

Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment, fixtures and software

Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction in process
Property, plan and equipment, net

$

36.6

December 31,
2013
$

29.9

51.1

38.9

101.2

63.5

188.9

132.3

(18.1)

(3.9)

170.8

128.4

4.2

7.8

175.0

$

136.2

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded depreciation expense of $19.3 million. For the Successor and Predecessor 2013
Periods, the Company and the Predecessor recorded depreciation expense of $3.9 million and $10.5 million, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Predecessor recorded depreciation expense of $15.1 million.
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5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment are as follows:
Performance Materials

Graphic Solutions

AgroSolutions

Total

Predecessor:
Balance, December 31, 2012
Foreign currency translation and other

$

447.7
(4.4)

$

28.5
-

$

-

$

476.2
(4.4)

Balance, October 31, 2013

$

443.3

$

28.5

$

-

$

471.8

$

761.5
(1.1)

$

228.7
0.7

$

-

$

990.2
(0.4)

Successor:
Balance, April 23, 2013 (Inception)
Addition from acquisitions
Foreign currency translation and other
Balance, December 31, 2013
Addition from acquisitions
Foreign currency translation and other

760.4
16.3
(37.3)

Balance, December 31, 2014

$

229.4
(7.6)

739.4

$

221.8

$

459.6
(15.5)

989.8
475.9
(60.4)

444.1

$ 1,405.3

During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company performed its annual impairment analysis of goodwill at the reporting unit level. Our goodwill
impairment testing analysis uses an income approach derived from a discounted cash flow model to estimate the fair value of our reporting
units. Based on those projections and other assumptions used in the analysis, the Company concluded that the fair values of the reporting units
exceeded the carrying values of their net assets. As a result, there was no impairment of goodwill in 2014. However, in performing the first step
of the goodwill impairment test for the year ended December 31, 2014, the excess of the fair value of the Offshore and ASF Americas reporting
units over their carrying values were 7.6% and 11.1% respectively. Goodwill assigned to the Offshore and ASF Americas reporting units totaled $364
million and $78.3 million, respectively. There were no other events or changes in circumstances which indicated that goodwill might be impaired.
The carrying value of indefinite-lived intangible assets other than goodwill, which consists solely of tradenames, was $69.3 million and $70.9 million
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Intangible assets subject to amortization were as follows:

Gross Carrying
Amount

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Accumulated
Amortization
and Foreign
Exchange

Accumulated
Amortization
and Foreign
Exchange

Net Book Value

Gross Carrying
Amount

Net Book Value

Customer lists
Developed technology
Tradenames
Non-compete agreement

$

613.6
760.5
19.7
1.9

$

(71.6)
(50.8)
(1.0)
(0.1)

$

542.0
709.7
18.7
1.8

$

494.0
164.2
-

$

(6.4)
(2.4)
-

$

487.6
161.8
-

Total

$

1,395.7

$

(123.5)

$

1,272.2

$

658.2

$

(8.8)

$

649.4

Useful lives range from eight to 30 years for customer lists, five to 14 years for developed technology, five to 20 years for tradenames and one to
five years for non-compete agreements, which results in weighted average useful lives of 20 years, 12 years, 20 years and five years, respectively,
for an aggregate weighted average useful life of approximately 16 years at December 31, 2014.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded amortization expense on intangible assets of $67.4 million. For the Successor
and Predecessor 2013 Periods, the Company and the Predecessor recorded amortization expense on intangible assets of $8.9 million and $22.4
million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Predecessor recorded amortization expense on intangible assets of $27.1 million.
Estimated future amortization of intangible assets for each of the next five fiscal years from 2015 through 2019 is $111 million per year.
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6. EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
On June 12, 2014, the Company’s stockholders approved the Platform Specialty Products Corporation Amended and Restated 2013 Incentive
Compensation Plan. The 2013 Plan is to be administered by a committee designated by the Company’s Board consisting of not less than two
directors; provided, however, that except as otherwise expressly provided in the 2013 Plan, the Board may exercise any power or authority granted
to the committee under the 2013 Plan. At December 31, 2014, the total number of common shares of our Company that may be subject to the
granting of awards under the 2013 Plan is equal to 15,500,000 shares (subject to increase in accordance with the terms of the 2013 Plan). As
of December 31, 2014, 9,242 shares of common stock were issued under the Plan. As of December 31, 2014, five officers, six directors, 2,486
employees and one consultant were eligible to participate in the 2013 Plan.
On March 6, 2014, the Board approved a grant of 329,823 RSUs, effective on June 12, 2014 with approval of the 2013 Plan, to certain employees
that cliff vest on December 31, 2020. The RSUs are subject to an EBITDA performance condition and a share price market condition that are similar
in terms to those discussed in Note 2 – “Acquisitions of Businesses” related to the MacDermid contingent consideration arrangement. Additionally,
the number of shares of common stock to be issued is limited to a maximum cash value, requiring these awards to be classified as liabilities.
The combined undiscounted maximum cash value of all RSU’s issued is approximately $7.1 million which is being recognized as compensation
expense over the period from grant to the vesting date. Compensation expense associated with these awards was $0.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
On March 6, 2014, the Board approved a grant of 9,242 RSUs to certain directors of the Company, effective on June 12, 2014 with approval of the
2013 Plan, which immediately vested. Compensation expense of $0.3 million associated with these awards was fully recognized in 2014. On July
31, 2014 such RSUs were settled in shares of common stock and issued to such directors.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Board approved grants totaling of 139,610 RSUs to certain employees of the Company and 2,500
RSUs to non-employees with approval of the 2013 Plan, with grant-date fair values ranging from $20.97 to $28.36 per share. Vesting periods
range from 36 to 60 months for RSU’s issued to employees, and 10 month for those issued to non-employees. The RSUs are subject to an EBITDA
performance condition that must be achieved in the final vesting year. For the year ended December 31, 2014, compensation expense associated
with these awards totaled $0.4 million and administrative expense totaled less than $0.1 million.
Effective March 6, 2014, the Board adopted the ESPP, which was approved by the Company’s stockholders on June 12, 2014. The Board approved
a maximum of 5,178,815 shares of Common Stock, which were reserved and made available for issuance under the ESPP. As of December 31, 2014,
11,139 shares have been issued under, and 513 persons were eligible to participate in the ESPP.
On May 17, 2013, MacDermid issued an aggregate 250,000 option deeds to its non-founder Directors with an exercise price of $11.50 per share,
expiring five years from the date of completion of the MacDermid Acquisition and which vested as of the completion of the MacDermid Acquisition.
The Company estimates the fair value of stock option grants using a Black-Scholes option pricing. In applying this model, the Company uses the
following assumptions:
• Risk-Free Interest Rate: The Company determined the risk-free interest rate equivalent to the expected term based on the U.S. Treasury
constant maturity rate.
• Expected Term: The Company determined the expected term equal to the life of the contract.
• Expected Dividend Rate: The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the near future.
The fair value of each option award was estimated on the grant date using the Black Scholes option-pricing model and expensed under the straight
line method over the vesting period. The following assumptions were used: exercise price of $11.50, expected stock price volatility of 18.49%, risk
free rate of interest of 0.37% and an expected life of options of 5.0 years. The options vested on October 31, 2013, the date of the MacDermid
acquisition, with a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.4 years. Stock based compensation expense from option deeds was $0.2
million for the Successor 2013 Period. The options vested and accordingly, the total value of the options at issuance was amortized over the period
from inception to October 31, 2013.

Predecessor Period
On January 29, 2013, the Predecessor authorized for issuance 5,000,000 C Shares. The C Shares were allocated to three tranches of 1,666,666
shares each and defined as Class C-1 Junior Shares, Class C-2 Junior Shares and Class C-3 Junior Shares. The Class C-1 Junior Shares vested
upon the grant date of January 29, 2013. Class C-2 Junior Shares were to vest on January 1, 2014 and the Class C-3 Junior Shares were to vest on
January 1, 2015. The number of issued and awarded Class C Junior Shares was 4,890,000 shares or 1,630,000 shares each for the Class C-1 Junior
Shares, Class C-2 Junior Shares and Class C-3 Junior Shares. The value of the C Shares was measured based upon the performance criteria in
the operating agreement of MacDermid Holdings based on the estimated equity value of the Predecessor. The C Shares were to be paid in cash
in accordance with the operating agreement of MacDermid Holdings upon a change in control, liquidating event or initial public offering. Payment
for the C shares required continued employment through a change in control, liquidating event, or initial public offering. The C Shares were
considered liability-classified awards with the related fair value recognized as compensation expense ratably over the performance period, with
changes in the fair value of the award cumulatively adjusted through compensation expense each period. During the Predecessor 2013 Period,
$9.0 million was recognized as compensation expense related to the C Shares due to the consummation of the MacDermid Acquisition eliminating
the risk that consummation of the business combination will not occur.
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7. PENSION, POST-RETIREMENT AND POST-EMPLOYMENT PLANS
The Company has multiple deferred compensation arrangements, which are described below. The Company has defined benefit pension plans for
certain domestic and foreign employees, a SERP (supplemental executive retirement plan) for executive officers and a post-employment benefits
program for certain domestic employees. Aggregate amounts charged to earnings for these plans by the Company for the year ended December
31, 2014 and the Successor and Predecessor 2013 Periods was ($2.1) million, ($2.7) million and $3.5 million, respectively. In connection with the
MacDermid Acquisition as discussed in Note 2, the Pension Plan was closed to new participants. Credited service was frozen for all grandfathered
employees. Credited service, average monthly compensation, final average compensation, and covered compensation were frozen for all nongrandfathered employees. The action resulted in a curtailment gain of $3.0 million, which was recorded in the Successor 2013 Period. For the year
ended December 31, 2012, $3.2 million was charged to earnings.

Domestic Defined Benefit Pension Plan
The Pension Plan is a non-contributory domestic defined benefit pension plan. It provides retirement benefits based upon years of service and
compensation levels. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the projected benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was $150.5 million and $131.3 million,
respectively. The measurement date used to determine pension and other postretirement benefits was December 31, 2014 and 2013, at which time
the minimum contribution level for the following year was determined. The Company does not currently expect contributions will be required in
2015 or in each of the four years thereafter.
An investment committee, appointed by the Board, manages Pension Plan assets in accordance with the Pension Plan’s investment policies.
The Company’s investment policies incorporate an asset allocation strategy that emphasizes the long-term growth of capital and acceptable
asset volatility as long as it is consistent with the volatility of the relevant market indexes. The investment policies attempt to achieve a mix of
approximately 75% of plan investments for long-term growth and 25% for near-term benefit payments. The Company believes this strategy is
consistent with the long-term nature of plan liabilities and ultimate cash needs of the plans. Plan assets consist primarily of corporate bond mutual
funds, limited partnership interests, listed stocks and cash. The corporate bond mutual funds held by the Pension Plan include primarily corporate
bonds from companies from diversified industries located in the U.S. The listed stocks are investments in large-cap and mid-cap companies
located in the U.S. The limited partnership funds primarily include listed stocks located in the U.S. The weighted average asset allocation of the
Pension Plan was 25% equity securities, 58% limited partnership interests and managed equity funds, 9% bond mutual fund holdings and 8% cash
at December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2013, the weighted average asset allocation of the Pension Plan was 22% equity securities, 65% limited
partnership interests and managed equity funds, 9% bond mutual fund holdings and 4% cash.
Actual pension expense and future contributions required to fund the Pension Plan will depend on future investment performance, changes in
future discount rates, the level of contributions the Company makes and various other factors related to the populations participating in the Pension
Plan. The Company will re-evaluate the Pension Plan’s actuarial assumptions, on an annual basis including the expected long-term rate of return
on assets and discount rate, and will adjust the assumptions as necessary to ensure proper funding levels are maintained so the Pension Plan can
meet its obligations as they become due.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
The Company sponsors a SERP that entitles certain executive officers to the difference between the benefits actually paid to them and the benefits
they would have received under the Pension Plan were it not for certain restrictions imposed by the Internal Revenue Service Code, which relate to
the amount of annual compensation which may be taken into account in determining benefits under the SERP. Covered compensation under the
SERP includes an employee’s annual salary and bonus. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the projected benefit obligation under the SERP was $7.1
million and $6.1 million, respectively.

Foreign Pension Plans
The Company has a U.K. Pension Plan, which represents retirement and death benefit plans covering employees in the U.K. The U.K. Pension Plan
is comprised of a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. The defined benefit plan was closed to new entrants and, effective March
31, 2000, existing active members ceased accruing any further benefits exclusive of adjustments for an inflation factor. The defined contribution
plan is structured whereby the Company contributes an amount equal to a specified percentage of each employee’s contribution up to an annual
maximum contribution per participant.
The projected benefit obligation of the U.K. Pension Plan was $83.2 million and $67.6 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
measurement date used to determine U.K. Pension Plan benefits is December 31. Effective October 13, 2014, the trustees of the U.K. Pension Plan
entered into a “Buy-In” agreement with Pension Insurance Corporation plc, or PIC, to transfer the benefit obligation to PLC for approximately GBP
49.7 million. The “Buy-In” phase of the U.K. Pension Plan is expected to occur during the second half of 2015, at which point, the obligation will be
settled and gain or loss will be recorded.
As of December 31, 2014, 89% of the U.K. Pension Plan portfolio was replaced with an insurance “buy-in” policy, and included 10% pooled bond
funds and 1% cash. As of December 31, 2013, the weighted-average asset allocation of the U.K. Pension Plan was 84% pooled bond funds, 13%
pooled equity funds and 3% cash. An independent trustee committee, appointed by Company management and employees participating in the
U.K. Pension Plan meet to assess risk factors, rates of return, and asset allocations prescribed by the committee’s investment policy statement. In
addition, an annual review is conducted to ensure that proper funding levels are maintained so the U.K. Pension Plan can meet its obligations as
they become due.
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The Company also has retirement and death benefit plans covering employees in Taiwan and certain former employees in Germany. The Company
also has longevity plans covering employees in France. These plans are not significant, individually or in the aggregate, to the consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Information for these plans, along with the U.K. Pension Plan, is included in the tables below.
Certain other foreign subsidiaries maintain benefit plans that are consistent with statutory practices but do not meet the criteria for accounting rules
under defined benefit plans under ASC 715-30 Compensation – Retirement Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans - Pensions. These benefit plans had
obligation balances of $4.1 million and $3.8 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively and are excluded from Retirements Benefits and
from the accompanying tables of pension benefits.

Domestic Defined Benefit Post-Retirement Medical and Dental Plan
The Company sponsors a defined benefit post-retirement medical and dental plan that covers all of its domestic full-time employees, hired prior to
April 1, 1997, who retire after age fifty-five, with at least ten to twenty years of service (depending upon the date of hire).
In 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act were approved in the U.S. Such
Health Care Acts include several provisions that may affect a company’s postretirement benefit plans. The Company has evaluated the effects of
the Health Care Acts and has concluded that there was no current impact on the Company’s domestic defined benefit post-retirement medical and
dental plans.
Eligible employees receive a subsidy from the Company towards the purchase of their retiree medical benefits. The subsidy level is based on the
date of retirement from MacDermid. The annual increase in the Company’s costs for post-retirement medical benefits is subject to a limit of 5% for
those retiring prior to March 31, 1989 and 3% for those retiring after April 1, 1989. Retirees will be required to contribute to the plan costs in excess of
their respective Company limits in addition to their other required contributions.
The projected benefit obligation for the post-retirement plan at December 31, 2014 was comprised of 27% retirees, 40% fully eligible active
participants and 33% other active participants. As described above, the annual increase in healthcare cost to the Company is subject to a defined
limit of 2% or 4% for post-retirement medical benefits, based on the date of retirement; therefore, the healthcare trend rate assumption has no effect
on the amounts reported.

Domestic Defined Benefit Post-Employment Compensation Plan
The Company sponsors a defined benefit post-employment compensation continuation plan that covers all full-time domestic employees.
Employees who have completed at least six months of service, and become permanently disabled and are unable to return to work, are eligible
to receive a benefit under the plan. The benefit may range from one week to a maximum of six months of compensation. The estimated ongoing
after-tax annual cost is not material to the overall consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect to make any cash contributions
to the postretirement benefit plan in 2015 or in each of the four years thereafter.
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The components of net periodic benefit cost of the pension, SERP and post-employment benefit plans were as follows:

Pension & SERP Benefits:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Net periodic benefit expense:
Service cost
Interest cost on the projected
benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service
cost
Amortization of net loss
Plan curtailments
Net periodic (benefit) cost

Post-retirement Benefits:

Foreign

Domestic

-

$ 0.8

$ 0.7

6.9
(9.7)

3.0
(3.5)

$ (2.8)

$

Net periodic (benefit) cost

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

0.1

$ 3.6

$ 0.6

$ 3.6

$ 0.7

1.2
(1.6)

0.5
(0.7)

5.2
(6.6)

2.5
(4.1)

6.1
(7.3)

3.1
(4.5)

-

(3.0)

-

0.1
1.6
-

0.4
-

0.1
0.6
-

0.5
0.1

$ 0.3

$ (2.7)

$ (0.1)

$ 3.9

$ (0.6)

3.1

$ (0.1)

$

$

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Net periodic benefit expense:
Service cost
Interest cost on the projected
benefit obligation
Amortization of prior service
cost

Foreign

$

0.1

Foreign
$

-

Domestic
$

-

Foreign
$

-

Domestic
$

0.1

Foreign
$

-

Domestic
$

-

Foreign
$

-

0.3

-

0.1

-

0.2

-

0.3

-

-

-

-

-

(0.1)

-

(0.1)

-

-

$ 0.2

-

$ 0.2

$ 0.4

$

-

$

0.1

$

$

$

Unrecognized pre-tax actuarial (losses) income recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income were ($21.1) million, $3.5 million, ($30.9)
million and ($17.3) million for the year ended December 31, 2014, the Successor 2013 Period, and the Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods,
respectively. Effective October 13, 2014, the trustees of the U.K. Pension Plan entered into a “Buy-In” agreement with Pension Insurance
Corporation plc, or PIC, to transfer the benefit obligation of the U.K. Pension Plan to PLC. As of December 31, 2014, $9.9 million is included in
accumulated other comprehensive income related to the U.K. Pension Plan, which is expected to be recognized during the second half of 2015 in
connection with the ”Buy-In” agreement.
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Key assumptions used to determine the net periodic benefit expense of the pension and post-retirement benefit liabilities are as follows:

Pension and SERP Benefits
Weighted average assumptions
used to determine net
periodic benefit cost:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Discount cost
Rate of compensation increase
Long-term rate of return on
assets

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

5.2%
4.0%

4.2%
3.4%

5.1%
4.0%

4.1%
3.3%

4.4%
4.0%

4.2%
3.4%

5.2%
4.0%

4.6%
3.4%

7.8%

4.2%

7.8%

4.9%

7.8%

6.5%

7.8%

6.5%

Post-retirement Medical Benefits
Weighted average assumptions
used to determine net
periodic benefit cost:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Discount cost
Long-term rate of return on
assets

5.1%
N/A

Foreign

Domestic

12.4%

5.0%

N/A

N/A

Foreign
11.7%
N/A

Domestic
4.4%
N/A

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

10.8%

5.2%

10.8%

N/A

N/A

N/A
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The following tables summarize changes in plan assets and funded status of the Company’s pension and SERP plans:

Pension and SERP Benefits
Change in Projected Benefit
Obligation:

Beginning of period balance
Acquisitions
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan curtailment
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to
assumption change
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to plan
experience
Benefits and expenses paid
Settlement
Translation adjustment
End of period balance

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic

Foreign

$ 137.4

$ 73.1

6.9
-

0.8
3.0
-

18.1

Domestic

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

-

$ 144.3

$ 75.0

$ 121.5

$ 67.6

142.0
0.7
1.2
(3.0)

72.9
0.1
0.5
0.2

3.6
5.2
-

0.6
2.5
-

3.6
6.1
-

0.7
3.1
-

20.2

(2.8)

(1.0)

(7.1)

1.6

15.4

3.9

(0.6)
(4.2)
-

1.6
(4.3)
(0.5)
(5.6)

(0.7)
-

(0.2)
(0.9)
(0.5)
2.0

(0.6)
(3.4)
-

(3.2)
(2.7)
(0.9)

1.5
(3.8)
-

0.5
(3.6)
(0.3)
3.1

$ 157.6

$ 88.3

$ 137.4

$ 73.1

$ 142.0

$ 72.9

$144.3

$ 75.0

$

Foreign

-

$

Pension and SERP Benefits
Change in Fair Value of Plan
Assets:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic

Foreign

Beginning of period balance

$ 127.0

$ 88.1

Acquisitions
Actual return on plan assets,
net of expenses
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Settlement
Translation adjustment

-

-

11.2
(4.2)
-

End of period balance
Funded status of plan

Domestic

Domestic

Foreign

-

$ 102.6

$ 79.6

123.3

86.8

-

16.0
0.2
(3.5)
(0.5)
(5.8)

4.4
(0.7)
-

(2.5)
2.5
(0.7)
(0.6)
2.6

134.0

94.5

127.0

$ (23.6)

$ 6.2

$ (10.4)

$

-

Foreign
$

Domestic
$

Foreign

91.0

$ 68.1

-

-

-

21.7
2.3
(3.3)
-

7.4
2.7
(2.2)
(0.7)

9.4
6.0
(3.8)
-

6.6
5.1
(3.2)
(0.3)
3.3

88.1

123.3

86.8

102.6

79.6

$ 15.0

$ (18.8)

$ 13.9

$ (41.7)

$ 4.6

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $231.5 million and $191.8 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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The following table summarizes changes in the Company’s post-retirement medical benefit obligations:

Post-retirement Medical Benefits
Change in Accumulated
Post-retirement Benefit:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic

Foreign

Beginning of period balance

$ 6.8

$ 0.3

Acquisitions
Service cost
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to
assumption change
Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to
plan experience
Other
Benefits and expenses paid

0.1
0.3
-

-

0.5

End of period balance

$

Domestic

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

-

$ 6.9

$ 0.4

$ 0.6

6.7
0.1
-

0.3
-

0.2
0.2

-

0.1
0.3
0.3

-

-

0.1

-

(0.1)

(0.1)

0.6

-

(0.3)

-

(0.1)

-

(0.1)
(0.5)

-

0.2
(0.6)

0.4
-

7.4

$ 0.3

$ 6.8

$ 0.3

$ 6.6

$ 0.3

$ 6.9

$ 0.4

$

Foreign

-

$

Foreign
$

-

Post-retirement Medical Benefits
Change in Fair Value of Plan
Assets:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Beginning of period balance
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

$

-

Foreign
$

-

Domestic
$

-

Foreign
$

-

Domestic
$

-

Foreign
$

-

Domestic
$

-

Foreign
$

-

0.3
(0.3)

-

0.1
(0.1)

-

0.3
0.2
(0.5)

-

0.3
0.3
(0.6)

-

End of period balance

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Funded status of plan

$ (7.4)

$ (0.3)

$ (6.8)

$ (0.3)

$ (6.6)

$ (0.3)

$ (6.9)

$ (0.4)
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Amounts included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of the following:

December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

Prepaid pension assets
Foreign pension

$

10.2

$

19.1

Total long term assets

10..2

19.1

Other current liabilities
Domestic pension

0.4

-

Total current liabilities

0.4

-

23.2

10.4

4.0

4.0

Domestic post-retirement medical benefits

7.4

6.8

Foreign post-retirement medical benefits

0.3

0.2

Retirement benefits, less current portion
Domestic pension & SERP
Foreign pensions

Total non-current liabilities

$

34.9

$

21.4

Key assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations in the actuarial valuations of the pension and post-retirement benefit liabilities are as follows:

Pension and SERP Benefits
Weighted average assumptions used
to measure benefit obligations at
measurement date:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

December 31, 2014
Domestic
4.2%
3.5%

December 31, 2013
Foreign
2.5%
2.9%

Domestic
5.2%
4.0%

Foreign
4.2%
3.3%

Post-retirement Medical Benefits
Weighted average assumptions used
to measure benefit obligations at
measurement date:
Discount rate

December 31, 2014
Domestic
4.2%
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Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) consist of the following:
Pension and SERP Benefits
For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Net actuarial gain (loss)
Prior service credits (costs)

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

$ (10.4)
-

$ (10.1)
-

$ 5.7
-

$ (2.1)
-

10.5
0.6

$ 10.8
-

$ (35.0)
(0.7)

$ (16.9)
-

$ (10.4)

$ (10.1)

$ 5.7

$ (2.1)

11.1

$ 10.8

$ (35.7)

$ (16.9)

Post-retirement Medical Benefits
For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April 23, 2013)
through December 31, 2013

For the ten months ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Net actuarial (loss) gain
Prior service (costs) credits

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign

Domestic

Foreign
$

$ (0.6)
-

$

-

$ (0.1)
-

$

-

$

0.1
(0.5)

$ (0.1)
0.3

$

0.3
(0.6)

$ (0.6)

$

-

$ (0.1)

$

-

$ (0.4)

$ 0.2

$ (0.3)

0.4

$ 0.4

The major categories of assets in the Company’s various defined benefit pension plans as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are presented in the
following tables. Assets are segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value
(see Note 11 - Fair Value Measurements). The Company’s domestic and foreign post-retirement plans are unfunded.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Asset Category

December 31, 2014

Domestic equities
Pooled funds holding global fixed income
securities
Mutual funds holding U.S. Treasury
Securities
Mutual funds holding domestic securities
Limited partnership interests(a)
Designated benefit fund(b)
Insurance “Buy-In” Policy(c)
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Total

$

28.9

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)
$

Significant other
observable inputs
(Level 2)

28.9

$

Significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
-

$

-

9.2

-

9.2

-

11.8
4.8
77.1
1.1
83.2
12.4

11.8
4.8
12.4

77.1
1.1
-

83.2
-

228.5

$

57.9

$

87.4

$
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Fair Value Measurements Using

Asset Category

December 31, 2013

Domestic equities
Pooled funds holding global equity
securities
Pooled funds holding global fixed income
securities
Mutual funds holding U.S. Treasury
Securities
Mutual funds holding domestic securities
Limited partnership interests(a)
Designated benefit fund(b)
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Total

$
(a)
(b)
(c)

23.2

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)
$

Significant other
observable inputs
(Level 2)

23.2

Significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

$

$

-

10.9

-

10.9

-

72.8

-

72.8

-

11.8
4.2
82.4
1.5
8.4

11.8
4.2
8.4

82.4
1.5
-

-

215.2

$

47.6

$

167.6

$

-

This category represents limited partner investments with general partners that invest in equity securities.
This category includes assets held in a fund with the Bank of Taiwan as prescribed by the Taiwan government in accordance
with local statutory rules.
This category represents assets in the U.K Pension Plan invested in insurance contract with PIC in connection with “Buy-In”
of U.K Pension Plan.

The Company’s retirement plan assets are reported at fair value. Level 1 assets include investments in publicly traded equity securities and mutual
funds. These securities are actively traded and valued using quoted prices for identical securities from the market exchanges. Level 2 assets
consist of global fixed-income securities, limited partnership interests and commingled funds that are not actively traded or whose underlying
investments are valued using observable marketplace inputs. The fair value of plan assets invested in fixed-income securities is generally
determined using market approach pricing methodology, where observable prices are obtained by market transactions involving identical or
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. Plan assets that are invested in limited partnership interests and commingled funds are
valued using a unit price or net asset value (NAV) that is based on the underlying fair value of investments of the fund. During the Successor 2013
Period, Level 3 assets included investments in pooled funds holding real estate in the United Kingdom which were valued using discounted cash
flow models which considered long-term lease estimates, future rental receipts and estimated residual values. Those assets were sold during the
Successor 2013 Period.
As of December 31, 2014, expected future benefit payments related to the Company’s defined benefit plans were as follows:

Year End
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Subsequent five years
Total

Domestic

Foreign

Post-retirement
Benefits __

Total

$

8.5
7.3
6.7
6.6
7.0
40.2

$

3.3
0.3
0.3
0.4
0.4
2.0

$

0.4
0.4
0.4
0.4
0.4
2.2

$

12.2
8.0
7.4
7.4
7.8
44.4

$

76.3

$

6.7

$

4.2

$

87.2
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8. INCOME TAXES
(Loss) income before income taxes, non-controlling interests and dividends on preferred shares are as follows:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Domestic
Foreign

$

(103.9)
73.0

$

(7.9)
(193.5)

$

(74.2)
100.7

$

(36.8)
107.8

Total

$

(30.9)

$

(201.4)

$

26.5

$

71.0

Income tax (benefit) expense consisted of the following:

Current:
US:
Federal
State and local
Foreign:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

(0.6)
0.4
36.7

$

0.3
0.1
1.3

$

(5.3)
0.3
22.8

$

1.8
0.5
30.7

Total current

36.5

1.7

17.8

33.0

Deferred:
US:
Federal
State and local
Foreign

(18.3)
0.4
(25.3)

(2.1)
(0.3)
(5.1)

(3.1)
0.1
(1.8)

(4.9)
0.1
(3.5)

(43.2)

(7.5)

(4.8)

(8.3)

Total deferred
(Benefit) Provision for income taxes

$

(6.7)

$

(5.8)

$

13.0

$
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Income tax (benefit) expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal statutory tax rates to pretax income, as a result of the following:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

U.S. Federal Statutory tax rate
Taxes computed at U.S. statutory rate

35.0%
$

State income taxes, net of Federal benefit
Preferred dividend valuation
Tax on foreign operations
Net change in reserve
Change in valuation allowances
Provision for tax on undistributed foreign
earnings
Change of tax rate
Non-deductible Transaction Costs
Foreign exchange impact on provision
Purchase Price Contigency
Other, net
Income tax (benefit) expense
Effective tax rate

$

(10.8)

35.0%
$

(70.5)

35.0%
$

9.3

35.0%
$

24.8

0.8
(7.7)
1.5
0.2

0.4
60.2
0.4
(0.7)
(0.9)

(2.2)
0.8
(0.1)
3.6

(0.4)
(11.6)
5.7
6.9

(3.7)
(0.5)
6.5
6.6
0.4

0.8
4.2
0.3

(0.7)
(0.5)
1.9
0.1
0.8

0.2
(1.0)
0.1
-

(6.7)
21.65%

$

(5.8)
2.89%

$

13.0
48.95%

$

24.7
34.78%

The Company has provided deferred taxes under ASC 740-30-25, formerly APB 23, for the presumed repatriation to the United States earnings
from several non-U.S. subsidiaries. The indefinite reversal criterion of ASC 740-30-25 allows the Company to overcome that presumption to the
extent the earnings are indefinitely reinvested outside the United States. The Company has not recognized a deferred tax liability for U.S. taxes on
the undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries which have been determined to be indefinitely reinvested. The undistributed earnings of
those subsidiaries were $264 million at December 31, 2014. The estimated tax liability related to the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries
that are indefinitely reinvested is approximately $43.5 million December 31, 2014.
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The components of deferred income taxes at December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Accrued liabilities
Employee benefits
Research and development costs
Tax credits
Net operating losses
Goodwill
Other

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

$

$

5.9
9.7
20.2
11.2
39.3
17.5
31.8
12.5

1.7
3.3
3.7
12.3
14.1
34.0
21.4
8.2

Total deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance

148.1
(19.7)

98.7
(15.8)

Total gross deferred tax assets

128.4

82.9

Deferred tax liabilities:
Plant and equipment
Intangibles
Undistributed foreign earnings
Other

19.7
280.7
2.6
2.5

17.5
210.4
6.3
8.0

Total gross deferred tax liabilities

305.5

242.2

Net deferred tax liability

$

177.1

$

159.3

The following schedule presents net current and net long-term deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

Net current deferred tax asset
Net noncurrent deferred tax asset

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

$

$

25.2
202.3

Net noncurrent deferred tax liability
Total net deferred tax liability

18.7
6.5

$

177.1

11.0
(0.5)
10.5
169.8

$

159.3

Net current deferred tax assets are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and net noncurrent deferred tax assets are included in
other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Valuation allowances reflect our assessment that it is more likely than not that certain state deferred tax assets and foreign net operating losses
will not be realized. The assessment of the need for a valuation allowance requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future
earnings, reversal of existing temporary differences and available tax planning strategies. If actual experience differs from these estimates and
assumptions, the recorded deferred tax asset may not be fully realized resulting in an increase to income tax expense in our results of operations.
The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was $19.7 million and $15.8 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. A valuation
allowance of $27.2 million will be raised in the first quarter of 2015 as it is more likely than not that the foreign tax credit carryover will no longer be
realizable as a result of the Arysta Acquisition.
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At December 31, 2014, the Company had state and foreign net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $314 million and $13.0 million,
respectively. The majority of the state net operating loss carry-forwards expire between the years 2016 and 2029. The state net operating loss
carry-forwards result in a deferred tax asset of $14.6 million. A valuation allowance of $14.6 million has been provided against the deferred tax asset
because it is more likely than not that the Company will not be able to utilize the state net operating losses before they expire. The foreign tax
net operating loss carry-forwards expire between the years 2016 through 2030, with some being unlimited in utilization. This results in a deferred
tax asset of $3.0 million. A valuation allowance of $1.6 million has been provided against the deferred tax assets associated with certain foreign
net operating loss carry-forwards because the recent results of the business units associated with the loss carry-forwards indicate that it is more
likely than not that the benefits from the net operating loss carry-forwards will not be fully realized. A valuation allowance of $1.2 million has been
provided against other deferred tax assets as it is more likely than not that the benefits will not be realized.
In addition, at December 31, 2014, the Company has approximately $27.2 million, $7.7 million, $2.1 million and $2.3 million of foreign tax credits,
research and development credits, alternative minimum tax credits and state tax credits (net of federal tax), respectively, that are available for
carryforward. These carry-forward periods range from ten years to an unlimited period of time. A valuation allowance of $2.3 million is provided for
the state tax credits as the Company believes the benefits from the credits will not be realized.

Tax Uncertainties
The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2014, for the Successor and
Predecessor 2013 Periods and the Predecessor 2012 Period:

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of
period
Additions based on current year tax
positions
Additions based upon prior year tax
positions (including acquired uncertain tax
positions)
Reductions due to closed statutes
Reductions for settlements and payments
Total Unrecognized Tax benefits at end of
period

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended
October 31, 2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

$

25.6

$

-

$

22.7

$

18.8

1.7

0.3

0.8

2.3

7.4
(6.7)
(0.3)

26.3
(1.0)
-

0.3
(0.3)
-

1.7
(0.1)
-

27.7

$

25.6

$

23.5

$

22.7

The Company has $27.7 million of total unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2014, of which $17.6 million, if recognized, would impact the
Company’s effective tax rate. The Company made payments in 2014 to settle uncertain tax liabilities of $0.3 million. Due to expected statute of
limitations expirations, the Company estimates that $3.5 million of the total unrecognized benefits will reverse within the next twelve months.
The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters as part of income tax expense. The Company has $4.7 million
and $4.2 million accrued for interest and penalties as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Changes in these balances are
recorded in income tax expense or as a reduction of the balance for payments made.
The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax of multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. The
Company has closed all U.S. federal tax matters for years through 2010. Federal income tax returns for 2011 through December 2014 are currently
open to examination although no audits are ongoing. The Company is undergoing audits in the United Kingdom for the 2009 and 2011 tax years as
well as a notification requesting that the 2008 tax year remain open for one subsidiary.
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As of December 31, 2014 the following tax years remained subject to examination by the major tax jurisdictions indicated below:

Major Jurisdiction

Open Years

Brazil....................................................................................................................... 2009 through current
Belgium................................................................................................................... 2011 through current
China...................................................................................................................... 2011 through current
France..................................................................................................................... 2011 through current
Germany................................................................................................................. 2010 through current
Italy......................................................................................................................... 2010 through current
Japan...................................................................................................................... 2009 through current
Netherlands............................................................................................................. 2009 through current
Singapore................................................................................................................ 2010 through current
United Kingdom....................................................................................................... 2008 through current
United States........................................................................................................... 2011 through current

9. LONG-TERM DEBT
The Company’s debt consisted of the following:

Borrowings under lines of credit
First lien secured credit facility, due 2020, interest at the greater of 4.00% or LIBOR plus 3.00%,
weighted average interest rate of 4.00% at December 31, 2014
USD Incremental Loans, due 2020, interest at the greater of 4.00% or LIBOR plus 3.00%, weighted
average interest rate of 4.00% at December 31, 2014
New Tranche B Term Loans, due 2020, interest at the greater of 4.00% or LIBOR plus 3.00%,
weighted
average interest rate of 4.00% at December 31, 2014
Euro Tranche Term Loans, due 2020, interest at the greater of 4.25% or LIBOR plus 3.25%, weighted
average interest rate of 4.25% at December 31, 2014
Other
Total debt
Less: current portion debt
Total long-term debt

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

$

$

-

-

743.7

751.3

294.9

-

129.0

-

246.2
2.1

1.0

1,415.9

752.3

(15.1)

(8.0)

$ 1,400.8

$

744.3
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Minimum future principal payments on long-term debt are as follows:

Year End
2015....................................................................................................................................................................................... $
15.1
2016.......................................................................................................................................................................................
15.0
2017........................................................................................................................................................................................
14.7
2018.......................................................................................................................................................................................
14.6
2019.......................................................................................................................................................................................
14.5
Thereafter.............................................................................................................................................................................
1,342.0
Total.................................................................................................................................................................................... $

1,415.9

Predecessor Refinancing
On June 7, 2013, we completed a refinancing arrangement whereby the outstanding Tranche B term loan, Tranche C term loan, revolving credit
facility and senior subordinated notes payable were replaced with two new senior secured credit facilities. The new senior secured credit facilities
consist of (i) a $805 million first lien credit facility allocated between a $755 million term loan denominated in U.S. Dollars, a $25.0 million revolving
credit facility denominated in U.S. Dollars and $25.0 million multi-currency revolving credit facility and (ii) a $360 million second lien term loan credit
facility denominated in U.S. Dollars. The first lien term loan and related revolving credit facilities accrue interest at the greater of 4.00% or LIBOR
plus 3.00% and has quarterly principal payments of $1.9 million. The revolving credit facility portion of the first lien term loan matures June 7, 2018.
The first lien term loan matures June 7, 2020. The second lien term loan accrued interest at the greater of 7.75% or LIBOR plus 6.75% and matures
December 7, 2020. The first lien term loan was originally issued at a discount of $1.9 million and the second lien term loan was issued at a discount
of $3.6 million. The new senior secured credit facilities are guaranteed by MacDermid Holdings and certain of its direct and indirect wholly owned
domestic subsidiaries and are secured by the personal property now owned or hereafter acquired of MacDermid Holdings and certain of its direct
and indirect wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries and also 65% of the stock of the Company’s first tier foreign subsidiaries, subject to customary
exceptions, exclusions and release mechanisms.

Amendments
In connection with the MacDermid Acquisition, on October 31, 2013, MacDermid entered into Amendment No. 1 to the First Lien Credit Agreement
and MacDermid paid $373 million in connection with the repayment of the $360 million in principal on the second lien credit facility. Pursuant to
Amendment No. 1 Platform became a co-borrower on all obligations under the $50.0 million Revolving Credit Facility and the second term loan
and the negative and affirmative covenants contained therein were modified to reflect the new corporate structure. Otherwise, the terms relating
to the incremental facility, maturity, indicative margin, LIBOR floor, ranking, guarantors, mandatory prepayments and financial covenants remained
unmodified by the amendment. In connection with the MacDermid Acquisition, the first lien term loan was marked to fair value by adding the
original discount of $1.8 million to the carrying value at the time.

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
On August 6, 2014, we amended and restated the Company’s senior secured credit facilities by entering into Amendment No. 2 to the First Lien
Credit Agreement and the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, and agreeing on the implementation of certain Further Amendments
upon consummation of the CAS Acquisition to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. As amended by the Further Amendments,
the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement generally provides for, among other things, (i) Platform as a borrower under the term loan
facility, (ii) increased flexibility with respect to permitted acquisitions, (iii) the ability to request incremental facilities in currencies other than U.S.
Dollars, and (iv) securing foreign assets in support of future term loans. The Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also allows us,
subject to certain limitations, to extend the maturity of our term loans and/or revolving credit commitments.
On October 1, 2014, we and MacDermid, as borrowers, MacDermid Holdings, certain subsidiaries of MacDermid Holdings and Platform party
thereto, Barclays Bank PLC, as collateral agent and administrative agent, and the incremental lender entered into the Incremental Amendment
to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement for an increase in the Term Loan Facility of the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement in an aggregate principal amount of $300 million. Except as set forth in the Incremental Amendment, such USD Incremental Loans
have identical terms as the existing Tranche B Term Loans and are otherwise subject to the provisions of the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement. The proceeds from the Incremental Amendment were used to finance the Agriphar Acquisition.
Pursuant to Amendment No. 2, upon the consummation of the CAS Acquisition on November 3, 2014, the Further Amendments became effective
and (i) we borrowed New Tranche B Term Loans in an aggregate principal amount of $130 million through an increase in our existing tranche B
term loan facility, (ii) our existing U.S. Dollar revolving credit facility was increased by $62.5 million to $87.5 million and (iii) our existing multicurrency
revolving credit facility was increased by $62.5 million to $87.5 million. On the date of the CAS Acquisition, we borrowed $60 million under the U.S.
Dollar revolving credit facility and €55 million under the multicurrency revolving credit facility both of which were settled by December 31, 2014. In
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addition, Euro Tranche Term Loans in an aggregate amount of €205 million ($256 million) were borrowed by a newly formed indirect subsidiary
of Platform, MAS Holdings and NAIP. Pursuant to the Further Amendments, MAS Holdings and NAIP were added as borrowers under the Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement in respect of the Euro Tranche Term Loans and certain additional domestic and foreign subsidiaries of
Platform and MacDermid, including MAS Holdings and NAIP, became guarantors under our Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, and
in connection therewith, pledged certain additional collateral to secure the obligations incurred under the Euro Tranche Term Loans and/or other
loans incurred under the facility.
With the exception of the collateral package as noted above and the interest rate, the terms of the Euro Tranche Term Loans are substantially similar
to Platform’s New Tranche B Term Loans and bear interest at a rate per annum equal to an applicable margin plus an adjusted Eurocurrency Rate,
calculated as set forth in our Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, and mature on June 7, 2020.
The Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, as amended by the Further Amendments, contains customary covenants including
limitations on additional indebtedness, dividends and other distributions, entry into new lines of business, use of loan proceeds, capital
expenditures, restricted payments, restrictions on liens, transactions with affiliates, amendments to organizational documents, accounting changes,
sale and leaseback transactions and dispositions. The Revolving Credit Facility also impose a financial covenant requiring us, if our borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility and letter of credit obligations exceed 25% of the revolving credit commitments as of the last day of any fiscal
quarter, to maintain a 6.5 to 1.0 ratio of (x) consolidated indebtedness secured by a first lien minus unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of the
borrowers and guarantors under the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to (y) consolidated EBITDA for the four most recent fiscal
quarters, subject to a right to cure. As of December 31, 2014, the Company was in compliance with the debt covenants contained in its credit
facilities.
The Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also contains customary events of default that include, among others, non-payment of
principal, interest or fees, violation of certain covenants, inaccuracy of representations and warranties, failure to make payment on certain other
material indebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency events, material judgments and a change of control of Platform. Upon the occurrence of an
event of default, payment of any outstanding loans under the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement may be accelerated. Borrowings
under the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement are also subject to mandatory prepayment from the proceeds of certain dispositions
of assets and from certain insurance and condemnation proceeds, excess cash flow and debt incurrences, in each case, subject to customary
carve-outs and exceptions.
The Company also has letters of credit outstanding of $1.0 million and $4.6 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The letters of credit
reduce the borrowings available under the new revolving credit facility.

Predecessor Retired Senior Secured Credit Facility
On April 12, 2007, the Predecessor closed three new senior secured credit facilities consisting of (i) a $360 million tranche B term loan credit facility
denominated in U.S. Dollars, (ii) a $250 million tranche C term loan credit facility denominated in Euro and (iii) a $50.0 million revolving credit facility
denominated in U.S. Dollars.
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, interest payments of $2.1 million and $1.5 million were made on the tranche B and trance C term loans,
respectively.
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, principal payments of $218 million were made on the tranche B term loan. The tranche B principal payments
for the Predecessor 2013 Period consisted of a quarterly payment of $0.9 million, excess cash flow prepayment of $10.3 million and the retirement
payoff of the outstanding balance of $206 million.
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, principal payments of $146 million were made on the tranche C term loan. The principal payments for
the Predecessor 2013 Period consist of a quarterly payment of $0.6 million, excess cash flow prepayment of $6.8 million and the payoff of the
outstanding balance of $139 million.
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, the Company recorded $1.1 million of other income related to the remeasurement gain on the foreign currency
denominated tranche C term loan.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, $3.6 million and $5.1 million of principal and interest payments, respectively, were made on the tranche
B term loan and $2.6 million and $3.9 million of principal and interest payments, respectively, were made on the tranche C loan.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Predecessor recorded $2.7 million of other expense related to the remeasurement loss on the
foreign currency denominated tranche C term loan.
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Predecessor Retired Revolving Credit Facility
As discussed above, on April 12, 2007, the Predecessor entered into a $50.0 million revolving credit facility. In May 2012, the revolving credit
facility was amended and extended; the facility was retired on June 7, 2013 as part of the refinancing. There were no balances outstanding under
the revolving credit facility on the retirement date or as of December 31, 2012. During the Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods, the Company paid
commitment fees of $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively, for the revolving credit facility.
The Predecessor had letters of credit outstanding of $3.9 million at December 31, 2012. The letters of credit reduced the borrowings available
under the revolving credit facility. Upon the retirement of this revolving credit facility, the outstanding letters of credit were reissued under the new
revolving credit facility.

Predecessor Senior Subordinated Notes
On April 12, 2007, the Predecessor issued $350 million of senior subordinated notes with a fixed interest rate of 9.50% at par. As discussed
above and as part of the refinance and recapitalization, the senior subordinated notes were called on June 7, 2013 and $250 million of principal
and a redemption premium of $9.4 million were paid to retire the tendered senior subordinated notes. Additionally, $106 million of the new
debt proceeds from the refinance and recapitalization were escrowed to pay the outstanding called senior subordinated notes of $101 million.
Additionally, proceeds from the refinance were escrowed for a redemption premium of $3.2 million on the called senior subordinated notes
outstanding and accrued interest of $2.2 million related to these called senior subordinated notes. The escrowed funds were paid to the holders of
the remaining senior subordinated note holders on July 8, 2013.
During the Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods, the Company made interest payments of $20.0 million and $33.3 million, respectively, under the
senior subordinated notes.

Japanese Senior Secured Bank Debt
In February 2007, the Predecessor borrowed $15.0 million denominated in Japanese Yen in three separate notes that were paid in full by their
respective maturity dates between 2009 and 2013. In May 2007, the Predecessor borrowed an additional $7.6 million, denominated in Japanese
Yen, which was paid in full in May 2012. In September 2007, the Predecessor borrowed an additional $2.5 million, denominated in Japanese Yen
which was paid in full in July 2013. In October 2009, the Predecessor borrowed $5.6 million denominated in Japanese Yen which was paid in full in
October 2013.
During the Predecessor 2013 Period, the Company made principal and interest payments of $4.2 million and $0.1 million, respectively, on Japanese
senior secured bank debt. During the year ended December 31, 2012, $4.6 million and $0.1 million of principal and interest payments, respectively,
were made on the Japanese senior secured bank debt.

Other Debt Facilities
The Company carries various short-term debt facilities worldwide which are used to fund short-term cash needs. As of December 31, 2014 and
2013, there were no borrowings under these other debt facilities. The Company also has various overdraft facilities available. At December 31,
2014 and 2013, the capacity under these overdraft facilities was approximately $20.9 million and $22.1 million, respectively. As of December 31,
2014, the Company’s overdraft lines bore interest rates ranging from 1% to 6.25%.

10. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to risks relating to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and
commodity prices. Derivative financial instruments, such as foreign currency exchange rate instruments are used to manage changes in market
conditions related to foreign currency exchange rate volatility. All derivatives are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value at the
end of each year. The counterparty to the Company’s derivative agreements is a major international financial institution. The Company continually
monitors its positions and the credit ratings of its counterparties and does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Foreign Currency
The Company conducts a significant portion of its business in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar, the currency in which the consolidated financial
statements are reported, and as a result, the Company’s operating results are affected by foreign currency exchange rate volatility relative to the
U.S. dollar.
The Company’s Autotype subsidiary in the United Kingdom uses the British Pound Sterling, or GBP, as its functional currency while, currently,
approximately 35% of its revenues are denominated in U.S. Dollars. In order to protect against the risk of a strengthening GBP, the Corporate
Treasury Group entered into forward contracts in each of the last three years on behalf of the Autotype subsidiary to deliver U.S. dollars at a
fixed GBP rate and to receive GBP in exchange for the U.S. dollar. As of December 31, 2014, the aggregate U.S. Dollar notional amount of foreign
currency forward contracts, none of which were designated as hedges, was $14.0 million, to be settled within one year. The Company uses the
discounted period-end forward rates methodology to determine market value of its forward contracts. As of December 31, 2014, the fair value of
these contracts was a current liability of $0.1 million that was recorded as an unrealized loss under other (expense) income in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

74 Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollars in millions, except per share

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014 data and unless otherwise indicated)
On September 23, 2014, in connection with the Agriphar and CAS Acquisitions, the Company entered into two separate foreign exchange forward
contracts. The first contract was for the Company to buy €277 million at a rate of 1.287845, which was settled on October 1, 2014 with a realized
loss of $7.0 million that was recorded as a part of other (expense) income in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. The
second contract was for the Company to sell €204 million at a rate of 1.284 which was settled upon closing of the CAS acquisition on November 3,
2014 with a realized gain of $7.3 million that was also recorded as a part of other (expense) income in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Operations.
During the Successor and Predecessor 2013 Periods, $0.2 million and ($0.4) million, respectively, of unrealized gains (losses) were recorded in
other comprehensive income relating to foreign currency exchange contracts. During the Successor and Predecessor 2013 Periods, the Company
recorded realized gains (losses) of $0.1 million and ($0.4) million, respectively, in other income (expense) related to the settlement of foreign
exchange contracts. During the year ended December 31, 2012, unrealized gains and (losses) of $0.5 million, net of tax, was recorded to other
comprehensive income related to foreign currency hedges. During the years ended December 31, 2012, the Predecessor recorded realized gains
of $0.1 million in other income (expense) related to the settlement of hedged foreign exchange contracts.

Interest Rates (Predecessor)
The Predecessor entered into an interest rate collar agreement in June 2007 to protect against interest rate changes on its floating rate U.S. Dollar
denominated debt. Such interest rate collar agreement had a floor of 5.20% and a ceiling of 6.25%, a notional amount of $100 million and covered
the period from June 30, 2010 through June 30, 2012.
Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is designated as, and meets all the required criteria for, a cash flow hedge are recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified into earnings as the underlying hedged item affects earnings. Amounts reclassified into
earnings related to the interest rate collar agreement are included in interest expense. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the expense
recorded in the statement of operations for hedge ineffectiveness was de minimus. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Predecessor
recorded $1.5 million of unrealized gains, net of tax, to Other Comprehensive Income.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company made payments of $2.4 million related to the difference between the interest rate collar
agreement rate of 5.20% and the actual interest rate on the Company’s floating rate U.S. Dollar denominated debt. These payments were recorded
as interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Company determines fair value measurements used in its consolidated financial statements based upon the exit price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants exclusive of any transaction related costs, as
determined by either the principal market or the most advantageous market. The principal market is the market with the greatest level of activity
and volume for the asset or liability. Absent a principal market to measure fair value, the Company has used the most advantageous market,
which is the market in which the Company would receive the highest selling price for the asset or pay the lowest price to settle the liability, after
considering transaction related costs. However, when using the most advantageous market, transaction related costs are only considered to
determine which market is the most advantageous and these costs are then excluded when applying a fair value measurement.
Inputs used in the valuation techniques to derive fair values are classified based on a three-level hierarchy. The basis for fair value measurements
for each level within the hierarchy is described below with Level 1 having the highest priority and Level 3 having the lowest.
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.
• Level 2 – quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in non-active markets;
and model derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant valuation drivers are observable.
• Level 3 – significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable and/or reflect the Company’s market assumptions.
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The following tables present the Company’s financial instruments, assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurement Using

December 31, 2014
Asset Category
Money market accounts
Available for sale equity securities
Derivatives

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)

Significant other
observable inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

$

15.4
2.3
0.1

$

15.4
1.5
-

$

0.8
0.1

$

-

Total

$

17.8

$

16.9

$

0.9

$

-

Liability Category
Long term contingent consideration

$

63.9

$

-

$

-

$

63.9

Fair Value Measurement Using

December 31, 2013
Asset Category
Money market accounts
Available for sale equity securities
Derivatives

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)

Significant other
observable inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

$

78.6
2.3
0.2

$

78.6
1.5
-

$

0.8
0.2

$

-

Total

$

81.1

$

80.1

$

1.0

$

-

Liability Category
Long term contingent consideration

$

34.8

$

-

$

-

$

34.8

Money market accounts are included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. Available for sale equity securities and acquired
investments are included in other long term assets in the balance sheet.
The following table presents the carrying value and estimated fair value of the Company’s long term debt:

December 31, 2014
Carrying Value
First lien secured credit facility, including
current portion
USD Incremental Loans, including current
portion
New Tranche B Term Loan, including current
portion
Euro Tranche Term Loans, including current
portion
Other

$

$

743.7

December 31, 2013
Fair Value
$

Carrying Value
728.8

$

Fair Value

751.3

$

752.6

294.9

289.0

-

-

129.0

126.5

-

-

246.2
2.1

241.3
2.0

-

-

1,415.9
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of the Company’s financial instruments, assets and liabilities:

Money market accounts - The Company invests in various money market funds which are managed by financial institutions. These money

market funds are not publicly traded, but historically have been highly liquid. The fair value of the money market accounts is determined by the
banks based upon the funds’ net asset values, or NAV. All of the money market accounts currently permit daily investments and redemptions at
$1.00 NAV.

Available for sale equity securities - Equity securities classified as available for sale are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting

date multiplied by the quantity held, and are categorized as Level 1 instruments, whereas shares of unit investment trusts are categorized as Level 2
instruments.

Derivatives - The fair values of foreign currency derivatives were determined using pricing models based upon observable market inputs including
both forward and spot prices for the underlying currencies.

First Lien, USD Incremental Loans, New Tranche B Term Loan and Euro Tranche Term Loans – These financial instruments are measured
using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the carrying amount of the related debt. Such instruments are valued using Level 2
inputs.

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Successor
Series A Preferred Stock
On April 25, 2013, the Company issued two preferred shares, one to each of the Founder Entities for $20. In connection with the Initial Public
Offering on May 22, 2013, the Founder Entities purchased an additional 1,999,998 preferred shares for $20,000. Upon the Domestication, such
preferred shares were automatically converted into shares of our Series A Preferred Stock. As a result, the Founder Entities are the current holders
of our outstanding 2,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock. Holders of our Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dividends on their
Series A Preferred Stock in the form of shares of our common stock. On December 31, 2014, we approved a stock dividend of 10,050,290 shares
of our common stock with respect to our outstanding Series A Preferred Stock, which represented 20% of the appreciation of the market price of
our common stock over the Initial Public Offering price of $10.00 multiplied by the total Initial Public Offering shares. The dividend price was $22.85
(calculated based upon the average of the last ten trading days of the year’s volume weighted average share prices), and the shares were issued
on January 2, 2015 based on the volume weighted average price of $23.16 on December 31, 2014. In subsequent years, the dividend amount will
be calculated based on the appreciated stock price compared to the highest dividend price previously used in calculating the Series A Preferred
Stock dividends.
Shares of Series A Preferred Stock will be automatically converted into shares of common stock on a one for one basis (i) in the event of a change
of control of the Company following an acquisition or (ii) upon the last day of the seventh full financial year following the MacDermid Acquisition,
being December 31, 2020 (extendable by our Board for three additional years). Each share of Series A Preferred Stock is convertible into one
share of common stock at the option of the holder until December 31, 2020 and has certain voting rights.
During the Successor 2013 Period, the Company recognized a non-cash charge related to the fair value of the preferred dividend rights of $172.0
million. The fair value of the preferred dividend rights was measured based on significant inputs not observable in the market (Level 3 inputs).
Key assumptions included the fair value of the common stock and an assumption of volatility. The fair value was calculated using a Monte-Carlo
simulation.

Underwritten Public Offering
On November 11, 2014, we entered into an underwriting agreement with Barclays Capital Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, as
representatives of several underwriters relating to the underwritten public offering of 16,445,000 shares of our common stock at a public offering
price of $24.50 per share. This number of shares includes 2,145,000 shares sold to the underwriters upon exercise in full of their option to
purchase additional shares. This offering was registered with the SEC pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1, as amended (File Nos. 333199816 and 333-200093), initially filed by Platform on November 3, 2014. The offering closed on November 17, 2014 and resulted in gross proceeds
to Platform of approximately $403 million, before underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses of $14.1 million.

Issuance of Securities in Connection with Acquisitions
In connection with the Agriphar Acquisition, on October 1, 2014, we issued to a representative of Percival 711,551 restricted shares of our common
stock, which will become unrestricted beginning January 2, 2018 unless agreed otherwise in accordance with the terms of the acquisition
agreement. These shares can also be transferred back to us within six-months after the closing of the Agriphar Acquisition for €15 million ($18.2
million based on the December 31, 2014 exchange rate of $1.21 per €1.00).
In connection with the CAS Acquisition, on November 3, 2014, we issued to Chemtura 2,000,000 shares of our common stock restricted under
Rule 144.
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Private Placements
On October 8, 2014 and November 6, 2014, we completed the October/November Private Placement to certain qualified institutional buyers and a
limited number of institutional accredited investors of an aggregate of 16,060,960 shares and 9,404,064 shares, respectively, of our common stock
at a price of $25.59 per share. In the October/November Private Placement, we received proceeds of $652 million, gross of transaction fees and
offering expenses of $0.3 million.
On May 20, 2014, we completed the May Private Placement to certain investors of an aggregate of 15,800,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock for an aggregate consideration of $300 million, gross of transaction related costs of $13.8 million.

Warrant Mandatory Redemption
On March 4, 2014, a mandatory redemption event occurred with respect to all of the Company’s outstanding warrants. The Company fixed April 3,
2014 as the date of the mandatory redemption of the warrants, and accordingly, on or after that date, holders of warrants had no further rights with
regard to such warrants except to receive $0.01 per warrant. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company issued 16,244,694 shares of
common stock in connection with the exercise of a total of 48,734,082 warrants resulting in proceeds to the Company of $187 million. On April 3,
2014, Platform completed the mandatory redemption of the remaining 8,580 outstanding warrants for $0.01 per warrant.

Ordinary Shares (Pre-Domestication)
MacDermid Acquisition
In connection with the MacDermid Acquisition, the Company agreed to apply to list its shares on the NYSE and to change its jurisdiction of
incorporation from the British Virgin Islands to Delaware. The Company filed a registration statement on Form S-4 with the SEC to effect
these changes. The registration statement was declared effective on January 22, 2014 and on that same date the Company completed the
Domestication. On January 23, 2014, the Company’s common stock began trading on the NYSE under the ticker symbol “PAH.” On March 4,
2014, pursuant to the terms of an Exchange Agreement, dated October 25, 2013, between the Company and the fiduciaries of the 401K, the
Company acquired the remaining 3% of MacDermid for approximately $2.6 million in cash (which is reflected in “Acquisition of business, net” in the
accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows) and 1,670,386 shares of the Company’s common stock.
In connection with the Domestication, (i) each ordinary share of the Company that was issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
Domestication was automatically converted into one share of common stock (par value $0.01) of the Company, (ii) outstanding options, warrants and
other rights to acquire ordinary shares became options, warrants or rights to acquire the corresponding shares of common stock of the Company,
and (iii) each share held by the Founder Entities that was issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Domestication was automatically
converted into one share of Series A Preferred Stock of the Company.

Initial Public Offering
In connection with the Initial Public Offering on May 22, 2013, the Company issued 88,500,000 common shares (no par value) for gross proceeds of
$885 million. Also, on May 22, 2013, the Company issued an aggregate of 29,500 common shares to non-founder directors for $10.00 per share.
Each common share has voting rights and winding-up rights.
Each of the 2,000,000 preferred shares, 88,500,000 common shares issued in connection with the Initial Public Offering as well as the 29,500
common shares issued to the non-founder directors was issued with a warrant (90,529,500 warrants in aggregate), entitling the holder of each
warrant to purchase one-third of common shares with a strike price of $11.50 per common share. Each warrant was exercisable until three years
from the date of an acquisition, unless mandatorily redeemed by the Company. The warrants were mandatorily redeemable by the Company at
a price of $0.01 should the average market price of a common share exceed $18.00 for 10 consecutive trading days. In order to fund a portion of
the cash consideration for the MacDermid Acquisition in November 2013, the Company conducted an offer to issue shares of common stock of the
Company in exchange for $10.50 and 3 warrants, up to a maximum of half of the warrants outstanding in which 40,386,840 warrants (representing
$141 million cash) were exercised and 13,462,280 underlying shares of common stock were issued. In conjunction with this Warrant Exchange Offer
not being fully subscribed, on November 13, 2013, the Company issued 380,952 shares at $10.50 per share to the Founder Entities and issued
190,476 shares each to two of its independent directors at $10.50 per share.

Non-Controlling Interest
In connection with the MacDermid Acquisition, approximately $97.5 million was raised in new equity consisting of shares of PDH Common Stock
that may be exchanged for shares of common stock at a rate of 25% per year over a four year period.
The PDH Common Stock is classified as a non-controlling interest on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and will
continue to be until such time as it is exchanged for shares of common stock. The total number of shares of common stock originally issuable upon
the exchange of PDH Common Stock pursuant to the RHSA was approximately 8.8 million. As of December 31, 2014, 134,044 shares of our common
stock were issued in connection with the exchange of PDH Common Stock.
Approximately $6.4 million of the 2014 net loss and $1.4 million of Successor 2013 net loss has been allocated to the Retaining Holders as included in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations, representing non-controlling interest of 6.66% and 6.76% at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Predecessor
The Predecessor had previously issued 50,000,000 shares at $1.00 par value per share of common share prior to the MacDermid Acquisition. As
of December 31, 2012, there were 49,582,936 common shares outstanding.
The Predecessor also issued 316,000 preferred shares at $1,000 original cost per share. The preferred shares accrued a 9% cumulative payment
in kind dividend compounded quarterly. At December 31, 2012, the amount of the cumulative payment in kind dividend was $209 million. At
December 31, 2012, there were 315,144 preferred shares outstanding. The preferred shares were not redeemable and had no voting rights,
covenants or restrictions. Upon liquidation, the preferred shares would first receive, to the extent funds are available, proceeds equal to the
payment in kind dividend then the unreturned preferred share original cost, which was $1,000 per share. Then, the holders of the common shares
will receive the unreturned common share original issue cost, which was $1.00 per share. The holders of the common shares and A and B Shares
shall be entitled to receive the remaining portion of the proceeds from liquidation. Based on the MacDermid Acquisition described in Note 2, the
respective shareholders were paid in accordance with these terms.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
A computation of the weighted average shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2014 and Successor 2013 Period follows. No such
computation is necessary for the Predecessor 2013 Period or for the year ended December 31, 2012.

2014

(in millions)

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic
Convertible securities (1)
Diluted

2013

$

135.3
-

$

92.6
-

$

135.3

$

92.6

(1)

No share adjustments are included in the dilutive weighted average shares outstanding computation as the year ended December 31, 2014 and
the Successor 2013 Period resulted in net losses.
The following equity instruments were not included in the computation of diluted shares outstanding because the effect would be anti-dilutive:

(in thousands)

Number of shares contingently issuable for founder preferred share dividend rights
Number of shares issuable upon conversion of warrants
Number of shares issuable upon conversion of the PDH non-controlling interest
Number of shares issuable upon conversion of founder preferred shares
Number of shares contingently issuable for the contingent consideration
Number of shares issuable upon conversion of the 401k exchange rights
Number of stock options
Number of restricted stock shares and units

2014

2013

10,453
8,641
2,000
1,503
270
89
70

16,248
-

23,026

16,248
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14. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Company leases certain land, office space, warehouse space and equipment under agreements which are classified as operating leases for
financial statement purposes. Certain of these leases provide for payment of real estate taxes, common area maintenance, insurance and certain
other expenses. Lease terms may have escalating rent provisions and rent holidays which are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. The leases expire at various dates through 2047. Total rental expense for leases for the year ended December 31, 2014, the Successor
2013 Period and Predecessor 2013 and 2012 Periods was $11.3 million, $1.5 million, $9.1 million and $9.7 million, respectively. The fixed operating
lease commitments detailed below assume that the Company continues the leases through their initial lease terms.
Minimum future non-cancelable operating lease commitments are as follows:

2015................................................................................................ $
2016................................................................................................
2017................................................................................................
2018................................................................................................
2019................................................................................................
Thereafter.......................................................................................

9.3
6.3
4.4
3.5
3.4
15.5

$

42.4

15. OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME, NET
For the year ended December 31, 2014, Net other expense totaled $2.5 million, consisting primarily of net foreign exchange losses of $3.0 million.
For the Successor 2013 Period, Net other expense totaled $0.4 million, consisting primarily of net foreign exchange losses of $0.6 million.
For the Predecessor 2013 Period, Net other expense totaled $0.5 million, consisting primarily of net losses on derivative contracts of $0.4 million.
For the Predecessor 2012 Period, Net other income totaled $5.0 million consisting primarily of net foreign exchange gains of $4.7 million.
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16. CONTINGENCIES, ENVIRONMENTAL AND LEGAL MATTERS
Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company has recognized asset retirement obligations, or AROs, for properties where it can make a reasonable estimate of the future
expenditures necessary to satisfy the related obligations. The Company considers identified legally enforceable obligations, estimated settlement
dates and appropriate discount and inflation rates in calculating the fair value of its AROs. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company has
accrued $18.5 million and $4.8 million, respectively, for its AROs at sites primarily in Europe, Latin America and North America.
The AROs are included in the other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
Changes in the Company’s AROs are as follows:

Successor:
Balance, April 23, 2013 (inception)
Acquisitions

$

Balance, December 31, 2013

4.8

Acquisitions
Additional obligations incurred
Accretion expense
Payments
Foreign currency adjustments
Balance, December 31, 2014
Predecessor:
Balance, December 31, 2012
Settlements
Accretion expense
Foreign currency adjustments

Balance, October 31, 2013

4.8

13.2
0.5
0.7
(0.2)
(0.5)
$

18.5

$

2.3
(0.1)
0.1
(0.1)

$

2.2

Environmental
The Company is a manufacturer and distributor of specialty chemical products, and is exposed to claims with respect to environmental cleanup or
other matters, including those in connection with the disposal of hazardous materials. The Company is subject to extensive domestic and foreign
laws and regulations relating to environmental protection and worker health and safety, including those governing discharges of pollutants into the
air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, and the cleanup of contaminated properties. The Company has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs and capital expenditures in complying with these laws and regulations. Additional costs could be incurred,
including cleanup costs, fines, sanctions, and third-party claims, as a result of violations of or liabilities under environmental laws.
Remediation activities vary substantially in duration and cost from site to site. These activities, and their associated costs, depend on the mix of
unique site characteristics, evolving remediation technologies, diverse regulatory agencies and enforcement policies, as well as the presence or
absence of potentially responsible parties. Some of the facilities and former facilities of the Company have been environmentally impacted from
historic operations and some facilities are in the process of being investigated and remediated. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, $4.5 million
and $2.9 million, respectively, was accrued for various environmental matters, not discounted to their present value, all of which we consider to
be non-material. Ultimate costs may vary from current estimates, and the discovery of additional contaminants at these facilities or other sites, or
the imposition of additional cleanup obligations or third-party claims relating thereto could result in additional costs. The Company’s management
believes that any possible losses related to environmental remediation in addition to the amounts recorded as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
would not be material to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Legal Proceedings
From time to time, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings in the normal course of its business. We believe that the resolution of
these claims, to the extent not covered by insurance, will not individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company has reserved approximately $4.4 million and
$2.9 million, respectively, for its outstanding legal proceedings.

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014

81

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollars in millions, except per share

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Annual Report 2014 data and unless otherwise indicated)
On July 8, 2014, a federal court jury found in favor of MacDermid Printing Solutions LLC in litigation against Cortron, Inc. and awarded MacDermid
Printing Solutions LLC $3.9 million in anti-trust damages; $7.9 million in breach of contract damages; $3.8 million in additional punitive damages for
misappropriation of trade secrets, and $11.9 million plus additional punitive damages for unfair trade practices. The actual aggregate amount of
damages, including the amount of punitive damages and an award of attorney fees will be determined by the presiding judge after post-trial briefing
by the parties. Cortron, Inc. may appeal the verdict; accordingly, MacDermid Printing Solutions LLC’s ability to collect on the judgment is uncertain.
All proceeds from this litigation are subject to the pending litigation provisions of our Business Combination Agreement and Plan of Merger dated
as of October 10, 2013.
On September 22, 2014, the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey rendered a verdict in favor of MacDermid in this patent
litigation with E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company. The Court issued summary judgment rulings in favor of MacDermid finding certain E.I. du
Pont de Nemours and Company’s patents invalid and not infringed. These rulings summarily find against E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company on
all of the patent claims asserted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company in this lawsuit. The ruling, however, leaves all counterclaims made by
MacDermid against E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company in place. All proceeds from this litigation are subject to the pending litigation provisions
of our Business Combination Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 10, 2013.
On February 19, 2015, MacDermid, as plaintiff, settled litigation with Cookson Group plc, Enthone Inc., Cookson Electronics and David North, as
defendants, for $25.0 million. The litigation related to certain corporate activities that occurred between MacDermid and the defendants in 2006
and 2007. All proceeds from this litigation are subject to the pending litigation provisions of our Business Combination Agreement and Plan of
Merger dated as of October 10, 2013.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
RHSA
Immediately prior to the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, each Retaining Holder of equity interest in MacDermid Holdings not owned by
Platform , including certain officers of MacDermid, executed a RHSA with the Company pursuant to which they agreed to exchange their respective
interests in MacDermid Holdings for shares of PDH Common Stock, at an exchange rate of $11.00 per share plus, with respect to the common,
class A and class B unit equity interests of MacDermid Holdings held by the Retaining Holder (i) a proportionate share of a contingent interest in
certain pending litigation, and (ii) a proportionate share of up to $100 million of contingent purchase price payable upon the attainment of certain
EBITDA and stock trading price performance metrics during the seven-year period following the Closing Date as discussed further in Note 2.
Immediately prior to the closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, members of MacDermid management and certain affiliates, including certain officers
of MacDermid, contributed all or a portion of their MacDermid Holdings interests to Tartan, and Tartan agreed to receive the PDH Common Stock in
exchange for such MacDermid Holdings equity interests. The resulting non-controlling interest percentage for the Retaining Holders was 6.76% at
December 31, 2013 and 6.66% at December 31, 2014.
Pursuant to the RHSA, until the earlier of (1) the seventh anniversary of the MacDermid Acquisition (that is October 31, 2020) and (2) such date on
which all shares of PDH Common Stock held by Tartan have been exchanged for common stock, Platform has agreed to, among certain other
covenants, obtain the prior written consent of Tartan prior to issuing additional securities, or instruments convertible, exchangeable or exercisable
for securities.

Advisory Services Agreement
On October 31, 2013, the Company entered into an Advisory Services Agreement with Mariposa Capital, LLC, an affiliate of one of our founder
directors. Under this agreement, Mariposa Capital, LLC provides certain advisory services to the Company and is entitled to receive an annual fee
equal to $2.0 million, payable in quarterly installments. This agreement expired on October 31, 2014 but was automatically renewed for successive
one-year terms unless either party notifies the other party in writing of its intention not to renew this agreement no later than 90 days prior to the
expiration of the term. This agreement may only be terminated by the Company upon a vote of a majority of its directors. In the event that this
agreement is terminated by the Company, the effective date of the termination will be six months following the expiration of the initial term or a
renewal term, as the case may be. The Company incurred $2.0 million and $0.4 million during 2014 and 2013, respectively, under this agreement.

Registration Rights Agreements
On November 7, 2013, we entered into a registration rights agreement with Pershing Square on behalf of funds managed by Pershing Square
pursuant to which we agreed to file a resale registration statement for the resale of the shares those funds own from time to time promptly after
becoming eligible to utilize a Form S-3. We became eligible to file a registration statement on Form S-3 on January 23, 2015, and initially filed a
registration statement on February 2, 2015 as required by this registration rights agreement. This registration statement was amended on February
12, 2015 and was declared effective on February 20, 2015.
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On May 20, 2014, we completed the May Private Placement. Blue Ridge Limited Partnership, a stockholder of more than five percent (5%) of our
issued and outstanding common stock as of February 12, 2015, along with one of its affiliates, Blue Ridge Offshore Master Limited Partnership,
purchased an aggregate 1,000,000 shares of our common stock issued in the May Private Placement, at a per share price of $19.00. In connection
with the May Private Placement, we granted registration rights to each investor, including Blue Ridge Limited Partnership and Blue Ridge Offshore
Master Limited Partnership. Pursuant to these registration rights agreements, on May 23, 2014, we initially filed the May Resale Registration
Statement to register the resale of all of the shares sold in the May Private Placement. Such May Resale Registration Statement was amended on
June 13, 2014 and declared effective on June 19, 2014.
In connection with the October/November Private Placement, Blue Ridge Limited Partnership and Blue Ridge Offshore Master Limited Partnership,
purchased an additional aggregate 1,953,888 shares of our common stock, at a per share price of $25.59. In addition, Pershing Square, through
the Pershing Square Funds, purchased 9,404,064 shares, at a per share price of $25.59. A partner of Pershing Square is a member of Platform’s
board of directors. In connection with the October/November Private Placement, we entered into registration rights agreements with each investor,
including Blue Ridge Limited Partnership, Blue Ridge Offshore Master Limited Partnership and Pershing Square on behalf of its funds. Pursuant to
these registration rights agreements, on November 3, 2014, we initially filed the November Resale Registration Statement to register the resale
of all of the shares sold in the October/November Private Placement, including the 9,404,064 shares issued to the Pershing Square’s funds upon
stockholder approval on November 6, 2014. The November Resale Registration Statement was declared effective on November 10, 2014.

Support Agreements
In connection with the October/November Private Placement, on October 3, 2014, Platform entered into separate support agreements with certain
stockholders of Platform holding, in the aggregate, approximately 28.5% of our common stock as of such date. Such stockholders included
Blue Ridge Limited Partnership, Berggruen Acquisition Holdings IV Ltd, Daniel H. Leever (Platform’s Chief Executive Officer, President and Vice
Chairman), Mariposa Acquisition, LLC and Wellington Management Company, LLP, as investment advisor to certain stockholders.
Under their respective support agreement, each stockholder agreed to vote at our special meeting of stockholders held on November 6, 2014,
all of the shares of common stock they beneficially owned as of the record date for the special meeting (i) in favor of the approval of a proposal to
approve the issuance to certain funds managed by Pershing Square of 9,404,064 shares of our common stock in the October/November Private
Placement, and (ii) without limitation of the preceding clause (i), in favor of any proposal to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date if
there are not sufficient votes for approval of such matters on the date on which the special meeting is held.

Predecessor Transactions
For the Predecessor 2013 Period, the Company paid management fees of $7.5 million to Court Square Capital Partners II LP, an investor. For
the years ended December 31, 2012, the Predecessor paid management fees of $0.3 million to Court Square Capital Partners II LP. Three of
MacDermid’s board members prior to the MacDermid Acquisition were employees of Court Square Capital Partners II LP. The significant increase in
management fees paid compared to the year ended December 31, 2012 was due to a final payment made to Court Square Capital Partners II LP in
connection with the consummation of the MacDermid Acquisition and per the terms of the management agreement.
For the Predecessor 2013 Period, the Company paid management fees to Weston Presidio, an investor, of $1.7 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Predecessor paid management fees to Weston Presidio of $0.1 million.
On August 26, 2013, MacDermid loaned $0.3 million to an officer in exchange for a promissory note bearing interest at Prime plus 1% per annum.
As collateral, the note was secured by real estate owned by the officer. The principal amount of the loan and the accrued interest was repaid in full
on October 31, 2013.
On October 31, 2013, in order to complete the MacDermid Acquisition, Platform advanced $33.3 million to MacDermid representing the portion
of the cash consideration required to purchase the equity held by MacDermid employee shares in connection with the MacDermid Acquisition.
Also in conjunction with closing of the MacDermid Acquisition, Platform paid $5.0 million of interest on the first and second lien credit facilities on
MacDermid’s behalf.

18. RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITIES
The Company continuously evaluates all operations to identify opportunities to improve profitability by leveraging existing infrastructure to reduce
operating costs and respond to overall economic conditions. The Predecessor implemented certain restructuring actions which were intended to
better align manufacturing capacity, eliminate excess capacity by lowering operating costs, and streamline the organizational structure for improved
long-term profitability. The restructuring actions consisted of facility consolidations and closures and employee terminations. The restructuring
plans initiated in 2014 primarily related to the elimination of certain positions as well as several small initiatives aimed at cost reduction opportunities.
The restructuring plans initiated during the Predecessor 2013 Period primarily related to the consolidation of manufacturing processes which
affected a manufacturing facility in the Graphic Solutions segment.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Successor 2013 Period and the Predecessor 2013 Period, $3.0 million, $0.8 million and $3.6 million
of restructuring expense was recorded, respectively. At December 31, 2014, the Company’s restructuring liability totaled $1.6 million, which is
anticipated to be fully utilized with the subsequent twelve months.
For the Predecessor 2012 Period, the MacDermid recorded $0.3 million of restructuring expense primarily relating to the elimination of certain
positions in the Performance Materials Europe reporting unit.
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19. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company’s operations are organized into three reportable segments: Performance Materials, Graphic Solutions and AgroSolutions. The
segments represent businesses for which separate financial information is utilized by the chief operating decision maker, or CODM, for purpose of
allocating resources and evaluating performance. Each of the reportable segments has its own president who report to the CODM.
The Performance Materials segment manufactures and markets dynamic chemistry solutions that are used in the electronics, automotive and
oil and gas production and drilling industries. We operate in the Americas, Asia and Europe. In conjunction with the sale of our products, we
provide extensive technical service and support to ensure superior performance of their application. Within this segment, the Company provides
specialty chemicals to three industries; Electronics, Industrial and Offshore. For the electronics industry, we design and formulate a complete line of
proprietary “wet” dynamic chemistries that our customers use to process the surface of the printed circuit boards and other electronic components
they manufacture. For the industrials, our dynamic chemistries are used for finishing, cleaning and providing surface coatings for a broad range of
metal and non-metal surfaces which improve the performance or look of a component of an industrial part or process. For the offshore industry,
we produce water-based hydraulic control fluids for major oil companies and drilling contractors for offshore deep water production and drilling
applications.
The Graphic Solutions segment primarily produces and markets photopolymers through an extensive line of flexographic plates that are used
in the commercial packaging and printing industries. Our products are used to improve print quality and printing productivity. We manufacture
photopolymers used to produce printing plates for transferring images onto commercial packaging, including packaging for consumer food
products, pet food bags, corrugated boxes, labels and beverage containers. In addition, we also produce photopolymer printing plates for the
flexographic and letterpress newspaper and publications markets.
The AgroSolutions segment is based on a solutions-oriented business model that focuses on product innovation to address an ever-increasing
need for higher crop yield and quality. This operating segment was created during the fourth quarter of 2014 to manage our newly acquired
agrochemical vertical, which now includes Agriphar’s and CAS’ complementary businesses, as well as the recently acquired Arysta’s business. We
offer a wide variety of proven plant health and pest control products to growers, which are comprised of specific target applications in the following
major product lines: adjuvants; fungicides; herbicides; home applications (home and garden and ectoparasiticides); honey bee health; insecticides;
miticides; plant growth regulators; and seed treatments. Our product portfolio also includes biosolutions (biostimulants, innovative nutrition and
biocontrol), and regional off-patent AIs that complement our principal product lines.
The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on net sales and adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA for each segment
is calculated by taking net income and adding back interest expense, income tax expense (benefit), depreciation expense and amortization
expense. This amount is further adjusted for acquisition-related expenses. Adjusted EBITDA for each segment also includes an allocation of
corporate costs such as corporate salary, wages, equity compensation expense and legal costs.
Segment assets primarily include cash, receivables, inventories, prepaid expenses and other current assets, property, plant and equipment,
goodwill, intangible assets, deferred taxes and other long term assets. Segment assets primarily exclude corporate assets, which consist of cash
and cash equivalents, corporate property, plant and equipment, and deferred taxes.
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The following table summarizes financial information regarding each reportable segment’s results of operations for the periods presented:

Net Sales:
Performance Materials
Graphic Solutions
AgroSolutions

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

Consolidated net sales

589.3
165.9
88.0

$

92.6
25.6
-

$

481.8
145.9
-

$

559.5
171.7
-

843.2

118.2

627.7

731.2

Depreciation and amortization:
Performance Materials
Graphic Solutions
AgroSolutions

55.0
21.3
11.7

9.7
3.1
-

26.5
6.3
-

34.0
8.2
-

Consolidated depreciation and amortization

88.0

12.8

32.8

42.2

Adjusted EBITDA
Performance Materials
Graphic Solutions
AgroSolutions

148.7
47.5
16.0

21.6
5.8
-

115.0
37.7
-

118.6
43.6
-

Adjusted EBITDA

$

212.2

$

27.4

$

152.7

$

162.2

The following table reconciles Adjusted EBITDA to Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders:

Adjusted EBITDA

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

$

212.2

$

27.4

$

152.7

$

162.2

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income:
Income tax benefit (provision)

6.7

5.8

(13.0)

(24.7)

Interest expense

(38.7)

(5.5)

(46.3)

(49.7)

Depreciation and amortization expense
Non-cash charges related to preferred
dividend rights

(88.0)

(12.8)

(32.8)

(42.2)

-

(172.0)

-

-

Equity based compensation

(1.3)

(0.5)

(9.3)

(0.2)

Restructuring and related expenses

(3.0)

(3.5)

(4.5)

(1.2)

Manufacturer’s profit in inventory adjustment
Non-cash fair value adjustment to
contingent consideration

(35.5)

(23.9)

-

-

(29.1)

0.7

-

-

Acquisition transaction costs

(47.8)

(15.2)

(16.9)

-

-

-

(18.8)

-

(5.4)

5.3

2.1

1.8

Debt extinguishment
Other (expense) income
Net (loss) income attributable to common
shareholders

$

(29.9)

$

(194.2)

$

13.2

$
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The following tables provide information for those countries that represent 10% or more of net sales and long-lived assets:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Net Sales*:
United States

$

Foreign Net Sales:
United Kingdom
China
Other countries
Total Foreign Net Sales
Total consolidated net sales

$

217.4

$

31.5

$

176.4

$

205.6

119.1
87.8
418.9

17.8
13.5
55.4

93.4
64.2
293.7

115.2
66.3
344.1

625.8

86.7

451.3

525.6

843.2

$

118.2

$

627.7

$

731.2

* Net sales are attributed to countries based on the country which generates the sale.

December 31, 2014
Long lived assets, net

December 31, 2013

(1)

United States

$

64.8

Foreign countries

United States

$

Foreign countries

Belgium

28.9

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

28.0

China

17.4

Italy

13.8

Other countries

53.3

30.0

Other countries

18.5

110.2
Total long lived assets, net
(1)

56.5

$

175.0

79.7
Total long lived assets, net

$

136.2

Long-lived assets represent property, plant and equipment, net.

Total assets by reportable segment as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are not presented as they not utilized by the CODM for purpose of allocating
resources and evaluating performance.
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The following table shows the Company’s external party sales by product for the periods presented:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Performance Materials
Industrial Group
Electronics Group

$

Graphic Solutions
AgroSolutions
Total consolidated net sales

$

429.4
159.9

$

67.7
24.9

$

353.4
128.4

$

411.1
148.4

589.3

92.6

481.8

559.5

165.9

25.6

145.9

171.7

88.0

-

-

-

843.2

$

118.2

$

627.7

$

731.2

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Series A Preferred Stock Dividend
As discussed in Note 12 (Stockholders’ Equity) 10,050,290 shares of our common stock were issued on January 2, 2015 as a dividend on the Series
A Preferred Stock.

Arysta Acquisition and Series B Preferred Stock
On February 13, 2015, we completed the Arysta Acquisition for approximately $3.57 billion, consisting of $2.93 billion in cash, subject to working
capital and other adjustments, and $600 million of Platform’s Series B Preferred Stock issued to the Seller.
The Series B Preferred Stock may be converted into a maximum of 22,107,590 shares of our common stock. To the extent that the aggregate value
of such 22,107,590 shares of common stock is less than $600 million (based on a 10-day volume weighted average price), then, such shortfall would
be payable in cash by Platform as additional purchase price.
In connection with the Arysta Acquisition and the issuance of the Series B Preferred Stock, we entered into a registration rights agreement with
the Seller dated February 17, 2015, pursuant to which we agreed to (i) file a registration statement with the SEC covering the resale of a maximum
of 22,107,590 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock, as soon as reasonably practicable following
the issuance of the Series B Preferred Stock, and (ii) use our commercially reasonable efforts to cause the SEC to declare such registration
statement effective by not later than six months following the date of the registration rights agreement. On February 25, 2015, we filed the Seller
Resale Registration Statement to register the resale of a maximum of 22,107,590 shares of common stock. Such resale registration statement was
amended on March 20, 2015 and is expected to be declared effective in early April 2015.

Notes Offering
In connection with the Arysta Acquisition, on February 2, 2015, we completed the private offering of $1.10 billion aggregate principal amount
of 6.50% USD Notes due 2022, and €350 million aggregate principal amount of 6.00% EUR Notes due 2023. The Notes are governed by an
indenture, dated February 2, 2015, as amended on February 13, 2015. The 6.50% USD Notes due 2022 and the 6.00% EUR Notes due 2023 will
mature on February 1, 2022 and February 1, 2023, respectively, unless earlier redeemed. The 6.50% USD Notes due 2022 and the 6.00% EUR
Notes due 2023 will bear interest at a rate of 6.50% and 6.00% per year, respectively, until maturity. Interest will be payable in cash, semi-annually
in arrears, on February 1 and August 1 of each year, beginning on August 1, 2015. Platform will make each interest payment to the holders of record
to be determined on the immediately preceding January 15 and July 15.
The Notes are (i) Platform’s senior unsecured obligations, will rank equally in right of payment with all of Platform’s existing and future senior
unsecured debt and will rank senior in right of payment to all of Platform’s existing and future unsecured subordinated debt; (ii) effectively
subordinated to Platform’s secured indebtedness, including the debt outstanding under Platform’s amended and restated credit agreement, to
the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt, and will be structurally subordinated to indebtedness and other liabilities, including trade
payables, of Platform’s non-guarantor subsidiaries; and (iii) jointly and severally, fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis
generally by our current and future direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries that guarantee our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
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Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
On February 13, 2015, we entered into and closed the transactions contemplated by an Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement which, among other things, provided for (i) New Tranche B-2 of Term Loans denominated in U.S. dollars in an aggregate principal
amount of up to $500 million, (ii) an increase in the size of the existing Euro Tranche Term Loan facility by €83.0 million to €287 million (iii) an
increase in the size of the existing U.S. Dollar revolving credit facility by $75.0 million to $163 million, and (iv) an increase in the size of the existing
multicurrency revolving credit facility by $75.0 million to $163 million. Concurrently with the closing of the Arysta Acquisition, the additional
$500 million of New Tranche B-2 Term Loans (less original issue discount of 1%), the additional €83.0 million of Euro Tranche Term Loan facility
(less original issue discount of 2%) and $160 million under the U.S. Dollar revolving credit facility were borrowed to fund a portion of the cash
consideration for the Arysta Acquisition.
The New Tranche B-2 Term Loans bear interest at a rate per annum equal to 3.75% plus an adjusted Euro currency rate, or 2.75% plus an adjusted
base rate, calculated as set forth in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, and mature on June 7, 2020. Pursuant to Amendment No.3, the
previously existing Tranche B term loans will bear interest at 3.50% per annum plus an adjusted Euro currency rate, or 2.50% plus an adjusted base
rate, calculated as set forth in the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. Revolving loans bear interest at a rate per annum equal to 3.00%
plus an adjusted Euro currency rate, or 2.00% plus an adjusted base rate, each as calculated as set forth in the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, and mature on June 7, 2018.
Except as set forth in Amendment No. 3 and above, the New Tranche B-2 Term Loans shall have identical terms as the existing Tranche B term loans
and shall be otherwise subject to the provisions of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
Amendment No. 3 also, among other things, provides additional flexibility with respect to certain negative covenants, including by increasing certain dollar baskets.

Option Exercise
On April 23, 2013 (date of our inception), Alun Cathcart, a former non-founder director, was granted a five year option to acquire 75,000 ordinary
shares. This option is fully vested and, upon our Domestication into Delaware on January 22, 2014, became an option to acquire shares of our
common stock. On March 16, 2015, Mr. Cathcart exercised his option and 75,000 shares of our common stock were issued to him on March 19, 2015.

Additional Stock Issuances to Certain Directors
On March 17, 2015, effective March 25, 2015, as contemplated by the Director Compensation Policy previously adopted by the Board on October
31, 2013, the Board approved the grant to each of Michael F. Goss and E. Stanley O’Neal, directors of Platform, of 3,821 RSUs that will vest on
March 17, 2016, provided that each of them continues to serve as a director of Platform through and on such vesting date. Each RSU represents a
contingent right to receive one share of our common stock.

Legal Proceedings
On February 19, 2015, MacDermid, as plaintiff, settled a litigation with Cookson Group plc, Enthone Inc., Cookson Electronics and David North, as
defendants, for $25.0 million. The litigation related to certain corporate activities that occurred between MacDermid and the defendants in 2006
and 2007. All proceeds from this litigation are subject to the pending litigation provisions of our Business Combination Agreement and Plan of
Merger dated as of October 10, 2013.

Other
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the filing of this Annual Report. There were no other events or transactions
during this evaluation that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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21. SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Selected Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudited)
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Gross profit
Net (loss) income attributable to
shareholders
Net (loss) income attributable to common
shareholders
Basic earnings (loss) per share (a)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (a)

Successor

2014
First Quarter
$

183.7
84.2

Second Quarter
$

Third Quarter

189.1
96.7

$

196.8
103.2

Fourth Quarter (c)
$

273.6
112.4

(7.4)

(0.4)

11.9

(34.0)

(7.4)
(0.07)
(0.07)

(0.4)
0.00
0.00

11.9
0.09
0.08

(266.7)
(1.59)
(1.59)

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter (b)

Successor

2013
Period from Inception
(April 23, 2013) to
June 30, 2013
Net sales

$

Gross profit
Net (loss) income attributable to
shareholders
Net (loss) income attributable to common
shareholders
Basic loss per share

(a)

Diluted loss per share (a)

Selected Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudited)
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Gross profit
Net income (loss) attributable to MacDermid,
Inc.
Basic earnings (loss) per share (a)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (a)

-

$

-

$

118.2

-

-

35.7

(0.1)

(4.7)

(189.4)

(0.1)

(4.7)

(189.4)

-

(0.05)

(2.05)

-

(0.05)

(2.05)

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter (c)

Predecessor

2013
First Quarter
$

182.1
93.3

Second Quarter
$

15.2
n/a
n/a

190.0
96.5

$

(5.9)
n/a
n/a

188.4
99.0

$

67.2
34.0

14.5
n/a
n/a

(10.7)
n/a
n/a

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

Predecessor

2012
First Quarter
Net sales
Gross profit
Net income attributable to MacDermid, Inc.
Basic earnings (loss) per share (a)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (a)

$

182.2
86.3
4.9
n/a
n/a

Second Quarter
$

186.2
90.3
25.5
n/a
n/a

$

180.4
89.7
10.0
n/a
n/a

$

(a)

Earnings per share calculations for each quarter are based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding for each period. As
MacDermid was not a Registrant prior to the Successor 2013 Period, no earnings per share data is presented;

(b)

Platform’s fourth quarter includes the results of MacDermid from November 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013; and

(c)

MacDermid’s fourth quarter includes results from October 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013.
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(in millions)

Reserves against accounts receivable: (1)
Successor
December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2014
April 23, 2013 (Inception) to December 31, 2013
Predecessor
December 31, 2012 to October 31, 2013
December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012

Valuation allowances against deferred tax
assets:
Successor
December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2014
April 23, 2013 (Inception) to December 31, 2013
Predecessor
December 31, 2012 to October 31, 2013
December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2012

Balance at
beginning of
period

Charges to costs
and expense

$ (10.1)
-

$

Deductions from
reserves

(1.2)
(0.3)

$

0.9
0.6

(8.8)
(8.7)

(2.1)
(1.7)

0.6
1.7

(15.8)
-

(2.0)
0.9

-

(41.4)
$ (34.5)

(3.6)
$ (6.9)

$

-

Balance at end
of period

Other (2)

$

$

0.8
(10.4)

$ (9.6)
(10.1)

(0.1)
(0.1)

(10.4)
(8.8)

(1.9)
(16.7)(3)

(19.7)
(15.8)

-

(45.0)
$ (41.4)

(1)

Principally consisting of reserves for uncollectable accounts and sales returns and allowances.

(2)

Principally consisting of the opening balance sheet as a result of the MacDermid Acquisition.

(3)

Revised to reflect final purchase price allocation as presented in updates to our annual report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December
31, 2013, as reported in our current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 26, 2014.
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In this Annual Report, we use adjusted EBITDA, adjusted earnings per share (“EPS”) and recurring free cash flow, non-GAAP financial measures, because
they are measures upon which the Company’s management has assessed its financial performance in the years presented. These non-GAAP measures
should not be considered primary measures of the Company’s performance and should be reviewed in conjunction with, and not as substitute for,
financial measures prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP that are presented in this Annual Report.
The following table reconciles Adjusted EBITDA to Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders:

For the year ended
December 31, 2014

For the period from
inception (April
23, 2013) through
December 31, 2013

For the ten months
ended October 31,
2013

For the year ended
December 31, 2012

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

(In millions)
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income:
Income tax benefit (provision)
Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Non-cash charges related to preferred
dividend rights
Equity based compensation
Restructuring and related expenses
Manufacturer’s profit in inventory adjustment
Non-cash fair value adjustment to
contingent consideration
Acquisition transaction costs
Debt extinguishment
Other (expense) income
Net (loss) income attributed to common
shareholders

$

$

212.2

$

27.4

$

152.7

$

162.2

6.7
(38.7)
(88.0)

5.8
(5.5)
(12.8)

(13.0)
(46.3)
(32.8)

(24.7)
(49.7)
(42.2)

(1.3)
(3.0)
(35.5)

(172.0)
(0.5)
(3.5)
(23.9)

(9.3)
(4.5)
-

(0.2)
(1.2)
-

(29.1)
(47.8)
(5.4)

0.7
(15.2)
5.3

(16.9)
(18.8)
2.1

1.8

(29.9)

$

(194.2)

$

13.2

$

46.0

The following table reconciles as Adjusted EPS:
2014

(In thousands, except EPS)
(1)

As Adjusted NIAT

$ 113,764

As Adjusted EPS Basic:
Basic Share Count:

$

0.84
135,305

As Adjusted Diluted EPS:
Diluted Share Count(2)

$

0.59
193,100

(1) NIAT excludes income attributable to minority interest
(2) Diluted Share count calculated as follows: Basic Shares Outstanding at 12/31/14: 182,067 + conversion of exchange rights held by selling stockholders of MacDermid (8,641) +
common shares equivalent of founder’s preferred shares (2,000) + vested director stock options (250) + equity awards granted in 2014 (142)

The following table reconciles recurring free cash flow to Net (loss) income:
2014

(In millions)
(1)

Net (loss) income
Plus: D&A (2)
Plus: Other non-cash expenses
Less: Change in working capital (3)

$ (24,202)
87.950
30,109
27,176

Cash flow from operations
Less: Capex (4)

$ 121,033
(20,665)

Free cash flow
Plus: Acquisition-related expenses (5)

$ 100,368
47,829

Recurring free cash flow

$ 148,197

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Represents net income (loss) prior to non-contolling interest allocation and PIK dividend accrual for 2013.
Includes $9.7 million in amortization and $2.0 million in depreciation associated with CAS and Agriphar Acquisitions.
Change in working capital reflects changes in accounts receivable, inventories and accounts payable.
Reflects gross capital expenditures and post-acquisition registration and re-registration capitalized costs.
Reflects deal costs in connection with CAS, Agriphar and Arysta Acquisitions in 2014 and MacDermid Aquisition in 2013.
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Terms

Definitions

Platform; Successor; We; Us;
Our; the Company

Platform Specialty Products Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its
subsidiaries, collectively, for all periods subsequent to the MacDermid
Acquisition.

A Shares

2,150,000 Class A Junior Shares authorized and issued by the Predecessor on
April 13, 2007 to employees who purchased both preferred and common shares
of the Predecessor as part of a $7.0 million management buy-in of both preferred
and common shares of the Predecessor.

Acquisitions

The Agriphar Acquisition, CAS Acquisition, Arysta Acquisition and MacDermid
Acquisition, collectively.

Agriphar

Percival and its agrochemical business, Agriphar.

Agriphar Acquisition

Acquisition of Agriphar, completed on October 1, 2014.

AIs

Active ingredients.

Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement

Platform’s credit agreement dated April 12, 2007, as amended on June 7,
2013, October 31, 2013 (Amendment No. 1), August 6, 2014 (Second Amended
and Restated Credit Agreement and the Further Amendments pursuant to
Amendment No. 2), October 1, 2014 (Incremental Amendment No. 1) and February
13, 2015 (Amendment No. 3).

Amendment No. 2

Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 6, 2014, entered into among, inter alia,
Platform, Platform Holdings, LLC, MacDermid, the subsidiaries of the borrowers
from time to time parties thereto, the lenders from time to time parties thereto
and Barclays Bank PLC, as administrative agent and collateral agent with respect
to the Credit Agreement which made the Further Amendments to the Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement upon consummation of the CAS
Acquisition.

Amendment No. 3

Amendment No. 3, dated as of February 13, 2015, entered into among, Platform,
Platform Holdings, LLC, MAS Holdings, NAIP and certain subsidiaries of Platform
and Platform Holdings, LLC, the lenders from time to time parties thereto and
Barclays Bank PLC to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
upon consummation of the Arysta Acquisition.

Annual Report

This annual report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

Arysta

Arysta LifeScience Limited, an Irish private limited company.

Arysta Acquisition

Acquisition of Arysta, completed on February 13, 2015.

ASC

Accounting Standard Codification.

Asset-Lite, High-Touch

Platform’s philosophy and business model, which involves dedicating extensive
resources to research and development and highly technical customer service,
while limiting investments in fixed assets and capital expenditures.

B Shares

1,364,000 Class B Junior Performance Shares issued by the Predecessor in
May 2008 in order to compensate certain of the Predecessor’s employees for
their long-term commitment to the Predecessor, motivate sustained increases
in the Predecessor’s financial performance and, in a liquidation event, permit
employees to share in the value of equity in the Predecessor.

Board

Platform’s board of directors.

CAS

AgroSolutions business of Chemtura.

CAS Acquisition

Acquisition of CAS, completed on November 3, 2014.

Chemtura

Chemtura Corporation, a Delaware corporation.

Credit Facilities

The First Lien Credit Facility and the Revolving Credit Facility, collectively,
available under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.
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Terms

Definitions

C Shares

5,000,000 Class C Junior Shares authorized on January 29, 2013 by the
Predecessor for issuance. The Class C Junior Shares were allocated to three
tranches of 1,666,666 shares each and defined as Class C-1 Junior Shares,
Class C-2 Junior Shares and Class C-3 Junior Shares. The number of issued and
awarded Class C Junior Shares was 4,890,000 shares or 1,630,000 shares each
for the Class C-1 Junior Shares, Class C-2 Junior Shares and Class C-3 Junior
Shares.

Debt Commitment Letter

Commitment letter entered into on October 20, 2014 with Barclays Bank PLC,
Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC,
Nomura Corporate Funding Americas, LLC, Nomura Securities International, Inc.,
UBS AG, Stamford Branch and UBS Securities LLC providing for the Facilities
for the purposes of financing the proposed Arysta Acquisition and the fees and
expenses in connection therewith, on the terms and subject to the conditions set
forth in the commitment letter.

Domestication

Platform’s change of jurisdiction of incorporation from the British Virgin Islands to
Delaware on January 22, 2014.

ESPP

Platform Specialty Products Corporation 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
adopted by the Board on March 6, 2014 and approved by Platform’s stockholders
at the annual meeting held on June 12, 2014.

EU

European Union.

EURO Tranche Terms Loans

New term loans denominated in Euros in an aggregate amount of €205 million
borrowed in connection with the CAS Acquisition.

Exchange Act

U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Facilities

$1.60 billion term facility and senior unsecured bridge loans in an aggregate
principal amount of $750 million incurred for the financing the Arysta Acquisition
and the fees and expenses in connection therewith, on the terms and subject to
the conditions set forth in the Debt Commitment Letter.

FASB

Financial Accounting Standard Board.

First Lien Credit Facility

First lien credit facility available under the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement.

Founder Entities

Mariposa Acquisition, LLC and Berggruen Acquisition Holdings, IV, Ltd.,
collectively.

Further Amendments

Further amendments to our Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
pursuant to the Amendment No. 2 entered on August 6, 2014 by and among
Platform, Barclays Bank PLC, the several lenders from time to time party thereto
and the other parties thereto, which became effective upon the consummation of
the CAS Acquisition on November 3, 2014.

GVAP

Platform’s Global Value Added Portfolio, which includes products in the
herbicides, insecticides, fungicides and seed treatment categories, based on
patented or proprietary off-patent AIs.

Incremental Amendment

Incremental amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
entered into on October 1, 2014 by and among Platform and MacDermid, as
borrowers, MacDermid Holdings, certain subsidiaries of MacDermid Holdings and
Platform, Barclays Bank PLC, as collateral agent and administrative agent, and the
incremental lender party thereto through an increase in our existing Tranche B
term loans in an aggregate principal amount of $300 million.

Initial Public Offering

Initial public offering of Platform (formerly named “Platform Acquisition Holdings
Limited”) completed on the London Stock Exchange on May 22, 2013, raising net
proceeds of approximately $881 million.

JOBS Act

Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012.

MacDermid

MacDermid, Incorporated, a Connecticut corporation.
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MacDermid Acquisition

Platform’s acquisition on October 31, 2013 of substantially all of the equity
of MacDermid Holdings, which, at the time, owned approximately 97% of
MacDermid. As a result, Platform became a holding company for the MacDermid
business. Platform acquired the remaining 3% of MacDermid on March 4, 2014,
pursuant to the terms of an Exchange Agreement, dated October 25, 2013,
between Platform and the fiduciaries of the 401K Plan.

MacDermid Holdings

MacDermid Holdings, LLC which, at the time of the MacDermid Acquisition,
owned approximately 97% of MacDermid, a subsidiary of MacDermid Holdings.

May Private Placement

Private placement of an aggregate of 15,800,000 shares of our common stock
completed on May 20, 2014 at a purchase price of $19.00 per share, raising net
proceeds of approximately $287 million.

MAS Holdings

MacDermid Agricultural Solutions Holdings B.V., a company organized under the
laws of the Netherlands and a subsidiary of Platform.

NYSE

New York Stock Exchange.

New Tranche B Term Loans

New Tranche B term loans denominated in U.S. dollars in an aggregate principal
amount of $130 million, borrowed in connection with the CAS Acquisition through
an increase in Platform’s existing tranche B term loan facility.

New Tranche B-2 Term Loans

New Tranche B-2 term loans denominated in U.S. dollars in an aggregate
principal amount of up to $500 million, borrowed in connection with the Arysta
Acquisition through an increase in Platform’s existing tranche B term loan facility.

Notes Offering

Private offering of $1.1 billion aggregate principal amount of 6.50% USD Notes
due 2022 and €350 million aggregate principal amount of 6.00% EUR Notes
due 2023 to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to Rule 144A under the
Securities Act, and to non-U.S. persons in accordance with Regulation S under
the Securities Act, completed on February 2, 2015.

November Resale Registration
Statement

Registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-199817) initially filed on
November 3, 2014 to register the resale of all of the shares sold in the October/
November Private Placement. The November Resale Registration Statement was
amended on November 10, 2014 and declared effective that same day.

October/November Private
Placement

Private placement of an aggregate of 16,060,960 shares and 9,404,064
shares of our common stock completed on October 8, 2014 and November
6, 2014, respectively, at a price of $25.59 per share, raising net proceeds of
approximately $651.5 million.

Original Seller

Nalozo S.à.r.l., a Luxembourg limited liability company and the original seller in
the Arysta Acquisition.

PCAOB

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

PDH

Platform Delaware Holdings, Inc., a subsidiary of Platform.

PDH Common Stock

Shares of common stock of PDH.

Pension Plan

MacDermid, Incorporated Employees’ Pension Plan (as amended and restated,
effective January 1, 2009), a non-contributory domestic defined benefit pension
plan.

Percival

Percival S.A., a société anonyme incorporated and organized under the laws of
Belgium, acquired by Platform on October 1, 2014.

Pershing Square

Pershing Square Capital Management, L.P.

Predecessor

MacDermid and its subsidiaries, collectively, for all periods prior to the
MacDermid Acquisition.

Predecessor 2011 Period

MacDermid’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

Predecessor 2012 Period

MacDermid’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

Predecessor 2013 Period

Ten-month period from January 1, 2013 through October 31, 2013.
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Public Offering

Underwritten registered public offering of 16,445,000 shares of our common
stock completed on November 17, 2014 at a public offering price of $24.50 per
share, raising gross proceeds of approximately $403 million.

Retaining Holder

Each Holder of an equity interest of MacDermid Holdings immediately prior to
the closing if the MacDermid Acquisition, not owned by Platform, who executed a
RHSA.

Revolving Credit Facility

Revolving Credit Facility available under the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement.

ROA

Returns on assets.

RSUs

Restricted stock units issued by Platform from time to time under the 2013 Plan.

RHSA

Retaining Holder Securityholders’ Agreement dated October 10, 2013 entered
into by and between Platform and each Retaining Holder pursuant to which
they agreed to exchange their respective interests in MacDermid Holdings for
shares of PDH Common Stock, at an exchange rate of $11.00 per share plus (i)
a proportionate share of the $100 million contingent consideration and (ii) an
interest in certain MacDermid pending litigation.

Sarbanes-Oxley

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

SEC

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Second Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of August 6, 2014,
among, inter alia, Platform, Platform Holdings, LLC, MacDermid, the subsidiaries
of the borrowers from time to time parties thereto, the lenders from time to time
parties thereto and Barclays Bank PLC, as administrative agent and collateral
agent which generally provided for, among other things, (i) increased flexibility
with respect to permitted acquisitions, (ii) the ability to request incremental
facilities in currencies other than U.S. Dollars, and (iii) securing foreign assets in
support of future term loans.

Securities Act

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Seller

Nalozo, L.P., an affiliate of the Original Seller who became the seller in the Arysta
Acquisition pursuant to an amendment to the share purchase agreement dated
February 11, 2015.

Seller Resale Registration
Statement

Registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-202287) initially filed on
February 25, 2015 to register the resale of a maximum of 22,107,590 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock pursuant
to a registration rights agreement entered into with the Seller dated February 13,
2015. The Seller Registration Statement was amended on March 20, 2015 and is
expected to be declared effective by the SEC in early April 2015.

Series A Preferred Stock

2,000,000 shares of Platform’s Series A preferred stock which were automatically
converted from ordinary shares held by the Founder Entities upon the
Domestication, and which are convertible into shares of Platform’s common
stock, on a one-for-one basis, at any time at the option of the Founder Entities.

Series B Preferred Stock

600,000 shares of Platform’s Series B Preferred Stock issued to the Seller in
connection with the Arysta Acquisition on February 13, 2015.

SERP

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for executive officers of Platform.

Successor

Platform and its subsidiaries, collectively, for all periods subsequent to the
MacDermid Acquisition.

Successor 2013 Period

Period from April 23, 2013 (inception) through December 31, 2013.

Tartan

Tartan Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and subsidiary of
Platform, formed at the time of the MacDermid Acquisition to hold the PDH
Common Stock in exchange of MacDermid Holdings equity interests.

U.K. Pension Plan

Retirement and death benefit plans covering employees in the U.K.
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USD Incremental Loans

Incremental term loans under the Incremental Amendment to the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement in an aggregate principal amount of $300 million
used to finance the Agriphar Acquisition.

U.S. GAAP

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

Warrant Exchange Offer

Exchange offer conducted by Platform in order to fund a portion of the cash
consideration for the MacDermid Acquisition pursuant to which Platform issued
common stock in exchange for $10.50 and 3 warrants, up to a maximum of half of
the warrants outstanding.

2013 Plan

Platform Specialty Products Corporation Amended and Restated 2013 Incentive
Compensation Plan adopted by the Board on October 31, 2013, as amended
on December 16, 2013 and approved by Platform’s stockholders at the annual
meeting held on June 12, 2014.

401K Plan

MacDermid, Incorporated Profit Sharing and Employee Savings Plan.

6.00% EUR Notes due 2023

Platform’s 6.00% senior notes due 2023 denominated in Euro issued in the Notes
Offering.

6.50% USD Notes due 2022

Platform’s 6.50% senior notes due 2022 denominated in U.S. dollars issued in the
Notes Offering.
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the form of both innovative chemical products customized to meet
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of helping implement its chemistry. We are only as good as our
people and our technology. Our customers rely on both every day.
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Platform has a company-wide contest for designs for our Annual Report cover. This year’s
winner was Bill Tweedie, a supply chain manager in our AgroSolutions vertical. Runners
up were Zsolt Tohai, Derek Deschene, Geoffrey Wyns, and Neil Bolding.

Left to right: Michael F. Goss, Ian G.H. Ashken, Martin E. Franklin, Daniel H. Leever, Wayne M. Hewett, Nicolas Berggruen, Ryan Israel, E. Stanley O’Neal
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